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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 09 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes we a re  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r  we propose to  ca l l  th ree  

w i tnesses today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The f i rs t  i s  Mr  P ie ter  Knoetze ;  the  

second w i l l  be  Mr  Mkwanaz i  and the  th i rd  w i l l  be  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   One second.   I  th ink  the  –  the  a i r  

cond i t ioner  no ise  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  hear  you p roper ly.   

They w i l l  –  they  w i l l  s low i t  down a  b i t .   Okay  a l r igh t  

cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   The second w i l l  be  Mr  

Mkwanaz i  and the  th i rd  w i l l  be  Mr  Mhlont lo .   Cha i r  Mr  

Knoetze  is  cu r ren t ly  in  George and has –  and has some 

d i f f i cu l t ies  in  coming up to  Johannesburg  wh ich  have been 20 

conveyed to  you  Cha i r  by  the  lega l  team and you have  

d i rec ted  tha t  he  shou ld  be  g iven leave to  g ive  ev idence by  

way o f  v ideo l ink .   So he is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have approved tha t  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  Mr  Knoetze  is  ava i lab le  and he is  

v is ib le  on  the  screens before  you and before  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   You might  jus t  

fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  spend a  m inutes  jus t  to  say 

what  the  ev idence –  how the  ev idence tha t  w i l l  be  led  th is  

week connects  w i th  maybe las t  week but  the  week ’s  

ev idence o f  –  jus t  g ive  a  summary  so  tha t  they can  fo l low 

much bet te r  as  each w i tness g i ve  ev idence.   Or  what  

t ransact ions w i l l  be  covered and so  on .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  So –  thank you Cha i r  i f  I  may do  

tha t?   We wi l l  be  p ick ing  up  the  th reads o f  the  ev idence 

tha t  was led  the  week befo re  l as t  be fore  you  Cha i r  fo r  the  

who le  week and  we w i l l  be  dea l ing  w i th  par t i cu la r ly  the  

issue o f  the  cont rac t s  tha t  were  awarded to  VR Laser  by  

Dene l  and i t s  va r ious en t i t ies .    

The ex ten t  to  wh ich  ind i v idua l  o f f i c ia ls  may or  may  

not  have been invo lved in  tha t  whether  o r  no t  there  was 

compl iance w i th  p rocu rement  requ i rements  and the  l i ke  and  

who took the  –  who took the  lead ing  ro le  in  each o f  those  20 

t ransact ions.    

We wi l l  a lso  dea l  th is  week apar t  f rom the  th ree  

par t i cu la r  th ree  cont rac ts  tha t  were  awarded to  VR Laser  

fo r  South  A f r i can opera t ions we  w i l l  dea l  a lso  w i th  an  

a t tempt  to  deve lop  bus iness in  As ia  in  wh ich  VR –  there  
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was a lso  a  connect ion  w i th  VR Laser.    

And we w i l l  a lso  dea l  b r ie f l y  Cha i r  w i th  the  award  o f  

a  cont rac t  to  the  en t i t y  known as LMT which  u l t ima te ly  we 

–  was –  became par t  o f  the  Dene l  s tab le  o f  opera t ions 

when a  major i t y  shareho ld ing  in  i t  was pu rchased by  Dene l .   

The ev idence w i l l  re la te  to  the  bus iness sub jec t i ve  to  t ry  

and br ing  in -house capac i ty.    

There  were  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies  the  ev idence w i l l  

show in  re la t ion  to  LMT and they were  then g iven a  

f inanc ia l  ass i s tance wh ich  was dea l t  w i th  as  i f  i t  were  an  10 

advanced payment  on  a  cont rac t .   We wi l l  have ev idence  

dea l ing  w i th  poss ib le  i r regu lar i t ies  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  –  tha t  

fund ing .    

So tha t  w i l l  be  essent ia l l y  the  main  focus o f  the  

ev idence th is  week.   In  add i t ion  we w i l l  take  fu r ther  the  

issue o f  how th ree sen ior  execut ives  a t  the  board  l eve l  o f  

Dene l  were  f i rs t l y  suspended and  la te r  le f t  the  se rv ice  or  

were  dea l t  w i th  in  a  manner  wh ich  invo l ved the  te rm inat ion  

o f  the i r  employment  one way or  the  o the r.    

Mr  Sa loo jee  is  schedu led  to  g i ve  a  b i t  o f  ev idence  20 

la te r  th is  week.  He have ev idence on the  prev ious occas ion  

tha t  i s  the  fo rmer  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  and was  

suspended and u l t imate ly  res igned  in  te rms o f  a  se t t lement  

a f te r  a  lengthy  p rocess was a t tempted to  d i sc ip l i ne  h im.  

You w i l l  a lso  hear  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Mhlont lo  in te r  a l ia  
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dea l ing  w i th  the  c i rcumstances i n  wh ich  he  came to  be  

suspended by  the  board .    

What  we have a lso  ar ranged Cha i r  i s  fo r  the  

cha i rperson o f  the  board  o f  Dene l  Mr  Mantsha  to  g ive  

ev idence a t  the  end o f  th is  week to  dea l  w i th  a  number  o f  

a l legat ions tha t  have been made  in  re la t ion  to  how he 

hand led  the  –  h is  ro le  as  cha i rperson and par t i cu la r ly  in  

re la t ion  to  the  way in  wh ich  execut ives  were  suspended 

and a l so  in  re la t ion  to  spec i f i c  con t rac ts  tha t  were  awarded  

to  VR Laser.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  read I  th ink  Mr  Mhlont lo ’s  a f f idav i t  las t  

n igh t .  I  th ink  i t  was h im ja  and I  no ted  tha t  when i t  came to  

the  o f fe r  tha t  Dene l  made to  h im wh ich  he  u l t imate ly  

accepted wh ich  he  sa id  was substant ia l l y  be t te r  than I  

th ink  another  one tha t  may have been made befo re .   I  do 

no t  know i f  i t  was th ree  months  tha t  i t  had been made 

before .  

1 .  I  d id  no t  –  I  d id  no t  see any se t t lement  agreement  20 

tha t  may have been s igned be ing  a t tached to  h is  

a f f idav i t .  

2 .  He d id  no t  d i sc lose  how much the  o f fe r  was tha t  made 

h im agree to  leave.   I f  we do not  have the  se t t lement  

agreement  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  have i t .   
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Bu t  I  wou ld  a l so  l i ke  to  have the  se t t lement  agreements  

s igned w i th  the  –  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  because I  do  no t  

remember  tha t  –  when Sa loo jee  gave h i s  ev idence  he a l so  

covered tha t .    

But  a lso  I  th ink  he  too  m ight  no t  have d i sc losed to  

the  commiss ion  how much he was  g iven.   I  have not  seen 

is  Ms A f r i ca  o r  Mr  A f r i ca?  The o ther  execut ive  who was  

suspended together  w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Mhlont lo .   I s  

i t  Ms or  Mr  A f r i ca ,  do  you know?  Ja  I  seem to  th ink  i t  was 

Ms but  I  may be mis taken.    10 

I  do  no t  know i f  we have an a f f idav i t  f rom h im or  he r  

because i f  he  or  she a lso  le f t  under  s im i la r  c i r cumstances I  

wou ld  l i ke  us  to  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  see what  se t t lement  

agreement  was s igned w i th  them –  w i th  h im or  her  and how 

much was o f fe red .   Ja  –  and I  have no doubt  tha t  the  

cur ren t  cha i rpe rson o f  the  board  who tes t i f ied  here  can  

fac i l i ta te  tha t  qu ick ly  as  we l l  as  whoever  the  CEO is  

because they wou ld  have –  they shou ld  have records o f… 

 Now tha t  i s  impor tan t  because the  –  i t  may we l l  be  

tha t  how th ings were  done in  re la t ion  to  these execut ives  20 

have got  s im i la r  fea tures  w i th  how execut ives  a t  Eskom 

were  dea l t  w i th  those who were  suspended and then  

o f fe red  money to  go .  

 Now in  regard  to  Eskom the  board  members  who  

have tes t i f ied  may have s t rugg led  to  exp la in  o r  jus t i f y  why  
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Eskom of fe red  them money to  go .    

 O f  course  the  contex t  there  a t  Eskom i s  tha t  the  

board  –  the  board  members  who  have tes t i f ied  say tha t  

they d id  no t  have  any prob lems wi th  those execut ives  and 

ac tua l l y  wanted them back o r  wou ld  have been happy fo r  

them to  be  back –  a t  leas t  some o f  the  board  members .   So 

there  is  the  ques t ion  o f ,  why d id  you o f fe r  them money i f  

they  wanted to  leave why d id  you not  le t  them leave l i ke  

everybody res igns f rom a  company? 

 So there  is  tha t  par t .   Now here  a t  Dene l  i t  wou ld  10 

seem tha t  over  a  long pe r iod  the  board  had the  oppor tun i ty  

to  –  to  come wi th  ev idence o f  m isconduct  o r  the  charges 

and substant ia te  charges aga ins t  these execut ives .   And 

then ins tead o f  sub jec t ing  them to  a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  

and le t  the  ou tcome thereof  de termine whether  they wou ld  

cont inue a t  Dene l  o r  no t  i t  seems tha t  they then sub jec ted  

them to  long suspens ions and a t  a  cer ta in  s tage o f fe red 

them money.  

 So I  wou ld  l i ke  to  know how much were  they o f fe red  

because I  w i l l  want  to  know what  the  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  tha t  20 

is .   Why they d id  no t  a l low the  d isc ip l ina ry  p rocess  to  take  

i t s  cou rse?  

 But  one wou ld  l i ke  to  know to  have the  se t t lement  

agreements  and to  have the  amounts  tha t  were  o f fe red  as  

we l l .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r  we w i l l  a t tend to  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r  un less  there  is  

anyth ing  e lse  may we then w i th  your  leave ca l l  by  way o f  

the  v i r tua l  hear ing  Mr  P ie ter  Knoe tze?  May I  ask  tha t  he  

be  sworn  in?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.   P lease admin i s te r  the  

oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  looks  l i ke  he  cannot  hear  you.   Mr 

Knoetze  can you hear  us?  

MR KNOETZE:   I s  he  –  Cha i r  I  can hear  you.   There  is  a  

l i t t le  b i t  o f  s low in te r rup t ions bu t  o therw ise  I  can hear  you  

yes.   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   You can cont inue.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR KNOETZE:   P ie ter  Kare l  Johannes Knoetze .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  20 

MR KNOETZE:   Not  a t  a l l  no .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  
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w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  

me God?  

MR KNOETZE:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much.   Yes you may 

s tar t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Good morn ing  Mr  

Knoetze .    

MR KNOETZE:   Morn ing  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you have ass is ted  10 

the  commiss ion  w i th  i t s  invest iga tors  and i t s  lega l  team 

and tha t  a f f idav i t s  have been p roduced by  you fo l low ing 

tha t  in te rvent ion?  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes i t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I  unders tand you have – you are  

s i t t ing  in  George I  be l ieve ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:   No I  am a t  my house in  Pre to r ia .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Oh is  i t  in  Pre tor ia  I  beg your  pardon.   

Mr  Knoetze  is  co r rec t  tha t  you have a  copy o f  you r  main  

a f f idav i t?  20 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes I  have i t  e lec t ron ica l l y  and a  hard  copy  

next  to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.   I f  you  cou ld  p lease  

as  you were  d i rec ted  by  one o f  our  co l leagues  a t  the 

commiss ion  ea r l ie r  i f  we cou ld  re fer  to  page numbers  on  
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the  top  le f t  hand  s ide  you w i l l  see  there  is  a  Dene l -08-04.   

Do you have tha t?  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes I  am go ing  to  i t  –  I  am jus t  go ing  

th rough i t  qu ick ly  Cha i r.   Yes Cha i r  I  am a t  04 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And th i s  appears  to  be  an  a f f idav i t  

bear ing  your  name,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  runs in  i t s  tex t  to  page 32.  

MR KNOETZE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is  fo l lowed by  a  number  o f  10 

annexures.   On page 32 is  tha t  your  s ignatu re?  

MR KNOETZE:   I  am jus t  go ing  th rough to  make sure  Cha i r  

jus t  le t  me… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  s ignature  on  the  page there  

because there  are  two or  th ree  s ignatures .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I  w i l l  d i rec t  i f  I  may Cha i r?   Do  

you have page 32  Mr  Knoetze?  

MR KNOETZE:   C lose to  I  am jus t  go ing  to  make  sure  to  

conf i rm.   Yes Cha i r  i t  i s  my handwr i t ing  and my s ignature  

and the  a f f idav i t  w i th  i t  –  yes  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  the  s ignature  a t  the  top? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And be low i t  appears  tha t  you  s igned 

in  f ron t  o f  a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  and you took the  oa th?  

MR KNOETZE:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Have you been th rough th is  

a f f idav i t  and are  you ab le  to  conf i rm tha t  the  contents  a re  

t rue  and cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:   I  have gone th rough i t  and I  can conf i rm i t  

i s  cor rec t  and t rue .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r  there  is  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  may I  jus t  ask  fo rmer ly  fo r  th is  a f f idav i t  f i rs t  to  be  

admi t ted .  Cha i r  i t  fo rms par t  o f  Dene l  Bund le  08  and  

Exh ib i t  W21 and we wou ld  ask  your  leave to  have i t  

admi t ted  as  an  Exh ib i t  be fo re  th is  commiss ion?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You say W21?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  P ie ter  Knoetze  

s ta r t ing  a t  page  4  o f  Bund le  –  o f  Dene l  Bund le  08  is  

admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W21.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Now Mr  Knoetze  i t  

appeared dur ing  the  consu l ta t ions  be tween members  o f  the  

lega l  team and  yourse l f  tha t  cer ta in  annexures were  

m iss ing  f rom the  –  what  was a t tached to  your  o r ig ina l  

a f f idav i t  tha t  we have jus t  looked a t  and you have f i led  –  20 

you have s igned  a  separa te  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  to  

cor rec t  tha t ,  i s  tha t  so?  

MR KNOETZE:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  take  you p lease in  the  same 

bund le  to  page 298?   
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MR KNOETZE:   Okay le t  me jus t  go  th rough i t  here  qu ick l y  

–  th rough the  drawings.   Jus t  a  moment  Cha i r  I  am jus t  

go ing  to  i t .   I t  takes a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  t ime Cha i r  go ing  th rough  

the  pages.   Le t  me get  i t  jus t  now.   Okay Cha i r  j us t  the  

number ing  aga in?  

CHAIRPERSON:   298.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   298.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 298 the  b lack  numbers  on  the  le f t  

hand corne r.  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes.   I  am on i t  Cha i r  thank you.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  you r  supp lementary  a f f idav i t?  

MR KNOETZE:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  I  can  take  you to  the  second  

page tha t  i s  page  299.   I s  the  f i rs t  s ignature  in  the  m idd le  

o f  the  page your  own? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And aga in  you had th is  –  th i s  a f f idav i t  

sworn  and a t tes ted  before  a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And have  you been th rough th is  

a f f idav i t  and sa t is f ied  yourse l f  as  to  i t s  t ru th  and  

cor rec tness?  

MR KNOETZE:   I  am thank you Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you have  
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a t tached to  tha t  a f f idav i t  the  re levant  annexures tha t  were  

m iss ing  f rom the  a t tachments  to  your  main  a f f idav i t?  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes a f te r  my request  i t  was g iven  las t l y  to  

me by –  by  the  team and i t  was a t tached as  such.   Thank  

you Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   As  I  unders tand i t  Mr  

Knoetze  you d id  no t  have those documents  or ig ina l l y  when 

you prepared the  main  a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  why you d id  no t  

a t tach  them to  your  a f f idav i t  bu t  the  commiss ion  was ab le  

to  source  cop ies  o f  those documents  wh ich  your  10 

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  conf i rms a re  in  fac t  the  documents  

tha t  a re  re fe r red  to  in  your  main  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:   I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r  and  

you w i l l  a lso  see in  those pa ragraphs I  re fe r  spec i f i ca l l y  to  

–  to  those documents  because I  was –  I  le f t  a l ready Dene l  

a t  tha t  po in t  so  I  re fe r red  to  those spec i f i c  annexures as  I  

–  as  fa r  as  I  can  reca l l  th is  was the  fo l low ing a t tachments 

and –  and spec i f i ca l l y  re fe renced to  those a t tachments .   

But  I  d id  rece ive  them las t  week and i t  was now inc luded.   

Yes thank you Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank  you.   Cha i r  may  we then 

ask  leave fo rmer l y  to  have the  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  w i th  

i t s  annexures admi t ted .   I t  i s  s t i l l  i n  bund le ,  Dene l  Bund le  

08  and i t  appears  f rom page 298 and I  assume tha t  Cha i r  

you wou ld  have tha t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  21 .1 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Can I  –  21 .1  or  21 .  –  I  mean W22 

depend ing  on what  seems to  be  f ine  in  te rms  o f  the  

ar rangements  o f  the  bund le  –  ar rangement  o f  the  bund le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes W22 has a l ready been a l loca ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To  a  d i f fe ren t  exh ib i t  I  am a f ra id  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  does –  does Exh ib i t  W22  appear  

be fore  the  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  o r  a f te r?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No a f te r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay so  we w i l l  make i t  21 .1 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The supp lementary  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  P ie ter  

Knoetze  s ta r t ing  a t  page 298 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W21.1 .  

Before  –  be fore  Mr  Kennedy beg ins  w i th  h is  quest ions Mr  

Knoetze  I  see tha t  there  seems to  be  a  vast  d i f fe rence  

between your  s ignature  a t  page 296 on the  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  and your  s ignatu re  a t  page 29 o f  your  main  

a f f idav i t .   What  can you say about  tha t?  

MR KNOETZE:   I f  I  fo l lowed the  quest ion  Mr Cha i r  i t  i s  a  20 

d i f fe rence between the  s ignature  o f  two d i f fe ren t  pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  the  s ignature  tha t  you say is  yours  on  

the  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  i s  very  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  

s ignature  tha t  you have sa id  i s  yours  on  the  main  a f f idav i t .  

MR KNOETZE:   I  must  say  Cha i r  I  found i t  d i f f i cu l t  –  the  
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e lec t ron i c  copy does not  have the  s ignatures  on .   The one  

tha t  I  have opened does not  have the  s ignatures  on  my 

s ide .   I  do  have a l l  the  s ignatu res  o f  the  pr imary  a f f idav i t  

so  I  cannot  see unfor tunate l y  on  the  e lec t ron ic  one i t  d id  

no t  have the  s igned –  the  s ignature  on  the  supp lementary  

ones.   I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  respond there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay maybe a  way can be found to  le t  

you see exact ly  what  I  see and then you can dea l  w i th  i t  

la te r.   Mr  Kennedy do you know how tha t  can be done in  

te rms o f  techno logy?   Or  does he have a  hard  copy  –  hard  10 

cop ies  w i th  h im? 

MR KNOETZE:   I  be l ieve  the  w i tness ind ica ted  he had a  

hard  copy ava i l ab le  to  h im.   Mr  Knoetze  do  you have a  

hard  copy ava i lab le  there?  

MR KNOETZE:   Mr  Cha i r  un for tunate ly  a t  the  –  [00 :22 :49]  

p icked up las t  n igh t  very  la te  the  supp lementary  one and i t  

was the  on ly  one .   I  d id  no t  make  cop ies  fo r  me a f te r  the 

s ignature  so  he  has taken the  on ly  one tha t  had the  

or ig ina l  in  w i th  h im to  be  handed in .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR KNOETZE:   Bu t  we can def in i te ly  as  Cha i rperson  

th rough you is  asked we can do  the  compar i son  a t  any 

t ime.   I  am more  than w i l l i ng  i t  i s  accepted we can do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you –  we l l  I  need to  know when you 

might  be  ab le  to  have w i th  you hard  cop ies  so  tha t  we-  you 
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can  dea l  w i th  i t .   What  log i s t i ca l  a r rangements  need to  be  

made to  ach ieve tha t?   Mr  Kennedy  do you know? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  we may be  ab le  to  

f ind  a  techno log ica l  so lu t ion  to  th is  perhaps a  pho tograph 

can be taken on a  camera  phone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   O f  the  two s ignatures  and sent  to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  tha t  he  can then look a t  i t  on  the  

phone.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  w i l l  no t  ask  h im fo r  h i s  phone  

number  in  pub l i c  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  am sure  we have the  phone  

numbers  and perhaps one o f  my co l leagues –  may I  jus t  

have a  moment?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you very  much.   I  unders tand 

tha t  –  tha t  my co l league w i l l  send h im a  photograph o f  20 

each o f  the  two s ignatures  so  tha t  he  can compare .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Perhaps we can s tand down once we  

have dea l t  w i th  the  res t  o f  h is  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ys .  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 18 of 213 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then i t  w i l l  be  comple te  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ys .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  do  no t  imag ine  i t  –  we shou ld  

requ i re  a  s tand ing  down o f  more  than a  few minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Un less  –  un less  

you wou ld  p re fer  me to  dea l  w i th  tha t  up f ron t  now? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am happy fo r  us  to  cont inue  in  the 

meant ime i f  you a re  happy to  do  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  bas i s  tha t  he  has sa id  bo th  are 

h is  s ignatu res .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  jus t  see a  vast  d i f fe rence and –  so  

he  can… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   They a re  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He can come in  la te r  bu t  i f  maybe i t  

m igh t  be  be t te r  to  ge t  th is  c leared  before  we s tar t  and i f  i t  

i s  go ing  to  take  a  few minutes  I  am happy to  s tand down 

fo r  tha t  purpose.   Which  one do you pre fe r?  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wel l  perhaps le t  us  s tand down now 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Le t  us  ge t  th is  ou t  o f  the  way before  

we beg in  w i th  the  res t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  w i l l  –  I  w i l l  s tand down probab ly  

f i ve  m inutes  w i l l  be  more  than enough? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  be l ieve  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you –  oh  you w i l l  le t  me know – you  

w i l l  le t  me know once i t  has  been sor ted  ou t  bu t  ce r ta in ly  i t  

shou ld  no t  go  to  ten  m inutes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay we ad journ .  10 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :     

MR KNOETZE :    Jerry,  i f  you can st i l l  hear me.  I  am ready 

whenever you are ready on that  s ide.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   I f  you could just  wai t  for  

the Chai rperson,  Mr Knoetze.   

MR KNOETZE :    I  am . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   We are ready.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Has Mr Knoetze been able to look at  20 

both signatures? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you for the opportuni ty.   We 

apologise.   The legal  team did not  pick up the discrepancy.   
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So he has clar i f ied to us.   What he has been sent  Chair  by 

members of  the team are photographs both of  the signature 

page of  the main aff idavi t  at  page 32 and the signature page 

of  the supplementary aff idavi t  at  page 299.   So may I  just 

ask him a few quest ions? 

CHAIRPERSON :    The other. . .   Now, the f i rst  s ignature is on 

page 29,  hey?  Oh, no,  no.   Page 32 in terms of  the black 

numbers.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thi r ty-two.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  forgot  we use the black numbers.   10 

Yes.   So he has seen both now? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He has seen both.   I f  I  may just  ask 

him a few quest ion on the record Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So he conf i rms i t  for the record.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  is i t  correct  what I  have 

just  said to the Learned Chai r  that  you have been sent  a 

photograph of  the signature page at  page 32 which re lates to 

the main aff idavi t .   Is that  correct? 20 

MR KNOETZE :    That  is a hundred percent  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And also the s ignature page of  the 

other aff idavi t ,  the supplementary at  page 299.   Did you 

receive that /  

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  Chair.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you have looked at  what appears 

there,  hey? 

MR KNOETZE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  just  ask you?  On page 31. . .   

Just  let  us look at  page 31,  please.  

MR KNOETZE :    I  am quick ly going to 31.   Just  give me a 

moment Chai r.   I t  is  the wrong version.   I  am quickly going 

through.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi l l  i t  be quickly  i f  Mr Knoetze uses hard 10 

copies maybe i f  he uses his computer? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  do you have a hard copy 

of  the main aff idavi t  in f ront  of  you? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  we may . . . [ intervenes]   

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  I  do.   I  a lso have. . .   But  that  one does 

not  have the. . .   Mr Chai r,  that  one does not  have numbers.   

So I  am going through the e lect ronic.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  is that  so.  

MR KNOETZE :    I  am at  number 32 there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am just  scared. . .   There is qui te  20 

some delay before you get  to a page . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am afraid there is . . . [ intervenes]   

MR KNOETZE :    . . .and af ter an hour or  two hours,  we might 

have lost  qui te some t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  th ink this wi l l  be the only instance.   
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The wi tness referred me to his in i t ia ls on the previous 

pages.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  did you. . .   have you 

looked at  the ini t ia ls that  appear on the ear l ier pages of  the 

main aff idavi t  at  the bot tom r ight  hand . . . [ indist inct ]   

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  I  have Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And whose in i t ia ls . . . [ intervenes]   

MR KNOETZE :    [ Indist inct ]  [ t ransmission not  c lear – 

speaker unclear]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry Chai r.   Whose in i t ia ls appear at  

the bot tom r ight  hand of  each of  the pages before we get  to  

32? 

MR KNOETZE :    Each of  them,  are mysel f .   My signature on 

the r ight  hand side.   The lef t -hand side is the commission of  

oaths’ one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    When you say your signature,  do you 

mean signature or  in i t ia ls? 

MR KNOETZE :    My in i t ia ls.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In i t ia ls.   Now on page 32,  the 20 

Chairperson has referred you to  the fact  that  above the 

word,  the typed word deponent is  the name P C J Knoetze.  

Who wrote that  in?  Did you wri te that  in? 

MR KNOETZE :    I t  is my handwr i t ing.   I t  is exact ly correct .   

Yes,  Chai r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Is th is your normal. . .  is th is a 

signature or is th is merely the handwri t ing of  your name? 

MR KNOETZE :    I t  was my handwri t ing.   As my 

understanding was,  th is was necessary to put  my handwri t ing 

in there.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then,  you have looked at  

the other photograph sent  to you by phone which is on page 

299.   I t  is in the supplementary aff idavi t .    

MR KNOETZE :    299,  is that  correct? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Do you have that? 10 

MR KNOETZE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you have been sent  a photograph 

of  th is,  th is as the signature page.  There is typed hal f -way 

down the name Pieter Knoetze.   That  is your name, correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  am close to that .   I  am just  going to go to 

299 quickly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [No audible reply]   

MR KNOETZE :    I  am close to 299 Chai r.   Just  a moment.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  in fact ,  my quest ion was 

di rected at  the photograph that  you have sent  just  a few 20 

moments ago.  

MR KNOETZE :    Ja,  the photograph . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Perhaps . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR KNOETZE :    A hundred percent  . . . [ indist inct ]  

[ t ransmission not  c lear – speaker unclear]  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  p lease do not  ta lk over me when 

I  am asking quest ions.   We must  each give each other a 

chance to f in ish.   The photograph that  was sent  to  you of  

th is page,  the signature page for the supplementary aff idavi t .   

Is that  correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  you can look at  that .   Is that  

your s ignature that  appears above the typed name Pieter 

Knoetze? 

MR KNOETZE :    I t  is my handwri t ing of  my. . .   I t  is my 10 

handwri t ing P C J Knoetze in my handwri t ing.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  but  is i t  handwri t ing where you 

are simple wri t ing out  your name or  signing i t?  

MR KNOETZE :    I t  is just  wri t ing out  my name Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On page 299? 

MR KNOETZE :    On 299,  i t  is just  my handwri t ing and my 

name . . . [ indist inct ]  [ t ransmission not  c lear – speaker 

unclear]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  just  take some guidance? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  I  am sorry.   We need to 

t ry and get  through this quickly.   We have seen al ready that  

at  the ear l ier page 32,  what you did there was,  you did not  

s ign i t .   You wrote out  your name in your handwri t ing which 

is not  your normal  s ignature.   Is that  correct? 
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MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  Chai r.   I  d id  not  the 

signature but  i t  was as deponent my in i t ia ls and my surname. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  but  at  page 299,  what we have 

and we have sent  you a photograph of  i t ,  is where we see 

somebody has apparent ly signed above the typed name 

Pieter Knoetze.   What I  see above that ,  is what appears to  

be somebody has signed i t  rather than wri t ing out  his or her 

name.  I f  you could please look at  the photographs that  you 

have been sent  by your phone.  

MR KNOETZE :    I  am look at  th is 32 that  has been sent  on 10 

the Whatsapp.  There is no – and my . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [ Indist inct ]   

MR KNOETZE :    . . .Whatsapp I  received . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry to interrupt  you.   We are 

f in ished with page 32.   I  am looking at  page 299 now.  

MR KNOETZE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    P lease look at  the Whatsapp 

photograph that  you have been sent  of  page 299.  

MR KNOETZE :    Okay I  got  that  one.   Is i t  the f i rst  one 

Chair? 20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  just  before the looked at  the f i rst  

one.   Can you just  conf i rm?  At  the foot  of  the page, you wi l l  

see the commission of  oaths has signed and his  – her or  she 

has inserted the date the 8t h of  November 2020.   Are we 

looking at  the same document? 
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MR KNOETZE :    I  am looking at  the same one Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Now above where 

the commission of  oaths has s igned,  hal f -way down that  

page,  the very f i rst  s ignature that  appears on this  page,  

above the typed name Pieter Knoetze.   Do you see that? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  see that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  a signature or is that  your  

name? 

MR KNOETZE :    This is my signature.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Your signature? 10 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So we have in the main 

aff idavi t  i t  – al though i t  has your in i t ia ls throughout,  you did 

not  put  your signature,  you wrote your  name.  But  in th is 

aff idavi t  we have this page which shows your signature.   Is  

that  correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    Hundred percent  correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Is  there any reason – I  am not  

t ry ing to catch you out  or cr i t ic ise you but  there is any 

reason why you signed – you used your signature on the 20 

supplementary aff idavi t ,  on this page we are looking at ,  but  

instead of  put t ing your  signature to the main aff idavi t ,  you 

put  your name in handwri t ing.  

MR KNOETZE :    Chai r,  i f  I  must  be honest .   I  th ink i t  was 

done late last  night .   I  had to rush through this.   And I  had i t  
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done at  the speci f ic commission of  oath’s house to quickly 

get  th is  done and I  could have probably also have signed 

that  page where I  d id my P J C Knoetze in.   And then we had 

to quickly rush i t  to get  through advocate . . . [ indist inct ]  to the 

part (?),  ja.   [ t ransmission not  c lear – speaker unclear ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay thank you,  Mr Knoetze.   But  do 

you conf i rm again that  each of  these two aff idavi ts,  the main 

one in which you simple in i t ia l led and wrote your name and 

the supplementary one which you in i t ia l led and signed,  both 

of  those,  in fact ,  are your aff idavi ts and you conf i rm under 10 

oath,  that  you have taken this morning,  that  thei r  contents 

are t rue and correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    Hundred percent  Chai r.   I  conf i rm that  is the 

case.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   Thank you.   Now 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  that  is f ine.   But  you see,  th is  

f i rst  one was signed in – was deposed to in September,  not  

yesterday.   September 2003.   Was i t  just  your understanding 

that  al l  you were requi red to do is just  put  your  in i t ia ls and 20 

surname or did somebody say that  is what you needed to 

do?   

 Because you see the commission  the cert i f icate of  the 

commissioner  of  oaths underneath your name there,  says:   

Thus signed and sworn to before me.  So i t  is supposed to 
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be signed.    

 But  obviously,  some people sign in  such a way that  i t  is  

just  in i t ia ls and surname.  So the commissioner of  oaths wi l l  

not  know whether that  is your signature or not .    

 Was i t  your  understanding that  you should just  put  in the 

in i t ia ls and the surname or  what  was the posi t ion?  Because 

that  one is not  the one.    

 I t  is the supplementary aff idavi t  that  you did yesterday 

where you may have rushed but  th is  was September 2003.    

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r  that  was my understanding and. . .  10 

but  I  can again Chai r.   I  can conf i rm these are part  of  my 

statements and . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR KNOETZE :    . . .s igned by me mysel f  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  that  is f ine.   Let  us cont inue  You may 

cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  you would l ike i t ,  we could,  of  

course,  ask the w i tness to resign the or ig inal  aff idavi t  wi th  a 20 

proper signature but  I  do not  know i f  you require i t  af ter the 

evidence has been given? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   No,  no.   I  th ink i t  is f ine because he is 

conf i rming under oath that  the contents are t rue and correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Indeed.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is just  that  when I  p icked i t  up,  i t  

seemed very st range.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  i t  is qui te a st r ik ing di fference.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Mr Knoetze,  thank you.   We 

have got  that  issue out  of  the way now.  I f  we can now deal  10 

wi th some of  the things that  you say in your aff idavi t .   You 

previously worked for . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  one second Mr Kennedy.   I t  is very 

dark where Mr Kennedy is.   I  do not  know whether  something 

must  be done with  that  l ight .   You may cont inue Mr Kennedy.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is just  that . . .   That  is much bet ter.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  th ink last  –  the previous weeks,  the 

curtains were open so that  we got  a bi t  more natura l  l ight 

which seemed to . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  let  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  the l ight  that  has just  been 

adjusted seems to help me but  thank you for  looking out  on 

my behal f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  might  help but  i f  the curta ins can be 
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at tended too as wel l ,  that  would be helpful .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you very much, Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Knoetze,  you were previously 

employed at  Denel  Land Systems.  Is that  r ight? 

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We are going to cal l  i t  DLS for short  in  

these proceedings as you have in  your  aff idavi t .   When did 

you start  in the Denel  Group as an employee? 

MR KNOETZE :    Chai r,  I  started in 1989 Chai r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And when did you leave? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  lef t  Denel  two years ago,  2018 in May 

2018 Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As on what . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  that  sounds l ike you had one employer 

throughout [ laughing]  al l  those years.   Is that  correct?  From 

1989.  

MR KNOETZE :    Chai r,  just  – I  heard one part  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  looks l ike you had one employer  f rom 

1989 to when you lef t  two years ago.   That  is qui te a long 20 

t ime.  

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.   Previously,  I  was wi th  Transnet  

before that  but  s ince 1989 unt i l  I  lef t  Denel  I  was wi th Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  just . . .   Ja,  h’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you ment ion in your aff idavi t  that  

you hold a Bcom degree.   I  understand in consul tat ion wi th  

my learned col leagues,  you indicated you have an addi t ional  

degree as wel l .   What is that? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  a lso. . .   Through Mr Chai r,  I  hold an MBA at 

the Universi ty of  Pretor ia Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Now when you lef t  

in 2018 Mr Knoetze,  what posi t ion did you hold at  DLS? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  was the Execut ive of  the Business 10 

[ t ransmission not  c lear – speaker unclear]  Excel lence Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And your aff idavi t  refers to  you as 

being the Chief  Financial  Off icer.   Is that  correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  was the Chief  Financial  Off icer unt i l  March 

2015 and then I  was through a mentor ing programme 

appointee a young, new, innocent Xhosa person into the role 

of  CFO and I  was then given a posi t ion as Business 

Excel lence wi thin DLS in March 2015.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you have deal t  in  your 

aff idavi t  wi th your  responsibi l i t ies.   Can I  take you to page 6,  20 

please?  Double o six.   May I  just  cal l  i t  s ix? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you refer to your responsibi l i t ies 

as CFO being f inancial  p lanning,  f inancial  report ing,  general  

ledgers,  bank t ransact ions and pet ty-cash.   Did you st i l l  
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have responsibi l i t ies for  those issues when you became 

Execut ive for Business Excel lence? 

MR KNOETZE :    No,  Chai r.   No.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On the previous page zero,  f ive.   I t  

indicates that  you were report ing to var ious people.   

Mr Di rcke(?),   Mr El lers,  Mr Welroete(?),  Mr Burger,  

Mr Mhlonthlo and Mr Sadik(?).   Was that  at  d i fferent  t imes of  

your employment.    

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  s i r,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you say:  10 

“ I  reported to  the last  two managers.   That  is  

Mr Mhlonthlo on a dot ted l ine to Denel  Corporate 

Off ice.”  

 Just  explain what you mean by that .  

MR KNOETZE :    At  the t ime of  th is process that  we were – 

that  the invest igators were going through, I  was report ing on 

a guided l ine wi thin the div is ion where the CEO was 

Mr Burger,  d i rect ly to him, but  my dot ted l ine as a funct ional  

also responsibi l i ty on f inance,  I  reported to Mr Fiki le 

Mhlonthlo.  20 

 And also to on a dot ted l ine to Mr Sadik as the CEO and 

i t  could be that  he was st i l l  the act ing CEO at  that  point .   

And that  was my al ternat ive responsibi l i t ies and to make 

sure that  there is proper peer  processes in p lace on 

funct ional  issues Chai r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Once you were made Execut ive 

for Business Excel lence,  did you st i l l  report  to anybody? 

MR KNOETZE :    A lso to Mr Burger s t i l l .   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see.   Now whi le you were CFO, were 

you fami l iar wi th  the requi rements of  the Supply Chain 

Management Pol icy of  Denel? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  was not  personal ly  

responsible for i t  but  I  was in the al .  the management  

meet ings where we had d iscussions wi th regards to the 

Supply Chain Process and where they were appl icable,  10 

interact ions between Finance and Supply Chain where i t  

needed to be fol lowed.  Al l  that  interact ions,  I  was part  of  in  

the Management Team, Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was that  what was ca l led the DLS 

Exco? 

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you formed of  that? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  was part  of  the Management Team, Chai r.   

Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Were you part  of  that  20 

Management Team throughout your  per iod as CFO? 

MR KNOETZE :    I f  I  recal l  correct ly.   I  th ink so Chai r.   I t  is  a  

long t ime ago but  I  th ink probably most  of  the t ime I  would 

have been part  of  the Management Team.  Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you were st i l l  part  of  that  
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Management Team when you seized to be CFO and you 

became Execut ive for Business Excel lence.   Correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you carry on si t t ing on the Exco 

once you changed your  role f rom CFO to Execut ive for  

Business Excel lence? 

MR KNOETZE :    Correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so,  were you st i l l  on the Exco 

throughout that  per iod that  you were the Execut ive for 

Business Excel lence unt i l  you lef t  the employ of  Denel  in  10 

mid-2018? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  have to actual ly qual i fy that ,  

as the last  year of  my service before – and as I  started to 

get  speci f ical ly more i l l  wi th my chronic condi t ion,  I  was 

nominated as par t  of ,  I  th ink i t  was a group of  four  or f ive 

people,  to assist  DCO in Corporate Affai rs to help wi th the 

end-stake of  Denel  at  that  point ,  where I  d id some work for  

almost  a year or c lose to six months and later or longer to  

actual ly help and see where we can take Denel  on strategic 

matters and going forward on the end-stake Chai r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now in your aff idavi t ,  you have 

indicated that  you would provide an advisory support  role to 

the CEO and the SCM Unit ,  Supply Chain Management Uni t ,  

at  the DLS.  Can you explain to the Chair  p lease,  br ief ly,  

what that  entai led?  Why did you play such a role and what 
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sort  of  role did you in fact  play? 

MR KNOETZE :    Ja,  I  th ink Chai r  i f  we can just  wi th the 

f inancial  one.   I t  was always my responsibi l i ty to make sure 

that  al l  f inancial  matters should be reported and be di rected 

to the CEO to update him in terms of  every – the latest  

developments and also big decisions to be made with  regard 

to the Delegat ion of  Author i ty.    

 But  also then on Supply Chain,  through my interact ions 

wi th the Management Team and as an Executor,  we a lso had 

a Pro ject  Financial  Off ice where we had interact ion wi th  10 

Supply Chain f rom a f inancia l  po int  of  v iew just  to  make sure 

that  the support  to Supply Chain was pr ice – possible pr ice 

negot iat ions or on t rack condi t ions i f  needed in certain cases 

Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now in your main aff idavi t ,  you 

deal  wi th LMT, the ent i ty known as LMT, correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And ul t imately,  LMT had a major i ty  

shareholding in that  company purchases by Denel .   Is that  

r ight? 20 

MR KNOETZE :    That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now what  was your involvement in 

re lat ion to the per iod to  when i t  was being acqui red,  when 

the shares were being sold to Denel ,  the major i ty shares?  

Were you involved in the background that  led up to the 
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contract  be ing signed that  sold those shares to Denel? 

MR KNOETZE :    Chai r,  i t  is a short  quest ion wi th  a long 

answer.   I  can – to make i t  a bi t  br ief .   I  can state that  dur ing 

the 2008/2009 per iod,  the courts(?) for the contract ,  for the 

Tr iennium Contract ,  we wi l l  ta lk about  maybe later,  was 

going through wi th regards to the Hoefyster Contract  to 

product ion order that  was ant ic ipated to be placed on DLS to 

the value of  approximately R 10 bi l l ion.    

 And my involvement was on management level ,  to make 

sure that  when we get  the order,  we wi l l  be ready for  10 

product ion.    

 And that  going forward,  we need to have the governance 

in place and wi th  the di fferent  board meet ings on DLS and 

Denel  s ide,  we need to adhere to the delegat ions as wel l  as 

the good governance to be able to make sure there is ei ther 

or,  as wi l l  become later v is ib le,  securi t ies and whatever is 

needed in the opt ion agreements when we acquired LMT 

later on.    

 But  at  f i rst ,  dur ing 2008/2009/2010, my involvement was 

mainly to get  involved through the request  by the CEO and 20 

Denel  and board members,  to get  involved in the f inancials 

of  LMT and to make sure that  they had a sound f inancial  

s i tuat ion going forward.    

 And speci f ical ly i f  we want to acquire the major i ty 51% 

shares,  we should make sure that  there is a sustainable 
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f inancial  business.    

 Later on,  when the share opt ion,  which was a di fferent  

process started,  i t  was mainly dr iven by Mr Morr is who 

previously worked for DPE and he was the person who real ly  

inst igat ing the execut ion of  the share opt ion.    

 A l though I  was very much involved in al l  of  the d i fferent  

discussion on the opt ion agreement  and support  to wherever 

I  had to,  whether  i t  was management or  to Mr Morr is  wi th an 

appl icat ion to DPE.   

 And Mr Morr is  was actual ly  the s ingle point  10 

accountabi l i ty person to do the fu l l  share opt ion execut ion by 

that  t ime Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay so Mr Knoetze,  before the shares 

were actual ly bought by Denel  in LMT.  Was LMT’s f inancia l  

st rength considered by you?  Did you look at  the f inancial  

posi t ion of  LMT? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  I  was requested to make sure that ,  due 

to,  at  that  t ime,  they were a cr i t ical  capabi l i ty,  s t rategic 

capabi l i ty  that  we needed to have securi ty of  supply.   And I  

was requested to intervene and see what the f inancial  20 

posi t ion are and whether they wi l l  be able to sustain the 

business going forward for the Hoefyster Cont ract ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now, LMT before i ts major i ty  shares 

were so ld to  Denel ,  was al ready a long exist ing supply to  

Denel .   Is that  r ight? 
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MR KNOETZE :    Just  repeat  Chai r.   I  missed the f i rst  part .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    LMT.  Before a major i ty share in LMT 

was sold to Denel .   LMT,  for some years,  had al ready been a 

suppl ier of  i tems of  equipment to Denel .   Correct? 

MR KNOETZE :    I  understand so Chai r.   I  was not  so 

involved previous years wi th LMT.  I  know they were a 

suppl ier for some t ime.  I  real ly became involved in thei r  

f inancial  affa i rs real ly when I  was asked to do sin 2008/2009.   

That  is so,  ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what  did you understand the 10 

purpose be to buy the shares,  for Denel  to buy the shares I  

LMT?   

MR KNOETZE :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What was the business object ive? 

MR KNOETZE :    Sorry,  Chai r.   The business object ive,  al l  

the way,  was that  DLS had a strategic object ive to combine 

capabi l i t ies for the industry to have a total  integrated system 

level  approach to our cl ients.    

 What that  means Chair  is that ,  we wanted to do a one-

stop,  a  single source suppl ier to any cl ient  local  or  overseas.   20 

And for that  Chai r,  we real ly wanted to have al l  capabi l i t ies 

of  a Level  5 business f rom start  to end into one business.    

 And for that  reason,  we have always presented to  the 

DLS and Denel  Boards and also speci f ical ly on our  budget 

presentat ions,  the posi t ion that  we wanted to have,  the 
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integrated capabi l i ty that  includes also the capabi l i t ies at  

LMT Chai r  and that  was our object ive.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now that  you say you have 

acted on the request  of  your management,  you did look into 

the f inancial  past (?) of  LMT before the shares were sold to 

Denel .   What,  overal l ,  was your conclusion?  What  was the 

outcome of  your f indings? 

MR KNOETZE :    Chai r,  I  th ink the two main issues that  came 

out  was.   The one was that  there was not  a big or good 

oversight  over the f inancials in LMT as they had not  have a 10 

speci f ic f inancial  person looking af ter the f inancials as i t  was 

a business that  was done by a few individuals or run by a 

few ind ividuals wi th not  much f inancial  knowledge.   

 And the other one si r,  Chai r  would be to have made sure 

and to have seen the r isk of  being then sustainable going 

forward and having had the f inancial  backing to execut ing 

the Hoefyster Contract  for the parables,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you have deal t  in your aff idavi t  

wi th monies that  were paid over  to  LMT as advance 

payments.   Are you aware of  any advance payments being 20 

made by DLS to LMT during the per iod you were CFO? 

MR KNOETZE :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now how much was paid and 

when? 

MR KNOETZE :    I t  was R 12.7 mi l l ion on a work-on-r isk 
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procurement,  work-on-r isk order  which was placed the 

29t h of  Apri l  2010.   And the monies that  was paid,  the 

R 12.7 mi l l ion was a 25% pre-payment on . . . [ indist inct ]  

[ t ransmission not  c lear  – speaker unclear]   R 52 mi l l ion rand 

work-on-r isk order to LMT.  And the monies were paid f rom 

up the 29t h of  Apr i l  2010 and a few weeks later,  the ful l  

complement update.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now some wi tnesses have g iven 

ev idence to  the  Commiss ion  tha t  the  advance payments  

made to  LMT were  someth ing  ou t  o f  the  ord inary,  tha t  they  10 

were  no t  t ru ly  advance payments ,  they were  ac tua l l y  rea l l y  

jus t  d isgu ised as  advance payments .   To  t ry  and channe l  

money to  LMT because i t  was in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t y.   What  

i s  your  own v iew o f  i t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  my v iew is  tha t  a f te r  the  in te rac t ion  

w i th  Dene l ,  DLS and Dene l  members  o f  the  board ,  var ious 

repor ts  were  g iven o f  the  s i tua t ion  a t  LMT wi th  regards to  

secur i t y  o f  supp ly  and poss ib le  pena l t ies  on  the  Hoefys ter  

cont rac t  as  we l l  as  the  IP tha t  was vested  in  LMT and they  

were  seen as  a  very  c r i t i ca l  s t ra teg ic  asset  and supp ly  and 20 

fo r  tha t  reason  we have var ious presenta t ions and  

d iscuss ions wh ich  is  a t tached as  some o f  the  annexures 

and d iscuss ion  whereby we p resented the  ca re  where  a  

work  on  r i sk  s i tua t ion  o rde r  wh ich  does not  ou t  o f  the 

norm,  i t  happened in  o ther  cases  fo r  long leave i tems as  
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we l l ,  i f  i t  was needed to  p lace  tha t  o rder  to  s ta r t  mak ing  

prepayments  so  tha t  there  is  s tab i l i t y  in  the  f inanc ia ls  and  

tha t  i t  i s  a  susta inab le  bus iness when the  Hoefys ter  does 

s ta r t  w i th  the  product ion  o f  10  b i l l i on  tha t  we have secur i t y  

o f  supp ly  and tha t  shou ld  be  ab le  to  p ro tec t  Dene l  in  the  

case o f  poss ib le  l a te  de l i ver ies ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was i t  –  i s  i t  no t  cor rec t ,  though,  tha t  

LMT was a t  tha t  s tage fac ing  ser ious f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies?  

MR KNOETZE:    They were  fac ing  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies ,  

Cha i r,  yes .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  what  ex ten t  -  was there  jus t  a  

shor t fa l l  in  cash f low or  was i t  a  mat te r  fa r  worse  than tha t ,  

tha t  i t s  own surv iva l  was a t  s take?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  i f  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  I  th ink  I  

had s t i l l  a  good  order  book.   I  th ink  there  was good  

bus iness.   I t  was main l y  I  th ink  tha t  the  past  where  they 

had a  very  growth  in  bus iness and ac tua l l y  I  th ink ,  i f  I  

reca l l  cor rec t l y,  they  were  go ing  too  fas t  to  be  ab le  to  fund 

spec i f i ca l l y  a l l  the  work ing  cap i ta l  requ i rements  fo r  the  

growth  in  bus iness and fo r  tha t  reason they ran  ou t  o f  20 

spec i f i ca l l y  cap i ta l  to  be  ab le  to  tu rn  the i r  work ing  cap i ta l  

in to  cash to  be  ab le  to  pay the i r  c red i to rs  fo r  the  shor t  

te rm and then the  longer  te rm susta inab le ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  I  can  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  

to  page 13,  jus t  bear  in  m ind the  gu idance g iven  to  you 
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ear l ie r,  the  top  le f t  hand page number,  page 13.  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  s i r,  Cha i r.   Cor rec t ,  I  am there ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you re fer  in  paragraph 7 .1  to  

approva l  be ing  g iven fo r  an  a t  r i sk  p roduct ion  order  and  

you rea l i sed tha t  a  payment  o f  R1 .1  m i l l ion  wou ld  need to  

be  pa id  be fore  the  end o f  Apr i l  2010.   That  was 1 .1 ,  

payab le  be fo re  the  end o f  Apr i l ,  co r rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then you go in  7 .2  to  say th is :  

“Dur ing  th is  p rocess o f  d iscuss ion  w i th  regards to  10 

the  f i rs t  payment  to  be  made to  LMT to  pay o f f  

Bus i sa  Investmen ts /Bowden and Company. ”  

Who were  they?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  I  m issed  the  las t  par t ,  who were  

they?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  who was  Bus isa  

Investments /Bowden and Company?  

MR KNOETZE:    I t  was,  as  fa r  as  I  can reca l l ,  a  company  

tha t  had g iven money and loaned money to  LMT and were  

request ing  pay back or  a l te rna t ive ly  they had c lauses  20 

where  they can ac tua l l y  ge t  the i r  f ingers  w i th in  LMT and  

take some spec i f i c  ac t ions aga ins t  LMT and a l so  demand 

some spec i f i c  p robab ly  share  go ing ,  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y.  

They had a  ho ld  on  LMT,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  LMT owed  them money,  co r rec t?  
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MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So r ry,  jus t  speak c lea r ly  p lease,  say  

i t  aga in?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And what  was tha t  money fo r?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  cannot  reca l l ,  Cha i r,  p robab ly  a l so  cash 

fo r  work ing  cap i t a l  to  pay cred i to rs  o r  the  normal  run  o f  the 

bus iness,  cash requ i rements .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   So Bus isa  Investments  and 

Bowden and Company had made  funds ava i lab le  to  LMT 10 

wh ich  now owed i t  back.   That  was  a  separa te  t ransact ion ,  

was i t  no t ,  f rom the  work  tha t  LMT was do ing  fo r  Dene l .  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t .   So I  can unders tand a  R1.1  

m i l l ion  be ing  payab le  as fo r  a t  r i sk  p roduct ion  in  te rms o f  

the  no rmal  a r rangements  by  the  end o f  Apr i l  2010 but  why  

was Dene l  look ing  a t  LMT and i t s  ob l iga t ion  to  Bus isa  

Investments /Bowden  and Company?  Why was the re  

cons idera t ion  be ing  g iven to  Dene l  money be ing  made 

ava i lab le  to  LMT which  wou ld  then  pass i t  on  to  Bus isa  and 20 

Bowden?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  the  dec is ion  was a lways made and 

we d id  the  presen ta t ions and d iscuss ions is  tha t  there  were  

no t  jus t  th is  1 .1  bu t  there  were  a  few cr i t i ca l  payments  tha t  

had to  be  made  by  LMT to  be  ab le  to  on  the  shor t  to  
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med ium term to  be  on the  r igh t  t rack  in  te rms o f  the  cash 

f low f rom work ing  cap i ta l  perspect ive .   As  fa r  as  I  can 

remember  there  were  a lso  SARS payments  tha t  they were  

in  de fau l t ,  so  there  was spec i f i c  amounts  tha t  were  

d iscussed on our  board  mee t ings and management  

meet ings where  there  were  mon ies  to  be  pa id  to  take  them 

through the  d i f f i cu l t  to  ge t  to  the  po in t  where  they can s tar t  

un lock ing  some o f  the  work ing  cap i ta l  in  s tock  and debtors  

to  be  ab le  to  go  fo rward  aga in  and  execute  the  res t  o f  the i r  

bus iness susta inab ly,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  you wou ld  have had a  con t rac t  –  

DLS wou ld  have had a  cont rac t  w i th  LMT fo r  the  product ion  

o f  the  par t i cu la r  i tems concerned,  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  wou ld  have invo lved 

agreement  on  the  pr i ce ,  what  amount  had to  be  pa id ,  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    R igh t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And a t  wha t  s tage d i f fe ren t  por t ions  

o f  the  pr i ce  wou ld  have to  be  pa id .   So much wou ld  be  pa id  20 

on x  da te ,  so  much wou ld  be  pa id  on  y  da te ,  e tce te ra .   

Cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  t he  norm to  have in  a  cont rac t ,  

yes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Indeed.   Now why d id  you no t  s imp ly  
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make funds ava i l ab le  to  LMT tak ing  account  o f  wha t  Dene l  

had to  pay LMT in  te rms o f  tha t  o rder  o r  cont rac t?   Why 

was there  even  d iscuss ion  about  LMT’s  prob lems in  

re la t ion  to  i t s  c red i to rs  and i t s  supp l ie rs  and 

Bus isa /Bowden and i t s  take  l iab i l i ty,  e tce tera ,  why was tha t  

be ing  taken in to  account  by  Dene l  in  dec id ing  on  an 

advance payment?  

MR KNOETZE:    The on ly  poss ib le  so lu t ion  in  such a  case 

w i th  secur i t y  o f  supp ly,  supp l ie r  tha t  were  in  d i f f i cu l t y,  was  

on th is  exact  me thod o f  p lac ing  a  work  on  r i sk  and then 10 

la te r  then the  approva l ,  wh ich  is  t he  secur i t y,  wh ich  is  the 

p lacement  o f  the  product ion  o rder  o f  R10 b i l l i on  f rom 

Armscor  and fo r  tha t  reason we used the  process to  do  the  

work  on  r i sk  as  d iscussed th rough a l l  the  execut ives  and 

peers  w i th in  the  env i ronment  to  do  i t  on  a  proper  way in  

wh ich  i t  can  be accounted fo r  la te r  and not  jus t  send ing  

money f rom le f t  to  r igh t  bu t  to  have a  p roper  d iscuss ion  i n  

te rms o f  wh ich  is  the  best  way to  channe l  payments  in  a  

proper  way and then i f  the  Hoefys ter  p roduct ion  order  does 

ar r i ve  i t  cou ld  be  hand led  appropr ia te ly  and p roper ly,  20 

Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So am I  r igh t  in  th is  unders tand ing  o f  

the  approach tha t  was adopted,  because LMT was 

f inanc ia l l y  in  some d i f f i cu l t y  and  there  was a  danger  tha t  

cont inued supp ly  f rom LMT fo r  you r  very  impor tan t  
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Hoefys ter  p ro jec t  cou ld  be  in  danger  due to  the i r  f inanc ia l  

d i f f i cu l t ies  you and your  co l leagues agreed to  s t ruc ture  the  

payments  to  them in  a  way wh ich  wou ld  go  beyond what  

the  cont rac tua l  te rms fo r  payment  were ,  i t  was rea l l y  to  

ass is t  them to  ge t  payment  ear l ie r  than they m ight  

o therw ise  have got  so  tha t  they d id  no t  co l lapse f inanc ia l l y  

and then the  supp ly  to  Dene l  wou ld  be  in  danger.   I s  my 

unders tand ing  co r rec t ,  Mr  Knoetze? 

MR KNOETZE:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  w i th  a lso  –  jus t  a  l i t t le  

b i t  to  add to  tha t  i s ,  and dur ing  th is  d iscuss ions hav ing  the 10 

process o f  work  on  th is  approva l  and the  up f ron t  secur i t y  

o f  supp ly,  the  idea was a l so  then  when la te r  when  we get  

the  –  or  para l le l  to  ge t t ing  the  product ion  order  fo r  

Hoefys ter  o f  10  b i l l i on ,  we need  to secure  an  opt ion  to  

purchase then to  a lso  sa feguard  and put  the  secur i ty  in  

p lace  to  ac tua l l y  execute  the  op t ion  ag reement  la te r  on  as  

spec i f i c  purchas ing  whereby our  money wou ld  be  sa fe  w i th  

the  necessary  secur i t ies  to  be  pu t  in  p lace  by  tha t  t ime 

a lso ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  is  my  unders tand ing  cor rec t ,  20 

there  were  two ways tha t  Dene l  ident i f ied  as  secur ing  the  

supp ly  to  t ry  and  min im ise  the  danger  o f  f inanc ia l  co l lapse 

o f  LMT,  the  one  was to  res t ruc ture  the  ar rangements  so  

tha t  i t  wou ld  ge t  some money upf ron t ,  in  advance,  on  the  

bas is  tha t  we have a l ready dea l t  w i th ,  a t  r i sk  p roduct ion  
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o rde r.   And the  o ther  was to  purchase a  major i t y  

shareho ld ing  in  LMT i t se l f ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   Now i f  you look  

s t i l l  a t  page 13,  your  parag raph  7 .2 ,  you dea l  w i th  the  

d iscuss ions tha t  took p lace in  re la t ion  to  the  f i rs t  payment  

had been to  LMT to  pay o f f  Bus i sa  and Bowden,  wh ich  we 

have d iscussed  a l ready,  i t  says  tha t  yourse l f  and Mr  

Teubes had d i scuss ions w i th  Mr  Burger  to  exp lore  the  

op t ion  o f  a  f i rs t  payment  to  be  made before  the  end o f  Apr i l  10 

2010.   Now is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you and Mr  Teubes together  

w i th  Mr  Burger  p layed in  a  lead ing  ro le  in  re la t ion  to  th is  

a r rangement  fo r  ear l y  payment  o f  LMT to  t ry  and he lp  i t  ou t  

o f  i t s  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies?  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  bu t  as  I  a lso  s ta ted  

somewhere  in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  we a lways kept  the 

management  team par t  o f  th is  d iscuss ions and i t  was rea l l y  

de l ibe ra t ions a t  our  management  team but  we a lso  i nvo lved 

def in i te ly  the  lega l  person in  DLS  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  as  

we l l  as  the  lega l  and p lann ing  execut ives  f rom the  20 

corpo ra te  o f f i ce  cont inuous ly ,  Cha i r .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   In  fac t ,  I  unders tand  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  we have jus t  gone by  two minutes  

past  the  tea  break.   Sha l l  we take  the  tea  break now? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  the  tea  break and resume a t  

twenty  f i ve  to  twe lve .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Knoe tze ,  a re  

you ab le  to  hear  us?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  can ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Can I  take  you to  page –  

Mr  Knoetze ,  I  unders tand tha t  there  was one annexure  tha t  

was not  f i xed  up  th rough your  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  bu t  

has now be ing  f i xed  up.   I f  I  can  take  you to  what  Mr  

Kunene has sen t  you,  I  unders tand.   I t  i s  the  board  

meet ing  ex t rac t  f rom the  15 Apr i l  2010 tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  in  

your  a f f idav i t  and  I  unders tand,  Cha i r,  tha t  i t  has  been sent  20 

to  the  w i tness and now appears  a t  page 52.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR KNOETZE:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  the  board  meet ing  o f  

–  Cha i r,  board  meet ing  o f  when? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    15  Apr i l  2010 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    15  Apr i l  2010.  

MR KNOETZE:    As  ye t ,  un t i l  today,  I  have not  seen tha t ,  I  

have requested i t  f rom Dene l  p rev ious ly,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  have  

not  seen -  the  reco l lec t ion  I  had  in  my a f f idav i t  i s  what  I  

cou ld  remember  or  reca l l  f rom those meet ings bu t  I  have 

not  seen i t  un t i l  today.   I  have requested fo r  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Have you …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you  rece ived i t  f rom the  

Commiss ion  now? 

MR KNOETZE:    I  have not .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You have not  rece ived i t?  

MR KNOETZE:    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  I  have been to ld  i t  has  been  

sent  to  the  w i tness,  pe rhaps i t  has  no t  come th rough the  

emai l  ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  perhaps,  Mr  Knoetze ,  w i l l  you 

p lease a f te r  the  hear ing  –  may I  suggest  th is  Cha i r,  sub jec t  

to  your  gu idance? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  suggest  to  you,  Mr  Knoetze ,  

tha t  a f te r  the  hear ing  you go th rough what  has j us t  been 

recent ly  to  you by  emai l  and jus t  conf i rm tha t  what  has  

been sent  to  you is  in  fac t  the  m inutes  o f  tha t  board  

meet ing  o f  the  15  Apr i l  2010 and i f  i t  i s  cor rec t  then you do  
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no t  need to  come back to  –  we l l ,  perhaps you shou ld  emai l  

the  lega l  team and say yes,  I  conf i rm tha t  what  Mr  Kunene  

has sent  me is  in  fac t  the  cor rec t  document .   I f  i t  is  no t ,  i f  

you  can te l l  us ,  p lease,  and then we w i l l  have i t  cor rec ted .   

Cha i r,  I  hope tha t  tha t  w i l l  be  in  o rde r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  be  in  o rder  bu t  I  see tha t  i t  i s  

rea l l y  what ,  th ree  pages?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  i t  i s  four  o r  f i ve  pages,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  seems tha t  the  substant ive  page is  10 

on ly  ac tua l l y  one –  can I  say  substant ive l y  a  fu l l  page?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may be tha t  depend ing  on where  we  

w i l l  be  by  l uncht ime,  i t  may be tha t  i t  m igh t  be  conven ien t  

i f  dur ing  the  lunch break he has a  look a t  i t ,  when we come 

back he  conf i rms or  whatever.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  i f  we f in ish  w i th  h im much  ear l ie r  

maybe i f  we take  f i ve  m inutes ,  seven minutes ,  he  can look 

a t  i t  and we come back and he can conf i rm and then he is  20 

done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i r,  tha t  shou ld  

work  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ve ry  much.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  Mr  Knoetze ,  when you are  

f in ished w i th  your  ev idence i f  you can jus t  look  a t  what  has 

been sent  jus t  to  conf i rm and we w i l l  be  in  touch w i th  you 

as  we l l  dur ing  tha t  per iod .   You may have to  come back 

on l ine  today jus t  fo r  a  m inute  or  so  to  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  

tha t  th is  i s  the  document  tha t  you  were  re fer r ing  to  in  your  

a f f idav i t .   I s  tha t  okay?  

MR KNOETZE:    I t  i s  cor rec t  w i th  me,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ine ,  thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Now I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  go  back,  i f  I  may,  to  the  d iscuss ion  we were  hav ing  

about  the  prepayments  to  LMT and the  reason why these 

were  made.   Was  i t  appropr ia te  and was i t  regu la r  –  was i t  

in  accordance  w i th  the  law  and  w i th  the  processes a t  

Dene l ,  as  you unders tood them,  to  make an ea r ly  payment  

to  LMT ear l ie r  than what  i t  was ent i t led  to  in  te rms o f  the  

cont rac t  o r  o rder  so  tha t  you cou ld  ass is t  i t  in  i t s  f inanc ia l  

d i f f i cu l t ies?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  i f  in  th is  case on the  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  i t  was qu i te  c lear  a f te r  hav ing  d i scuss ions w i th  

the  board  members  and Mr  Fuk i l e  Mhlont lo  and Mr  Tu l l y,  i t  

was qu i te  c lear  t ha t  in  the  case o f  a  work  and r i sk  approva l  

fo r  a  s i tua t ion  l i ke  th is  tha t  i s  o rde r  in  advance o f  rece iv ing  
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a  sa les  orde r  fo r  a  cont rac t  l i ke  Hoefys te r,  the  requ i rement  

o r  the  cond i t ion  wou ld  be  tha t  they needed to  be  then  

spec i f i ca l l y  secur i t ies  in  p lace  to  cover  the  company o r  to  

p ro tec t  the  company i f  the  supp l ie r  o r,  in  th is  case,  LMT 

wou ld  go  down and i t  was accepted and i t  was a  de legat ion  

o f  au thor i t y  tha t  was w i th in  the  DLS board  mandate  on  

opera t iona l  mat te rs  to  go  th rough th is  way o f  p repayment  

bu t  w i th  p roper  secur i t ies  l i ke  we have done  fo r  the  

d i f fe ren t  payments  to  LMT,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you d i scuss the  r i sks  tha t  were  10 

a t tached to  the  ear l y  payment  tha t  was made?  D id  you  

d iscuss tha t  w i th  your  co l leagues  on Exco,  the  f inanc ia l  

r i sks  tha t  there  may have been?  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  in  ac tua l  fac t  we had var ious 

d iscuss ions on  the  d i f fe ren t  r i sks  as  i s  a lso  –  can be seen 

f rom the  7  May 2010 minutes  o f  the  DLS board  mee t ing  bu t  

we a l so  had d i scuss ions -  when the  due d i l igence was done 

by  KPMG,  i t  was  presenta t ions made by  KPMG to  d iverse  

team f rom DLS and f rom co rpora te  o f f i ce  and DCO mean ing 

the  lega l  peop le  were  presented  and/or  p resent  and a l so  20 

the  f inanc ia l  peop le  f rom DCO to  unders tand tha t  s i tua t ion 

around LMT and  the  r i sk  invo lved so  tha t  we take an  

in fo rmed dec is ion  w i th  management  in  tha t  regard ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  you in  the  papers  to  page 

89?   
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MR KNOETZE:    89 ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now am I  cor rec t  in  unders tand ing  

tha t  what  fo l lows f rom page 89 is  a  repor t  f rom KPMG.  

MR KNOETZE:    Jus t  to  make su re ,  a re  we on 39 o r  89?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    89 ,  sor ry,  89 .  

MR KNOETZE:    I  am jus t  go ing  to  go  to  89 .   I t  i s  cor rec t ,   

Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  KPMG – one o f  the  repor ts  f rom KPMG that  

was g iven to  Dene l  on  our  in tegra ted  meet ings  on  the  

f inances,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  on  your  in tegra ted  what?  10 

MR KNOETZE:    When we d iscussed and requested  KPMG 

to  do  the  f inanc ia l  due d i l igence,  they have to  make 

presenta t ions to  a  mul t i - func t iona l  team o f  DLS and DCO 

and th i s  was the  repor t  tha t  was  presented to  a l l  o f  the 

peop le  tha t  was present  in  the  meet ings when we  

d iscussed the  d i f fe ren t  po in ts  f rom KPMG,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was th i s  a  due d i l igence repor t  

p repared by  KPMG at  the  request  o f  Dene l  to  check the  

due d i l igence o f  LMT to  see whether  i t  was su i tab le  to  have 

i t s  ma jor i t y  shareho ld ing  pu rchased by  Dene l?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   And do you agree  tha t  the  

KPMG repor t  in  fac t  ident i f ied  a  number  o f  fac tors ,  a  

number  o f  i ssues  tha t  were  o f  some concern  in  re la t ion  to  

the  f inanc ia l  s t rength  o f  LMT.  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 54 of 213 
 

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    For  example ,  they ident i f ied  concern  

tha t  there  had been a  d i s to r t ion  o f  g ross  p ro f i tab i l i t y  and 

as  a  resu l t  one cou ld  no t  re l y  on  the  repor ted  pro f i tab i l i t y.   

A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  was ment ioned,  Cha i r,  and tha t  was 

where  we had var ious d iscuss ions on  how we cou ld  ge t  

invo l ved to  unders tand the  f inanc ia ls  be t te r  to  make sure  

we take an in fo rmed dec is ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and then they re fer red  to  a 10 

prepayment  f rom Dene l  o f  14 .5  m i l l ion  and another  1 .2  

m i l l ion  f rom Pat r ia .   They dea l t  w i th  tha t .   Was there  in  fac t  

14 .5  m i l l i on  made  as  a  prepayment  by  Dene l?  

MR KNOETZE:    None,  Cha i r.   I  assume tha t  cou ld  be  VAT 

inc luded maybe on the  12 .7 ,  i t  cou ld  be  the  VAT por t ion ,  

Cha i r.   I  am not  sure ,  i t  cou ld  be  the  VAT por t ion  inc luded.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see ,  yes .   And they ident i f ied  

concern  tha t  th is  was inc luded in  LMT’s  books as  be ing  

defer red  income.   You are  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  cannot  reca l l  tha t ,  Cha i r,  I  am so r ry,  no ,  20 

I  cannot  reca l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And they a lso  ident i f ied  a 

concern  tha t  LMT wou ld  requ i re  a  cap i ta l  in jec t ion  o f  a t  

leas t  R43.4  m i l l ion .  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   I  am sor ry,  Cha i r,  may I  jus t  

have a  moment?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   So,  Mr  Knoetze ,  these  

concerns tha t  you acknowledge  were  pu t  in  the  due  

d i l igence repor t  by  KPMG,  su re ly  they ra i sed some a la rm  

be l l s  on  your  par t  as  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  a t  tha t  t ime o f  

DLS,  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And,  nonethe less ,  you approved and 10 

mot iva ted  –  sor ry,  you recommended,  ra ther,  fo r  approva l  

the  purchase by  Dene l  o f  a  majo r i t y  sha reho ld ing  i n  LMT.  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  jus t  a  co r rec t ion  on  tha t .   I  was  

most ly  invo lved d i rec t l y  in  the  prepayment  and the  work  on  

r i sk  spec i f i c  o rde r  wh ich  was invest iga ted  by  or  requested 

by  the  team but  spec i f i ca l l y  on  the  51% opt ion  

shareho ld ing  I  was par t  o f  –  on ly  one person as  par t  o f  a  

much b igger  team than ac tua l l y  made the  dec i s ion  to  

acqu i re  the  op t ion  and to  execute  the  op t ion  la te r  on  tha t  

had to  fo l low a  to ta l  d i f fe ren t  p rocess wh ich  had to  go  to  20 

Dene l  board  and to  the  m in is te r  fo r  approva l ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  cer ta in ly  accept ,  Mr  Knoetze ,  

tha t  you were  no t  the  on ly  person  and in  fac t  you d id  no t  

have the  power  a t  your  l eve l  to  make any f ina l  dec is ion  on  

the  purchase o f  those shares in  LMT,  cor rec t?  
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MR KNOETZE:    I t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you d id  p lay  a  ro le  in  look ing  in to  

the  f inanc ia l  s t rength  o f  LMT,  no t  so?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was fo r  purposes o f  

cons ider ing  whether  i t  was a  good idea f rom a  bus iness  

and f inanc ia l  r i sk  po in t  o f  v iew fo r  Dene l  to  purchase the  

major i t y  shareho ld ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you in  fac t ,  I  unders tand ,  in  fac t  10 

s igned the  le t te r  o f  engagement  w i th  KPMG for  them to  do  

the  due d i l igence  repor t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  unders tand  tha t  Investec  were  a lso  

invo l ved as  t ransact ion  adv isers  fo r  purpose o f  the  

t ransact ion  fo r  the  purchase o f  the  LMT shareho ld ing ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And were  you invo lvement  in  the 

appo in tment  o f  Investec  then fo r  tha t  ro le?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    As  fa r  as  I  can reca l l ,  Cha i r,  the  Investec  

had gone th rough  a  supp ly  cha in  p rocess a t  DLS and w i th in  

tha t  p rocess we had present  the  lega l  team f rom DCO,  the 

f inance and a lso  the  d i f fe ren t  representa t i ves  f rom DLS 

and they were  subsequent ly  appo in ted  as  the  adv i sers ,  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 57 of 213 
 

Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now,  I  unders tand –  you have 

to ld  the  Cha i rperson about  why you fe l t  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  

advance payments  o f  about  R12  mi l l ion  were  LMT was 

jus t i f ied  and the  r i sks  were  p roper ly  addressed but  la te r  –  

have you now,  as  you s i t  now,  g iv ing  ev idence be fore  the  

Learned Cha i rperson o f  the  Commiss ion ,  you now fee l  tha t  

in  re t rospect ,  w i th  h inds igh t ,  i t  was ac tua l l y  a  good 

acqu is i t ion  fo r  Dene l  to  have  purchased a  major i t y  

shareho ld ing  in  LMT f rom a  f inanc ia l  po in t  o f  v iew?  10 

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  i f  I  was in  the  same pos i t ion  today 

as  I  was a t  tha t  t ime w i th  a l l  the  ev idence in  f ron t  o f  me,  

w i th  a l l  the  adv ice  I  had f rom Investec ,  my peers ,  my 

superv i sors ,  the  DCO spec ia l i s t  in  te rms o f  the  s t ra tegy o f  

Dene l  and DLS go ing  fo rward ,  the  execut ion  o f  a  R10  

b i l l i on  cont rac t  w i th  subsequent  pena l t ies  fo r  –  and s tar t ing  

o f f  w i th  the  la te  de l i very  wh ich  wou ld  be  ten  t imes  or  more  

worse  than hav ing  invested  some money in  a  c r i t i ca l  

s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r  I  w i l l  p robab ly  do  the  same and make the  

same dec is ion  today,  Cha i r.    20 

 And then,  second ly,  I  th ink  i f  Dene l  had thereaf te r,  

a f te r  acqu i r ing  the  op t ion  or  acqu i r ing  the  51%,  Cha i r,  have 

done what  we needed to  do  in  te rms o f  p roper  in tegra t ion  

and management  o f  the  in tegra ted  fac i l i t i es  and what  

needed to  be  done,  l i ke  we env i saged,  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  have  
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been a  b ig  success s to ry  fo reve r  thereaf te r.   Tha t  i s  my 

cur ren t  s ta tement  on  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  tha t  in  fac t  d id  no t  happen,  d id  

i t?   LMT has ac tua l l y  cont inued to  s t rugg le ,  no t  so?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  d i f f i cu l t  to  say.   I  go t  less  i nvo lved 

a f te r  the  PFMA approva l ,  they  were  s t i l l  a  bus iness,  they 

were  opera t ing ,  they were  do ing  –  they were  ac tua l l y  

keep ing  the i r  o rders  in  the  years  2012/ ’13  bu t  I  go t  much  

less  invo lved and  when the  in tegra t ion  took p lace and the  

op t ion  was then acqu i red  or  executed,  the  in tegra t ion  took 10 

p lace a t  DCO and i t  was subsequent ly  managed f rom 

thereon fu r ther.   So my invo lvement  was very,  ve ry  less  

thereaf te r  a f te r  the  acqu is i t ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  to  

page 25?   

MR KNOETZE:    I  am jus t  qu ick l y  go ing  to  25 ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you have tha t?   Do you have tha t ,  

Mr  Knoetze?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  am a lmost  there ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  20 

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You say in  12 .1  under  the  head ing :  

“How was the  prepayment  used by  LMT?  The R12.7  

m i l l ion  prepayment  was a  dec i s ion  by  the  DLS 

board  as  an  a t  r i sk  p roduct ion  o rder  p laced on LMT 
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to  ensure  secur i t y  o f  supp ly  on  the  Hoefys ter  

cont rac t . ”  

Now the  DLS board  is  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  Exco,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you s i t t ing  on  the  DLS board  a t  

th is  t ime?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  was,  Cha i r. ,  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  your  capac i ty  as  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  you sa t  on  the  board ,  co r rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  unders tand  tha t  a t  the  leve l  o f  Exco  

you –  sor ry,  Mr  Burger  your  CEO and yourse l f  as  CFO and 

Mr  Teubes as  your  co-execut ive ,  you were  rea l l y  t he  main  

p layers ,  as  i t  were ,  on  Exco,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  and p robab ly  

because o f  our  in te rac t ion  as  th is  was the  th ree  o f  us  who 

were  rep resent ing  the  management  team a t  the  board  leve l  

o f  board  meet ings as  inv i tees.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So am I  co r rec t  in  

unders tand ing  you p layed a  lead ing  ro le  a long w i th  the  two  20 

o ther  men tha t  I  have jus t  ment ioned in  tak ing  the  dec i s ion  

to  recommend to  the  board  tha t  th is  advance payment  be  

approved?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t?   And then you sa t  on  the 
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boa rd  i t se l f  tha t  then d id  approve  the  t ransact ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Teubes,  was he a lso  s i t t ing 

on  the  board  a t  the  t ime? 

MR KNOETZE:    As  an  inv i tee ,  as  fa r  as  I  can remember,  

cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Burger  was too ,  no t  so?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then a t  page  26 your  10 

a f f idav i t  re fe rs  in  paragraph 12.3  to  the  cash in jec t ion  how 

i t  was used by  LMT.   I t  was used to  pay the i r  c red i to rs  and  

to  fund cu r ren t  opera t ions fo r  max imum product ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  how LMT used the  payments .   

Would  you agree  tha t  i f  LMT had  not  been fac ing  ser ious  

f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies  you wou ld  have not  a r ranged the  R12 

mi l l ion  advance payments .   The on ly  reason why you were  

mak ing  ava i lab le  the  12  mi l l ion  up f ron t  as  an  advance  20 

payment ,  the  so-ca l led  advance payment  was because they  

were  in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies .   I f  they  had not  been in  

f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies  there  wou ld  have been no need to  pay  

them the  12 mi l l ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  the  main  ob jec t i ve  was tha t  we  
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needed to  have a  susta inab le  bus iness in  them to  be  ab le  

to  p ro tec t  the  IP tha t  was vested  in  them and to  have the  

secur i t y  o f  supp ly  and fo r  tha t  reason I  was requested by  

no t  jus t  the  management  team and the  CEO of  DLS but  

a lso  by  DCO and the  board  members  a f te r  care fu l  

d iscuss ions and  cons ide ra t ions to  ge t  invo lved  and to 

de termine the  r i sk  assoc ia ted  w i th  th is  and the  payment  

was mere ly  a  method o f  ge t t ing  to  the  u l t imate  ob jec t i ve  

tha t  we needed to  ge t  fo r  secur i t y  o f  supp ly.   That  was the  

main  ob jec t i ve  a l l  the  way a long,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    i f  I  unders tand your  cor rec t l y  and  

p lease co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  because I  unders tand i t ,  

when i t  became apparent  tha t  LMT was in  f inanc ia l  

d i f f i cu l t ies  there  was a  concern  on  the  pa r t  o f  head o f f i ce  

and DLS management  tha t  i f  LMT fa i l s  f inanc ia l l y  because  

o f  i t s  w ide r  f inanc ia l  p rob lems,  then we a re  a t  r i sk ,  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And one o f  those r i sks  wou ld  be  an 

IP r i sk ,  cor rec t ,  and in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  r i sk ,  co r rec t?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And o the r  r i sks  too .   There  wou ld  be  

a  cont inu i t y  o f  supp ly.   There  wou ld  be  an in te r rup t ion  in  

supp ly  p rob lem,  no t  so?  I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  i f  they  had been f inanc ia l l y  

s t rong and a t  no  r i sk  o f  f inanc ia l  co l lapse,  these concerns  

about  in te r rup t ing  supp ly  and in te l lec tua l  p roper t y  wou ld  

no t  have a r isen,  no t  so?  

MR KNOETZE:    Most  p robab ly,  Cha i r,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   Cha i r,  may I  jus t  

have a  moment  to  confe r  w i th  my team? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Jus t  a  few  

quest ions,  i f  I  may,  jus t  to  conc lude your  ev idence,  Mr  10 

Knoetze .   Can I  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  –  jus t  f ind  the  

page –  yes,  i t  i s  a t  page 10,  ze ro  one zero .  

MR KNOETZE:    Go ing ,  Cha i r,  to  page 10.   Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  read in to  the 

record  a  parag raph or  two o f  you r  a f f idav i t  so  we get  the  

contex t .   You are  here  dea l ing  w i th  the  advance payment  to  

LMT.   In  6 .15  you  say:  

“The who le  process o f  p lac ing  an  order  on  LMT was 

d iscussed w i th  Mr  Morr i s . ”  

I t  i s  the  same Mr  Mor r is  you ment ioned ear l ie r,  i s  tha t  20 

r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Mh lont lo ,  he  was then Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Off i cer  o f  the  group a t  head o f f i ce  leve l ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  
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MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  is  ev ident  th rough 

communica t ions –  and you re fer  t o  annexures.  

“Mr  Mor r is  was  comfor tab le  w i th  the  process  

fo l lowed. ”  

Mr  Morr i s  was the  s t ra tegy PFMA compl iance and equ i ty  

t ransact ion  spec ia l i s t .   That  was a lso  a t  head  o f f i ce ,  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then i t  says :  10 

“He worked w i th  DPE. ”  

That  i s  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises,  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    As  fa r  as  I  can reca l l ,  tha t  he  was h is  –  he  

was a t  DPE prev ious ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  he had been there  fo r  many  

years ,  you r  a f f idav i t  says .    

MR KNOETZE:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he made i t  c lear  and here  I  am 

read ing  in  6 .16 :  

“Mr  Morr i s  made  i t  c lear  tha t  the  LMT prepayment  20 

was to  be  secured w i th  LMT assets  and not  on ly  the  

share  op t ion .   He  a lso  separa ted  the  two mat te rs  o r  

the  order  p lacements  and the  exe rc ise  o f  the  share  

op t ion .   He made  i t  c lear  in  h is  emai l  tha t  there  i s  

no  PFMA p rocess  tha t  needs to  be  fo l lowed fo r  the  
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p lacement  o f  the  R51 mi l l ion  a t  r i sk  o rde r  on  LMT 

and i t s  subsequent  p repayment  and tha t  i t  i s  a  

mat te r  tha t  can be dea l t  w i th  by  the  DLS board .   

The exerc i se  o f  the  share  op t ion  was a  d i f fe ren t  

mat te r  and fu r the r  due d i l igence needed to  be  done  

accord ing  to  h im and tha t  Dene l  board  approva l  and 

PFMA approva l  was needed in  th is  regard . ”  

That  i s  the  share  op t ion  par t .   But  the  prepayment ,  the  a t  

r i sk  o rder  p lacement  you say he  sa id  you d id  no t  need to  –  

you had no d i f f i cu l t ies  i n  re la t ion  to  the  PFMA,  i s  tha t  10 

r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  is  no  PFMA process.   Now 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second?  Where  you say in  

tha t  paragraph,  namely  6 .16 ,  a t  the  end thereof ,  you sa id :  

“The exerc ise  o f  the  share  op t ion  was a  d i f fe ren t  

mat te r  and fu r the r  due d i l igence needed to  be  done  

accord ing  to  h im and tha t  Dene l  board  approva l  and 

PFMA approva l  was needed in  th is  regard . ”  20 

Is  tha t  approva l  meant  to  be  process because i f  i t  i s  meant  

to  be  approva l ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  know whose approva l  wou ld  

i t  have been.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank  you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Knoetze ,  

a t  the  end o f  paragraph 6 .17  you re fer  to  approva ls  be ing  
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requ i red  fo r  the  share  op t ion  par t .   Do you see tha t ,  r igh t  

a t  the  end o f  6 .16? 

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you sa id  tha t  accord ing  to  h im,  

tha t  i s  Dene l  –  so r ry,  Morr i s ,  acco rd ing  to  h im:  

“ . . tha t  Dene l  board  approva l  and PFMA approva l  

was needed in  th i s  regard”  

Now Dene l  board  approva l  we unders tand but  who wou ld  

have to  g ive  approva l  under  the  PFMA? 

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r,  as  s t ipu la ted  prev ious ly  o r  10 

d iscussed,  the  work  on  r i sk  approva l  was separa te  process 

tha t  had to  be  dea l t  w i th  a t  DLS board  and w i th  in te rac t ion  

w i th  a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  representa t i ves  f rom the  group but  

spec i f i ca l l y  on  –  s ta t ing  in  6 .17 ,  the  op t ion  and spec i f i ca l l y  

the  exerc i s ing  o f  the  op t ion  was a  PFMA approva l  t ha t  had 

to  go  to  the  Dene l  –  no t  DLS but  Dene l  board  w i th  p roper  

p resenta t ion  and  then an app l i ca t ion  thereaf te r  to  DPE or  

the  m in is te r  fo r  a  fo rmal  m in is te r ia l  approva l  be fore  the  

op t ion  can be executed to  acqu i re  the  51% shareho ld ing ,  

Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  tha t  –  sor ry,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  the  re fe rence to  

approva l  in  tha t  las t  l ine  o f  paragraph 6 .17  was in tended  

by  you,  as  you  unders tood what  Mr  Mor r is  sa id ,  was 

in tended to  re fer  to  approva l ,  no t  p rocess?  Can you see  
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the  las t  l ine  o f  pa rag raph 6 .16?  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  was revea led  to  us  by  Mr  

Morr i s  spec i f i ca l l y  s ince  he has  been aware  –  he  was  

aware  o f  the  process tha t  had to  be  fo l lowed on Dene l  

board ,  a f te r  approva ls ,  on  de legat ions as  we l l  as  the  PFMA 

approva l  tha t  was  in  h is  op in ion  the  way to  go  ahead in  the  

fo rmal  approva l  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And-  tha t  PFMA wel l  the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  

a t t rac ted  my a t ten t ion  to  tha t  las t  par t  o f  parag raph 6 ,  

po in t  16  is  tha t  ear l ie r  in  the  paragraph you sa id  Mr  Morr is  10 

sa id  there  was  no PFMA process tha t  needed to  be  

fo l lowed fo r  the  p lacement  o f  the  R51mi l l ion  a t  r i sk  o rder  

on  LMT and i t s  subsequent  p re-payment .    I s  tha t ,  i s  what  

you are  ta l k ing  about  in  tha t  las t  l ine  as  PFMA approva l ,  

does i t  no t  re la te  to  the  same t ransact ion ,  because i f  i t  

does i t  wou ld  seem to  c rea te  some incons is tency  be tween 

what  you unders tood Mr  Morr i s  to  say because i f  there  was 

no PFMA process needed there  cou ld  no t  be  any PFMA 

approva l  requ i red  I  wou ld  imag ine .  

 D id  you unders tand what  I  say,  you unders tand? 20 

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r  the  paragraph shou ld  be  read in  two 

par t s  o f  two d i f fe ren t  p rocesses as  the  f i rs t  par t  wh ich  I  

re fe r red  to  as  the  R51mi l l ion  r i sk  and o rde r  w i th  the 

appropr ia te  or  the  subsequent  p re -payment  o f  R12.7mi l l ion  

was on the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  no  Dene l  Board  
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app rova l ,  no  PFMA process and  cou ld  be  dec ided and  

approved by  the  DLS Board  w i th  in te rac t ion  f rom a l l  the 

d i f fe ren t  s takeho lders  on  DCO.    

That  was not  l inked and ac tua l l y  two to ta l  separa te  

processes a l though they cou ld  rank pa ra l le l  i t  was  a  to ta l  

separa te  p rocess  tha t  cou ld  be  approved on DLS  Board  

leve l  to  pu t  the  r i sk  on  order  and a lso  to  make the  pre-

payments .   The second por t ion  wh ich  i s  the  las t  par t ,  the  

la t te r  par t  o f  6 .16  re fers  spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  op t ions 

spec i f i ca l l y  the  51% shareho ld ing  op t ion  wh ich  was 10 

a l together  a  to ta l  d i f fe ren t  p rocess because what  needs to  

happen the re  i s  there  needs to  be  a  p roper  mot iva t ion  to  

the  Dene l  Board  and  recommended to  the  Dene l  Board  to  

be  approved by  the  Dene l  Board  to  go  to  the  Min is te r  tha t  

needs to  g ive  a  fo rmal  approva l  bu t  spec i f i ca l l y  under  

share  op t ion  agreement  to  be  executed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see I  unders tand a l l  o f  tha t  bu t  on ly  

i f  you  go up to  Dene l  approva l  be fore  and PFMA approva l  

was needed in  th is  regard  ac tua l l y  o f  course  I  am not  an  

exper t  o f  PFMA but  i t  sounds odd to  me tha t  fo r  in  regard  20 

to  exerc is ing  a  share  op t ion  you wou ld  need  PFMA 

processes but  I  maybe misunders tand ing  someth ing .   I  do  

no t  know Mr  Kennedy is  there  someth ing  I  am miss ing  

here?       

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  may  be some requ i rement  on  
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the  PFMA tha t  Cha i r  I  do  no t  p ropose to  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  

c ross  examinat ion  w i th  Mr…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  there  may be some requ i rement .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay  Mr  Knoetze  so  your  

unders tand ing  fo r  –  i s  tha t  what  Mr  Morr i s  sa id  because i t  

i s  what  he  sa id  tha t  you are  re lay ing  he re  is  tha t  what  he  

sa id  was tha t  fo r  the  exerc ise  o f  the  share  op t ion  one o f  

the  th ings tha t  wou ld  be  requ i red  is  tha t  what  he  re fer red  

to  as  PFMA approva l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR KNOETZE:    That  seems to  be  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you yourse l f  do  you know what  tha t  

i s  and under  wha t  p rov is ion  i t  app l ies  or  i s  tha t  someth ing  

you do not  know is  no t  you r  unders tand ing  o f  what  he  

sa id?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r  I  was aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  buy ing  

o f  any shares,  buy ing  o r  se l l ing  o f  any shares w i th in  any 

t ransact ion  w i th in  Dene l  a t  tha t  s tage was def in i te ly  fo r  

sure  a  PFMA approva l  and tha t  wou ld  be  approved  by  the  

government  and Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ise ,  Cha i r.      20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  was your  unders tand ing  tha t ,  what  i s  

re fe r red  to  as  PFMA approva l  re la ted  to  approva l  by  the  

re levant  Min i s te r?   

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  f i rs t  o f  course  i t  had to  go  th rough  

the  Dene l  Board  in  my op in ion  fo r  sure  Dene l  Board  had to  
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app rove o r  recommend them to  the  Min is te r  fo r  approva l  

f rom the  BEE s ide  de f in i te ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay now I  th ink  I  may have come 

across some p rov is ion  in  re la t ion  to  maybe Dene l  maybe in  

the  app l i ca t ion  tha t  was b rough t  by  the  Dene l  Board  

aga ins t  the  then Min is te r  o f  F inance Mr  Gordhan I  do  no t  

know i f  i t  was fo r  Sect ion  54  app l i ca t ion .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  I  may have come across 

someth ing  tha t  m ight  ind ica te  what  you are  say ing .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no a t  leas t  now I  have an  idea o f  

what  the  PFMA approva l  the  re fe rence to  PFMA approva l  

may have been a  re ference to ,  thank you Mr  Knoetze ,  

thank you Mr  Kennedy.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  Mr  Knoetze  fo r  

c la r i f i ca t ion  you  re fer  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  an  annexure  

wh ich  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Morr i s .   Can I  ask  you p lease to  

tu rn  to  page 38.   

MR KNOETZE:    Go ing  to  page 38 ,  Cha i r.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   I f  I  can  take  you on page 

38 the  emai l  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page i t  comes f rom Mr  

John Mor r is  da ted  22n d  o f  Apr i l  2010 and i t  i s  addressed to  

you w i th  cop ies  to  var ious o ther  o f f i c ia l s  inc lud ing  Mr  

Teubes,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  Mr  Sad ick  and Mr  Van Wyk  and Mr  
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S te fan  Burger,  co r rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  jus t  wou ld  l i ke  to  read in to  the  

record  the  br ie f  emai l  i f  I  may:  

“Thank you fo r  the  dra f t  Board  paper  we have  

dec ided not  to  sub jec t  th is  to  the  Dene l  Board  

meet ing  on  4  May 2010 in  l ine  w i th  your  d i scuss ion  

w i th  F i k i le . ”  

Now tha t  i s  w i th  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “The advanced payments  to  LMT  

needs to  be  secured by  adequate  LMT assets  wh ich  

are  cu r ren t ly  unsecured.   Th i s  i s  someth ing  we 

wou ld  want  to  see a t  the  DLS Board  meet ing  next  

week and your  paper  w i l l  be  usefu l  fo r  tha t  meet ing .  

I  be l ieve  tha t  th is  mechan ism ident i f ied  by  F ik i le  

w i l l  enab le  DLS to  ach ieve i t s  ob jec t i ves . ”  

So he was say ing  i t  wou ld  need to  go  to  the  DLS Board  bu t  

on ly  sub jec t  to  assets  o f  LMT be ing  becoming secured in  

o rder  to  secure  assets  to  m in im ise  the  r i sk  o f  advanced 20 

payments ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?        

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then he cont inues:  

“Regard ing  the  share  op t ion  th is  w i l l  on ly  be  

exerc ised sub jec t  to  an  in -depth  due d i l igence on  
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LMT. ”  

Now tha t  i s  what  was done by  KPMG,  cor rec t?     

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t ,  and they ind ica ted  the  

consequences…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you conf i rm Mr  Knoetze ,  d id  you 

conf i rm?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay you w i l l  jus t  need to  speak up  

a  b i t  so  tha t  we can hear  and  a lso  the  recod ing  can 10 

capture  what  you say.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  bear  tha t  in  m ind when you  

speak I  cou ld  see your  nodd ing  very  c lea r ly  bu t  your  vo i ce  

was very  so f t  then jus t  p lease jus t  bear  in  m ind the  Cha i rs  

gu idance.   And then to  cont inue:  

“We wou ld  ob ta in  Board  and PFMA approva l  in  th is  

regard . ”  

Th is  regard  be ing  the  share  op t ion .   So he is  re fe r r ing  

there  to  the  Board  o f  what ,  o f  DLS  or  to  the  main  Board  o f  

Dene l?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    That  was the  Dene l  Board ,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The Dene l  Board  a t  head  o f f i ce ,  

cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And a lso  PFMA approva l ,  i s  tha t  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 72 of 213 
 

r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  on ly  in  re la t ion  to  the  share  

op t ion  po r t ion  no t  the  advanced  payment  i ssue because 

tha t  was in  te rms  o f  the  de legat ion  you re fe r red  to  sub jec t  

to  DLS Board  approva l  no t  head o f f i ce  Board  approva l  and 

not  PFMA approva l ,  cor rec t?  

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  jus t  have a  moment  to  confer  

w i th  my co l league.   I  jus t  want  to  take  you now to  what  you 10 

say in  your  a f f idav i t  i t  i s  page 11.    

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Paragraph 6 .17  you say:  

“A t  some po in t  Mr  Mhlont lo  a l so  sa id  tha t  th is  a t  

r i sk  p rocu rement  o rder  w i th  the  pre-payment  o f  

R12.7mi l l ion  shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  a t  the  DLS Board  

leve l  because i t  i s  an  opera t iona l  mat te r.   The 

opt ion  to  acqu i re  shares was meant  to  se rve  as  

secur i t y  fo r  th is  a t  r i sk  procurement  o rde r. ”  

 I s  tha t  what  he  to ld  you?     20 

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And in  fac t  you then re fe r red  to  

Annexure  PK05 and i f  I  can  take  you to  tha t  document  you 

w i l l  f ind  i t  a t  page 49,  four  n ine .     

MR KNOETZE:    I  am go ing  to  page 49 Cha i r,  go  ahead  
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Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:     I s  tha t  an  emai l  f rom Mr  Mhlont lo  on  

wh ich  you re ly  fo r  the  adv i ce  tha t  you jus t  re fe r red  to  in  

your  a f f idav i t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now i f  you can tu rn  to  page 

13 aga in  in  your  a f f idav i t .    

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You re fer red  to  a  spec ia l  mee t ing  o f  

the  DLS Board  he ld  on  the  7 t h  o f  May 2010 where  you say 10 

Mr  Ta l iep  Sad ick  the  Dene l  Group CEO was present  

amongst  o the rs  p resent  was Mr  F i k i le  Mhlont lo ,  Group CFO 

and Mr  John Morr is  the  s t ra teg ic  PFMA compl iance and  

equ i ty  spec ia l i s t  and then you re fer red  to  an  annexure  and  

i f  I  can  ask  you to  look  down now to  Annexure  PK07,  I  w i l l  

ge t  you the  page number  in  a  moment ,  so  i t  I  53 ,  54  is  tha t  

cor rec t?      

MR KNOETZE:    52 ,  53 .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  53  in  fac t  54  i s  when the  ac tua l  

body o f  the  m inutes  is  reproduced,  cor rec t?  20 

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  shows  the  ind iv idua ls  p resent  

to  inc lude yourse l f ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  Management  

rep resenta t i ves  together  w i th  Mr  Burger,  Mr  Na idoo and Mr  

Teubes,  cor rec t?   
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MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then a t  page 55 tha t  dea ls  in  

parag raph 4 .1  w i th  the  op t ion  on  s t ra teg i c  sourc ing  o f  a  

veh ic le  capab i l i t y  tha t  i s  re fe r r ing  to  LMT,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MR KNOETZE:    I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  and  i t  appears  tha t  in i t ia l l y  

what  was d iscussed was tha t  Dene l  wou ld  acqu i re  70% 

u l t imate ly  what  was dec ided upon was a  51% purchase,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR KNOETZE:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And there  was a lso  re fe rence made 

to  the  R12.7mi l l ion  as  a  p re-payment ,  cor rec t?    

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  in ten t ion  the re  was  to  g ive  

some shor t  te rm a l lev ia t ion  o f  the  f inanc ia l  cha l lenges tha t  

LMT was exper ienc ing  so  th i s  was  to  t ry  and ass i s t  i t  in  i t s  

t ime o f  f inanc ia l  need,  co r rec t?    

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you re fer  –  i t  appears  f rom your  

a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  Mhlont lo  asked  you about  the  f inanc ia l  20 

s ta tus  o f  LMT and you exp la ined cred i to rs  and debtor ’s  

ba lances were  R17mi l l ion  fo r  the  cred i to rs  and fo r  

R14mi l l ion  fo r  the  debto rs  and LMT wou ld  be  us ing  the  DLS 

and debtor ’s  payments  to  ge t  p ro jec ts  go ing  and to  pay i t s  

c red i to rs .    
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You a lso  sa id  tha t  the  LMT overd ra f t  was go ing  to  

improve.   I t  does seem tha t  a l though you fe l t  tha t  th ings 

cou ld  be  saved a t  LMT you and your  co l leagues were  go ing  

in to  the  dec i s ion  to  purchase the  51% shareho ld ing  in  LMT 

wi th  your  eyes w ide  open you were  aware  tha t  LMT was 

f inanc ia l l y  under  huge s t ra in ,  cor rec t?      

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r  a t  tha t  po in t  when they had var ious 

d iscuss ions a t  the  d i f fe ren t  Board  leve ls  and in te rac t ions  

w i th  management  and DCO i t  was fe l t  tha t  fo r  th is  amount  

o f  money to  f low to  LMT to  t ake  them out  o f  the  shor t  te rm  10 

cr is i s ,  sho r t  to  med ium term we  shou ld  have a t  leas t  an  

op t ion  to  purchase as  secur i t y  together  w i th  the  d i f fe ren t  

secur i t ies  fo r  the  d i f fe ren t  payments  tha t  you a lso  had to 

ob ta in .   So in  my op in ion  tha t  was  more  f rom a  request  fo r  

sure  tha t  we have secur i t ies  in  case someth ing  goes wrong  

w i th  LMT tha t  was one o f  the  b iggest  in ten t ions  o f  the 

op t ions and i t  was requested spec i f i ca l l y  by  management  

to  have tha t  in  p lace  Cha i r.      

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and i f  we can look aga in  a t  the 

m inutes  a t  page 55.   20 

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  re f lec ts  the  d i scuss ion  wh ich  

inc ludes some o f  the  po in t s  tha t  I  have a l ready summar i sed 

about  the  cred i to rs  and debto rs  and so  fo r th .   I f  I  can  ask  

you,  p lease go to  page 56.     
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MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The second l ine :  

 “Mr  Knoetze  repor ted  tha t  the  overd ra f t  fac i l i t y  o f  

LMT has been  reduced f rom R12.8mi l l ion  to  

R10mi l l ion  cur ren t ly  and i t  i s  an t ic ipa ted  to  be  

R9mi l l ion  soon the  cash requ i rement  w i l l  keep 

LMT’s  overdra f t  a t  th is  leve l  and improv ing  towards  

Ju l y  and August  2010. ”  

The cash requ i rement  was tha t  the  up f ron t  payments  the  

R12.7mi l l ion  ear l ie r?       10 

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  tha t  was the  cash R12.7mi l l ion  Cha i r  

as  we l l  as  d i f fe ren t  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  they had to  improve 

there  a l so  f rom the i r  own s ide  the  overd ra f t  fac i l i t y,  Cha i r.       

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and then  i t  cont inues:  

“Mr  Teubes a lso  exp la ined the  reason why the  s tock  

tha t  was wr i t ten  o f f  was bought  as  th is  was the  

ass ignab le  cause  fo r  the  cash s t ra in  in  LMT.”  

 Then the  m inutes  o f  your  meet ing  say as  fo l lows:  

“The meet ing  d iscussed the  m i t iga t ions on  

paragraph 2 .3 .1  o f  the  proposa l . ”  20 

And the  proposa ls  in  fac t  a t tach  to  the  m inute :   

“Mr  Burger  exp la ined tha t  th is  is  no t  a  r i sk  f ree  

dec is ion  tha t  management  w i l l  endeavour  to  pu t  

cont ro ls  in  p lace  to  improve the  bus iness s i tua t ion  

spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  respect  to  the i r  f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs .   
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The meet ing  dec ided tha t  even more  s t r i c te r  

cont ro ls  shou ld  be  put  in  p lace  to  ge t  the  company  

out  o f  the  cur ren t  d i lemma. ”  

The cur ren t  d i lemma is  LMT’s  cur ren t  f inanc ia l  d i lemma,  

no t  so?        

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:     

“The lega l  sha re  op t ion  ag reement  shou ld  have t igh t  

cont ro l  over  the  company w i th  respect  to  p rocess  

improvements  techn ica l  and f inanc ia l  cont ro l  and 10 

management  cont ro l . ”   

MR KNOETZE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then the re  is  the  next  paragraph 

I  w i l l  sk ip  tha t  i s  dea l ing  w i th  cer ta in  v i s i t s  tha t  were  to  

take  p lace and the  fo l low ing two the  foo t  o f  the  page :  

“The approva l  p rocess f rom DPE o f  acqu i r ing  the  

70% shares f rom LMT cou ld  take  l ong and the re fore  

th is  op t ion  agreement  w i l l  be  va l id  fo r  th ree  years  

the  process is  to  runn ing  compar isons w i th  the  

equ i ty  se l l ing  process. ”  20 

Then we have va r ious o the r  d iscuss ions about  the  r i sk  and 

drawback c lause o f  5  to  10% etce tera  and then the  second 

las t  parag raph on  page 57,  a re  you  there?      

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The second las t  pa ragraph says:  
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“Mr  Knoetze  gave  h is  fu l l  suppor t  to  the  commi tment  

o f  the  Board  to  make th is  ag reement  work . ”      

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now the  prev ious paragraph I  shou ld  

have s ta r ted  the re :  

“Mr  Pa la ts i  went  a round the  tab le  to  ge t  eve ryone ’s  

f ina l  input  to  the  proposa l .   Every  member  suppor ts  

th is  p roposa l  w i th  the  cond i t ions  re levant  to  th is  to  

p ro tec t  Dene l .   Mr  Mhlont lo  repor ted  tha t  he  

suppor ted  th is  as  long as  the  r i sks  as  ind ica ted  are  10 

mi t iga ted  as  d iscussed. ”  

Now do you be l ieve  tha t  those r i sks  were  in  fac t  m i t iga ted  

as  they were  d iscussed?    

MR KNOETZE:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  be l ieve  so  th rough  a l l  the  

d i f fe ren t  secur i t y  assets  and s tock  tha t  we had to  secure  to  

make su re  we were  –  i t  was not  r i sk  f ree  we d id  exact ly  

tha t  Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now may  I  jus t  ask  you  a  few 

quest ions in  conc lus ion  and I  w i l l  then ask  the  Cha i r  fo r  an  

oppor tun i ty  jus t  to  caucus w i th  my  team jus t  to  see i f  there  20 

is  anyth ing  fu r ther  and we s t i l l  have the  issue o f  the 

annexure  to  so r t  ou t  over  the  lunch break.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes maybe when you caucus w i th  your  

team he cou ld  take  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  have a  look  a t  tha t  

annexure  and maybe when you are  f in i shed he might  be  
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f in ished and then  you cover  tha t  as  we l l .     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  tha t  i s  poss ib le ,  yes  thank you.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i t  i s  shor t  i t  shou ld  be  poss ib le .    

MR KNOETZE:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Knoetze  were  you s t i l l  i n  a  

pos i t ion  a  sen ior  pos i t ion  a t  Dene l  when cont rac t s  were  

awarded to  VR Laser?    

MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r  I  was not  much invo lved in  VR Laser  

d iscuss ions or  cont rac ts  o f  any so r ts .   We d id  f rom t ime to 10 

t ime a t  the  management  meet ing  o f  course  had d iscuss ions  

w i th  regards to  cont rac ts  and fo l low up cont rac ts  and 

poss ib le  fu tu re  bus iness bu t  I  was persona l l y  no t  very  

much invo lved in  the  VR Laser  p rocess and cont rac t ing  o f  

tha t  a t  a l l  Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  unders tand tha t  and in  f ac t  you  

ind ica ted  as  much in  your  a f f idav i t  to .   D id  you have any 

unders tand ing  when  LMT was be ing  acqu i red  or  the  

major i t y  shareho ld ing  was be ing  acqu i red  by  Dene l .   D id  

you have any d i scuss ions w i th  your  co l leagues a t  EXCO or  20 

Board  leve l  as  to  whethe r  LMT now tha t  i t  wou ld  be  sub jec t  

to  the  major i t y  shareho ld ing  he ld  by  Dene l  wou ld  now be  

g iven pre fe rent ia l  t rea tment  in  the  award  o f  any fu r ther  

bus iness fo r  wh ich  i t  was qua l i f ied  because i t  wou ld  be  as  

i t  i s  an  in -house group ent i t y?     
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MR KNOETZE:    Cha i r  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  bu t  in  my op in ion  i t  

wou ld  have been proper  cons ide ra t ion  to  have,  i t  was to  be  

in -house and i f  there  i s  an  op t ion  agreement  i t  wou ld  have  

had to  rece ive  pre ferent ia l  t rea tment  as  a  spec i f i c  supp l ie r  

i f  the  op t ion  agreement  was not  acqu i red  ye t ,  Cha i r.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So i t  wou ld  have been g iven spec ia l  

t rea tment  i f  i t  was in -house?  

MR KNOETZE:    I  wou ld  be l ieve  so  and I  th ink  the  po l i cy  

a lso  is  s t ipu la ted  as  fa r  as  I  can reca l l  Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and the  po l i cy  tha t  you re fer  to  10 

though says:  

“There  can be a  dev ia t ion  f rom tha t  i f  there  i s  a  

good reason f rom a  bus iness po in t  o f  v iew fo r  go ing  

ou ts ide  the  group  ra the r  than keep  i t  in -house and i t  

wou ld  have to  be  sent  to  the  group execut ive  fo r  

supp ly  cha in  management . ”  

Who a t  tha t  s tage was Mr  Mlambo.   A re  you aware  o f  that  

as  par t  o f  the  ru le?   

MR KNOETZE:    Not  tha t  I  was tha t  par t  o f  the  process bu t  

I  th ink  tha t  was the  norm i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  Cha i r  yes .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you but  you were  no t  

invo l ved d i rec t l y  in  the  process in  wh ich  Mr  Mlambo was  

asked fo r  h is  approva l  o r  were  you? 

MR KNOETZE:    No Cha i r  no t  a t  a l l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  have a  br ie f  moment  to  
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ta lk  to  my team.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Fo r  pu rposes o f  a l low ing h im to  have a  

look a t  the  annexure  sha l l  I  ad jou rn  fo r  f i ve  m inutes?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  you  cou ld  thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  le t  me g ive  you tha t  chance.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Knoetze  I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

about  f i ve  m inutes  or  seven minutes  to  enab le  you  to  look 

a t  the  annexure  tha t  you have not  rece ived ear l ie r  on  when  

we ta l ked about  i t  and to  enab le  Mr  Kennedy to  consu l t  10 

w i th  h is  team.   So when we come back I  am sure  you w i l l  

be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  ind ica te  whether  you conf i rm the  

contents  o f  tha t  annexure .   So f i ve  or  seven minutes  or  

there  about  you w i l l  jus t  le t  me know once you a re  ready.        

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ve ry  much Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chair  for that  opportuni ty.   20 

We managed to speak to Mr Knoetze and he has given clar i ty  

which I  would l ike to place on record i f  we may? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In relat ion to th is annexure and then we 

just  have one or two f ina l  quest ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Knoetze thank you for ass ist ing us 

ear l ier in  the clar i f icat ion.   Your aff idavi t  – your  main 

aff idavi t  referred – wanted to refer to minutes as being 

at tached as an annexure and that  is  the minutes of  the board 

meet ing of  the 15 Apri l  2010.   Is that  correct? 

MR KNOETZE:   Correct  Chai r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you were hoping to get  those 

minutes f rom Denel  and i f  they had been obtained they 

would have been at tached as annexures to your  10 

supplementary aff idavi t ,  correct? 

MR KNOETZE:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you have ind icated to me that  you 

have asked for those minutes and not  been provided wi th 

them.  I f  I  can just  place on record the advice that  the legal  

team gave you recent ly which is that  we have st i l l  not  been 

given the minutes of  that  meet ing f rom Denel .   They have 

indicated that  they have problems in relat ion to some of  thei r  

records so we st i l l  do not  have those minutes to be able to 

give you Mr Knoetze or wi th respect  to the Chai r  e i ther – to  20 

the commission.  

 Now I  am to ld Mr Knoetze and I  want you to conf i rm 

this or correct  i t  i f  i t  is wrong.   I  am told that  my col leagues 

in the legal  team made avai lable to  the only documents that  

they were given in relat ion to th is aspect  and the board 
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meet ing on this date.   Can I  take you in the bundle the latest  

vers ion of  elect ronic bundle that  you have in f ront  of  you to  

page 52.1? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now can you ident i fy  the document that  

starts at  page 52.1? 

MR KNOETZE:   I t  was the heading of  a board meet ing 

number 15;  15 Apr i l  2010 and i f  I  read i t  correct ly  Chai r  I  

th ink this is the one that  I  –  exact ly  the one that  I  referred to 

as a possible annexure to  have been added which I  could get  10 

not  hold of  – the minutes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now what is c lear f rom page 52.1 

to 52.5 is that  the minutes themselves are not  included,  

correct? 

MR KNOETZE:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  what is the document?  Was this  

the presentat ion part  of  a sl ide – a sl ide presentat ion at  the 

board meet ing? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes Chai r  i t  was one of  the 

presentat ions that  was made to the board Chai r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And this deal t  speci f ical ly wi th the 

issue concerned being the cooperat ion between DLS and 

LMT, is that  r ight? 

MR KNOETZE:   I t  was one of  the presentat ions yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And then at  page 52.3 we see a 
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status report  on that  topic wi th a signature and t i t le of  Mr 

Burger as Chief  Execut ive Off icer,  correct? 

MR KNOETZE:   I  do not  see a signature – oh sorry Mr Chair  

I  do see the signature on the page 52.3 of  Mr Burger yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight  thank you.   And paragraph 1 

says:  

“The purpose of  th is submission is to seek 

approval  regarding the recommendat ions 

tabled on the possible cooperat ion 

agreement between DLSA and LMT.”  10 

And then paragraph 2 refers to the report  as being at tached 

and 3 seeks the board approval  and the report  – was that  Mr 

Burger ’s report  f rom page 52.4 to 52.5? 

MR KNOETZE:   I t  was a management report .   I t  was a 

combinat ion of  inputs f rom management and in – as the 

t radi t ion was in DLS and the Denel  the CEO i f  there were 

anything that  were presented to the board in th is case the 

DLS board Mr Burger  would have signed and i t  was under his  

signature yes Chair.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   So did you give your input  for 20 

example at  page 52.4 under the heading Financial  Analysis? 

MR KNOETZE:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then near  the end of  that  

paragraph under the heading Financial  Analysis three l ines 

f rom the bot tom i t  says:  
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“A cash f low analysis however indicates that  th is is a short  

term problem.  To solve this  problem LMT has to  acquire 

addi t ional  cash in  Apri l .   I t  appears that  a cash in ject ion of 

R10 mi l l ion wi l l  so lve thei r  short  term problem.”  

Is that  the basis on which the recommendat ion was made to 

go ahead with  approval  of  the 12.7 mi l l ion advance 

payment? 

MR KNOETZE:   That  is correct  Chair.   Just  to add to  that  i t  

was seen as a very more short  to  maybe medium term but  

short  term solut ion.   There were also talks of  addi t ional  10 

capi ta l  investment and IDC funding to be acqui red which 

they were busy regular ly to  acqui re IDC support  and also 

then possib le other equi ty partners or opt ion agreements 

wi th other shareholding as wel l  in future Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   I f  I  might  just  have a moment 

Chair?  Yes.   Now in relat ion to the acquisi t ion of  the 

major i ty shares in  LMT when you were discussing wi th your 

col leagues at  the level  of  EXCO or the DLS board did you 

have a discussion as to what role DLS would be expected to 

play in the future management of  LMT?  In other words you 20 

were now going to – your company – your group was going 

to buy the major i ty shareholding in LMT who was going to  

control  the management? 

MR KNOETZE:   Chair  the opinion of  management as an 

integrated approach was that  the capabi l i t ies of  DLS and 
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speci f ical ly the st rategic capabi l i t ies of  LMT should be 

incorporated into under one roof  and integrated wi thin one 

organisat ion.   Which meant that  over  t ime our idea was to 

make sure that  where there were synergies between the two 

companies that  i t  gets properly  integrated and in al l  

probabi l i ty then integrated under the management in future 

of  DLS that  was the object ion or the thinking at  that  point  in 

t ime Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was that  discussed to your 

knowledge with LMT’s then owners as to how i t  would – how 10 

i t  would be managed af ter the acquisi t ion? 

MR KNOETZE:   I  th ink some of  the – Chair  sorry to  you – I  

th ink some of  these discussions did take place between Mr 

Burger speci f ical ly and Mr – Dr Stephan Nel l  who was the 

CEO of  LMT and in my opinion I  – i f  I  can recal l  or I  can 

re late I  th ink there were some discussions wi th that  – wi th  

regards to that  yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Were you aware of  any change in 

th inking at  any stage that  in i t ia l ly  i t  was intended that  DLS 

would run the management of  LMT but  later i t  t ranspi red that  20 

in fact  DLS would not  take an act ive role in that? 

MR KNOETZE:   Chair  I  was not  at  that  t ime – up to – close 

to up to the point  where the PFMA approval  was sought  and 

also [00:08:52]  approval  was given I  was st i l l  under  the 

impression and f rom – on the view f rom the view that  that  
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would have been the way going forward unt i l  and up to the 

process where the integrat ion took place at  DCO and then i t  

was a di fferent  report ing speci f ical ly then f rom the LMT as a 

suppl ier di rect ly into DCO and obviously that  was maybe the 

thinking of  the leaders at  that  point  in t ime but  ja that  was as 

far as I  can remember Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I  would l ike to move to page 49.  

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   49 appears to be an emai l  f rom Mr 

Mhlont lo to yoursel f  wi th var ious others copied in,  correct  10 

and that  was date the 22 Apri l  2010?  And Mr Mhlont lo says 

this – I  am just  going to read a few l ines i f  I  may Chair  f rom 

the relevant  port ions.   He says:  

“Dear Al l  yesterday I  was taken through the 

DLS management  proposal .  Some key points 

based on DLS management are:  

DLS intends placing an order of  R52 mi l l ion 

and pay R12 mi l l ion upfront  to LMT for turret  

hul ls needed in Hoefyster product ion phase.   

The upf ront  payment could be scaled down 20 

but  not  less than R4 mi l l ion in i t ia l ly  

etcetera.”  

And then he refers to var ious other concerns about the 

Hoefyster product ion phase not  being conf i rmed and then the 

issue of  securi ty etcetera.   And then he says – af ter al l  the 



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 88 of 213 
 

bul let  points he says:  

“Response the proposal  cannot be 

implemented as proposed by DLS 

management part icular ly consider ing the DLS 

deal ing wi th publ ic funds and other  

considerat ions becomes relevant .   Relevant  

aspects are product ion at  r isk in a divis ion 

decision up to a set  l imi ted referenced down 

to delegat ion of  author i ty document.   The 

divis ion or div is ion board wi l l  have to 10 

consider al l  pert inent  aspects including but  

not  l imi ted to the fact  Hoefyster has not  been 

secured to date.   Pre-payments are div is ional  

considerat ions and are not  speci f ical ly deal t  

wi th in  the delegat ion of  author i ty.   Payment  

r isk ident i f ied needs to be mit igated 

adequately as the current  proposal  secur i ty  

is weak.   Sorry the current  proposed securi ty  

is weak and cannot be acceptable.   DLS 

would need to have a val id guarantee or  20 

securi t ies or at tach LMT assets IP and other  

key systems rand for rand etcetera.”  

And he cont inues to set  out  var ious other concerns that he 

has.   So the bot tom l ine of  Mr Mhlont lo ’s emai l  seems to be 

that  he cannot accept  the – the proposal  that  was being put  
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forward because i t  would have meant too much r isk to DLS 

and to the Denel  group part ly having bearing in mind that  

DLS is using – is  deal ing wi th publ ic funds as a state owned 

ent i ty.    

Now you received this emai l  d id you? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And how did you deal  wi th i t?  

MR KNOETZE:   Chair  i f  I  – I  can take you to the annexures 

just  before we go to the other annexures that  I  added.  Af ter 

th is speci f ic mai l  f rom Mr Fiki le  Mhlont lo to everyone 10 

involved in – you can see basical ly the biggest  por t ion of  

Denel  management I  af ter the previous board meet ing also 

af ter 15 Apri l  – 15 Apri l  2010 where i t  was decided to go 

ahead and i t  was a DLS board meet ing I  arranged a meet ing 

wi th Mr Fiki le Mhlont lo and we discussed al l  these di fferent  

condi t ions before we could go ahead.  And as you qui te 

r ight ly  said Mr F iki le Mhlont lo  was very correct  in  having 

certain speci f ic securi t ies and condi t ions to be in place 

which I  had a discussion wi th him with al l  the related other 

part ies previous – and in fact  the previous mai ls that  I  have 20 

at tached between Investec,  mysel f  and Mr Morr is and Mr 

Mhlont lo whereby we agreed the di fferent  condi t ions that  had 

to be adhered to by Mr Mhlont lo and that  was al l  put  in place 

al l  the condi t ions relat ing to  the paragraphs that  you had 

ment ioned.   The paragraphs relat ing to mit igated adequately  
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in terms of  al l  the other to be current  for both securi t ies 

which is LMT assets and IT and other key systems and af ter 

that  discussion wi th Mr Mhlont lo we were then given the go 

ahead i f  a l l  those condi t ions were in place and the mai l  of  

that  is in  the annexure that  I  can refer  you to  where i t  was 

said i f  a l l  those are l ike the minutes of  7 May 2010 the same 

words f rom Mr Mhlont lo that  he was happy i f  those 

condi t ions are met we can go ahead and i t  “stays”  in his 

words i t  stayed a DLS board r isk decision and they have to 

apply thei r  minds but  he is  happy i f  a l l  secur i t ies have been 10 

adhered to Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  may I  just  have a moment?  I f  we 

look at  again at  page 50 I  took you to the …[speaking over  

one another] .   Page 50.  

MR KNOETZE:   50 yes Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  took you through some of  the ear l ier 

points but  you see the last  three sol id bul let  points you see 

start ing tak ing the Group Financial  posi t ion into account.   Do 

you see that? 

MR KNOETZE:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight  let  me read those three bul let  

points into the record i f  I  may? 

“Taking the Group Financial  posi t ion into account a lower 

amount and the gross amount proposed of  R12 mi l l ion wi l l  

have to be considered.   Addi t ional  measures to protect  
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company assets wi l l  need to be considered l ike DLS 

management accessing monthly accounts etcetera.   I f  l imi ts 

are exceeded as delegated and or opt ions – and or  opt ion is 

considered to be exercised the matter wi l l  need to be 

referred to the Denel  board.   DLS board and i ts management 

take ful l  responsibi l i ty for any issues that  may ar ise posi t ive 

or negat ive regarding this proposal . ”  

Would you agree that  those are qui te ser ious concerns that  

you raised? 

MR KNOETZE:   I t  was Chai r  and for  that  speci f ic  reason I  10 

had several  d iscussions and interact ions wi th  respect ive 

board members and speci f ica l ly wi th Mr Burger  and I  had 

wi th Investec deta i led discussions which is referred to  in the 

above annexures where Mr Mhlont lo eventual ly agreed to al l  

the securi t ies and on the minutes of  7 May 2010 I  refer to 

again to minutes at tached 7 May of  2010 which he agreed to 

that  af ter a l l  those securi t ies have been put  in place he wi l l  – 

he wi l l  be happy f rom his side wi th proceedings Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   Mr – Chair  may we 

just  deal  wi th two f inal  aspects?  I  want to correct  something 20 

that  I  misunderstood ear l ier.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In relat ion to why Mr Knoetze is – was 

not  able to at tend in person.   I  thought he was a gent leman 

stuck in George.   In fact  I  am mixing him up wi th somebody 
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e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry about  that  misunderstanding.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  one is a lawyer is i t  not? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The one in George is a lawyer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is  qui te correct .   Mr Knoetze just  

for the record you put  in an appl icat ion to be heard on a – in 10 

a vi r tual  p lat form on the computer l ine today.   I  just  want to  

correct  and I  am sorry that  I  made a mistake ear l ier.   I  was 

confused.   You actual ly speaking to us f rom Pretor ia East  not  

so? 

MR KNOETZE:   I  am in Centur ion Pretor ia.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Centur ion r ight .   And I  understand that  

there was a medical  reason which you provided proof  of  to  

the legal  team which has been forwarded to the Chai rperson 

to indicate that  there was a r isk i f  you had to t ravel  to 

Johannesburg today,  is that  correct? 20 

MR KNOETZE:   Ja i t  is a l l  medical  re lated for Covid-19.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR KNOETZE:   Chronic r isk.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR KNOETZE:   Chair  yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you for c lar i fy ing that .   And 

then the f inal  issue of  c lar i f icat ion I  just  want  to  conf i rm I  

th ink you indicated this ear l ier.   You have an MBA in 

Market ing.   As I  understand i t  the B.Com is also – you a lso 

majored in Market ing is that  r ight? 

MR KNOETZE:   I t  was a B.Com Market ing wi th related 

f inancial  account ing subjects but  the MBA is the general  

Masters in Business Administ rat ion correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you very much Mr Knoetze.   

Chair  we have no further quest ions of  th is wi tness.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Mr Knoetze for 

avai l ing yoursel f  to g ive evidence before the commission.   

We appreciate i t .   Should we need you to come back we wi l l  

ask you but  for now you are excused.  Thank you very much.  

MR KNOETZE:   Thank you Chair  much appreciated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   I t  is one o ’clock so we wi l l  

take the lunch adjournment.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As you please Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And resume at  two.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As you please Chai r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  want to ta lk about  start ing t imes for  

the rest  of  the week.   Does – how does i t  look l ike?  Does i t  

look l ike we might  need to start  at  n ine – hal f  past  nine or 

ear l ier than normal and when would you l ike that  to  be?  I  

just  want to see what mornings are avai lable that  I  can give 
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to – t ime for  meet ings wi th d i fferent  sect ions of  the 

commission who always want to  see me about di fferent  

th ings.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the pr ior i ty is to make sure that  we 

f in ish the Denel  evidence this week.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – but  we would also f rom my side I  am 

avai lab le to  si t  later  than four  o’c lock on each day i f  

necessary.   There might  be a sl ight  problem for Wednesday 10 

this week because I  may have promised Mr Seleka that  we 

could in the evening session – we could have an evening 

session and do one short  wi tness re lat ing to Eskom.  But  I  

am told by him that  we might  need only about th i r ty minutes 

certainly not  more than an hour.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so i f  that  were to happen that  would 

simply depr ive you of  th i r ty minutes or one hour but  

otherwise we would use a l l  the other t ime for an evening 

session i f  we need to use i t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  for the other days there is  no problem.  

Of course Fr iday is an except ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed. 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  tomorrow, Wednesday,  Thursday we 
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can start  – we can si t  t i l l  late.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We can start  ear ly  i f  need be.   I  know there 

is a  sect ion of  the – of  the commission that  I  have said they 

can see me tomorrow at  hal f  past  eight .   I  might  have to 

change that  i f  we start  – i f  we decide to start  at  n ine.   Or 

what is your si tuat ion? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chair  I  would l ike to just  conf i rm this 

wi th my col leagues but  my understanding is that  tomorrow is  

not  –  is not  too problemat ic  because we have had to shi f t  10 

wi tnesses around and so forth and i t  looks l ike tomorrow wi l l  

not  take longer than the normal.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  not  need to start  ear ly? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So – no I  th ink that  i f  we star t  at  ten 

tomorrow that  should be f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  I  would l ike to check wi th my 

col leagues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wednesday I  th ink in l ight  of  the 20 

possible need to accommodate my learned f r iend Mr Seleka 

that  might  be an idea to  start  at  n ine because we have qui te  

a – qui te a number of  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Witnesses to deal  wi th then.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And I  th ink Fr iday in order to – not  to 

overrun.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We can start  ear ly on Fr iday at  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  just  have a quick moment? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Yes thank you for that  

Chai r.   My col leagues conf i rm that  tomorrow should not  be 10 

an issue so we are happy to start  at  ten rather than nine.   

And you wi l l  then be able to see the other people at  eight  

th i r ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What they have suggested is we can 

ask your indulgence to start  ear ly at  n ine o ’c lock on 

Wednesday and Thursday and Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  that  is possible.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine.   And in  terms of  20 

evenings what is  your – what is your assessment?  How 

much t ime or would i t  depend on each day how much t ime do 

you think we might  use af ter four?  An hour – two hours? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  would think an hour.   We should – we 

should be able to f in ish by f ive o’clock latest .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On those days i f  we start ing at  n ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  i t  a lways depends.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no that  is  f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A wi tness may take longer than we 

expect  as has al ready happened today.  

MR KNOETZE:   No,  no that  is helpfu l  enough.  So then 

tomorrow we wi l l  start  at  ten and go up to f ive but  i f  we need 

to go beyond f ive we wi l l  go beyond f ive.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thursday we wi l l  start  at  n ine go up to f ive 

i f  necessary – go beyond – beyond f ive.   And Fr iday we can 

start  at  n ine as wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay al r ight .   Let  us adjourn for lunch 

and then we wi l l  resume at  f ive past  two.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :     20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Are you ready Mr Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   With your leave may we now 

cal l  our next  wi tness,  Mr Sipho Mkwanazi? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you.   Please administer the 

oath or a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR :    P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 

WITNESS :    S ipho Mkwanazi .  

REGISTRAR :    Do you have any object ion in taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

WITNESS :    No.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you consider the oath to  be binding on 

your conscience? 

WITNESS :    Yes.  10 

REGISTRAR :    Do you then swear that  the ev idence you are 

about to give,  wi l l  be the t ruth,  the whole t ruth and nothing 

else but  the t ruth?  I f  so,  please ra ise up you r ight  hand and 

say,  so help me God.  

WITNESS :    So help me God.  

SIPHO MKWANAZI :   (d.s.s. )  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  see Mr Kennedy that  th is aff idavi t  does 

seem to be an aff idavi t  because there is a commissioner of  

oaths at  the end.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry,  Chai r.   I  cannot hear you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   I  am saying,  I  see that  th is does 

seem to be an aff idavi t  because there is a commissioner of  

oaths at  the end but  i t  does not  start  the way an aff idavi t  

normal ly starts.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Namely:   I  hereby state under oath.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  i t  is so okay.   I  th ink  he wi l l  

conf i rm i t  under oath today.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  i f  may?  Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  i t  is just  that  these things -  somet imes 

you never know i f  they wi l l  have any legal  impact .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  wi l l  seek to 10 

address that  point .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  so just  for the record.   May I  

just  indicate that  Mr Mkwanazi ’s aff idavi t  appears in Denel ’s  

Bundle 07.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As Exhibi t  W19.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r. . .   Sorry,  may I  just  have a 

moment? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  the aff idavi t  or ig inal ly provided 

by Mr Mkwanazi  had al l  the annexures referred to  in his  

aff idavi t ,  including some extremely voluminous annexures 

which appeared to – my col leagues wi thin the legal  team, to 
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be somet imes necessary,  somet imes relevant  but  somet imes 

not .    

 So in order to t ry  and reduce the volume of  documents 

but  to st i l l  keep what was relevant ,  some documents,  as the 

Index page ind icates,  have not  been at tached in the copy 

that  serve before you Chair  but  they are avai lab le should 

they be requi red.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  does that  mean there are some 

annexures that  are being referred to in the aff idavi t  of  – in 

the aff idavi t  but  which are not  at tached to i t?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  not  at tached in th is copy.   Yes,  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Some of  i t  had been at tached but  

s imply in a form of  ext racts,  a l though, or ig inal ly,  he gave us 

the ent i re document.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So we – my learned col league t r immed 

i t  down to just  the relevant  extract .   But  in some cases,  

some documents,  as wi l l  appear f rom the context ,  real ly do 20 

not  appear to be relevant  for  your purposes of  the 

Commission.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So my learned f r iend took the l iberty of  

excluding those but  they are avai lable should they be 
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requi red Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   What I  am t rying to 

establ ish is whether,  when one reads the aff idavi t ,  one might  

th ink that  an annexure is here but  i t  actual ly is not  here.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    There is an index.   I f  I  can take you to 

page 2 which – in which my learned col league has – 

Anf red(?) has ref lected in a note in the index what is 

at tached and what is not  or whether i t  is an ext ract .   So for  

example,  i f  you see at  page 2,  Annexure A real ly comprises 

extracts,  Annexure B.   I t  has not  been at tached.  And what 10 

you wi l l  f ind then,  is  s imply a page to that  in the relevant  

order.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink what wi l l  be necessary in addi t ion 

to us ment ion ing in the index that  a part icular annexure is  

not  at tached, i f  i t  has not  a l ready been done, is that  where 

the annexure is supposed to have been at tached, where i t  i s  

supposed to have appeared in the – among the annexures,  

there should be a note that  is  saying this annexure has been 

– has not  been at tached because i f  – i t  seems i rrelevant .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  agree.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So in other words,  when somebody reads 

the aff idavi t ,  I  want  to  know that  i f  they come across an 

annexure and they think they want to see the annexures,  

when they go to  the annexures,  there must  be something 

that  te l ls them i f  i t  is not  there.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Here is the reason why i t  is not  there.   But  

obviously,  any annexure that  has not  been included,  which is 

not  referred to in the aff idavi t ,  that  is f ine.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So I  am only concerned about s i tuat ions 

where the aff idavi t  does refer to an annexure and maybe 

saying the annexure is at tached but  i f  you go to  where you 

would expect  i t  to be,  you do not  f ind i t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  I  am af raid that  has not  appeared 10 

so far in th is bundle but  my learned f r iend wi l l  at tend to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  they can do that  so that  there is a 

page . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .which says th is annexure has not  been 

at tached for reason A,  B,  C,  D.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   A lr ight .   Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So even with  the exercise my learned 

f r iend has rather laboriously been able to do,  to her credi t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  the annexures that  have to be 

before you . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . .are st i l l  fa i r ly voluminous but  there 
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were many thousands of  pages al ready and we wanted to  

spare you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Spare you that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   May I  then put  the 

formal quest ions to the wi tness to then lead up to  my asking 

for leave to have i t  admit ted? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

EXAMINATION BY ADVOCATE KENNEDY SC :    Good 10 

af ternoon, Mr Mkwanazi  

MR MKWANAZI :    Good af ternoon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have done the oath,  r ight? 

REGISTRAR :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you for jo in ing the Commission 

and assist ing us as the legal  team previously.   Is i t  correct  

that  you have assisted the Commission previously by 

providing an aff idavi t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  i t  is correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I  can take you in th is bundle,  

Denel  07 at  page 003.   I f  you look at  the page numbers on 

the top lef t ,  not  the top r ight  but  the top lef t .   You go to. . .  lef t  

three.   Do you have that?   

MR MKWANAZI :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  the f i rst  page of  your aff idavi t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Look at  the black number,  not  the red 

numbers.    

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I . . .   And so you conf i rm this i s  

your aff idavi t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I  can take you to page 24.  

MR MKWANAZI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have that? 10 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  I  have got  page 24.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   About hal f -way down there is a  

signature above the typed word deponent.   Is that  your 

signature? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did you sign this in f ront  of  a 

commissioner of  oaths? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now, the Commissioner has 

signed and put  in a rubberstamp below a notat ion that  says:    20 

“Thus sworn and signed before me at  Pretor ia the 

23r d of  October 2020.   

The deponent has acknowledged that  he knows and 

understands the contents of  th is aff idavi t .    

He has no object ion to tak ing the prescr ibed oath 
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which he considers bind ing on h is conscience. ”  

 Did you,  in fact ,  take the oath on that  occasion? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And the Learned Chai r  has already 

pointed out  that  the aff idavi t  does not  start  wi th the normal  

few words that  an aff idavi t  int roduces the aff idavi t .   But  can I  

just  ask you to conf i rm.   

 I  just  remind you,  you are under oath again now, having 

had the oath administered to you this af ternoon by the 

Learned Chairperson’s regist rar.   Do you conf i rm under oath 10 

now that  you are fami l iar wi th what is contained in th is 

aff idavi t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you conf i rm that  you are sat isf ied 

that  the content  are t rue and correct  as far as your  

knowledge goes? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Chai r,  we would 

then ask formal ly for leave to int roduce the aff idavi t  of  

Mr Mkwanazi  that  appears in Denel  Bundle 07 f rom page 3 20 

wi th i ts annexures and that  should be admit ted as Exhibi t  

W 19.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The aff idavi t  of  Mr Sipho Mkwanazi  

start ing at  page 3 is admit ted as Exhibi t  W19.  

AFFIDAVIT OF MR SIPHO MKWANANZI IS ADMITTED AND 
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MARKED AS EXHIBIT W19 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Now Mr Mkwanazi ,  I  

am going to be br ief  as I  can so that  we do not  spend too 

much t ime on detai l  that  is al l  in your aff idavi t .   We do not  

have necessari ly  have to go into ful ly in oral  evidence 

because your oral  evidence wi l l  be focused on part icular 

areas of  interest  to us.   You are current ly employed. . .   I f  I  

may lead the wi tness on what should be non-cont roversial  

i tems Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You are current ly employed by 

Armscor,  is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And your current  t i t le?  Do you st i l l  

hold the current  t i t le of  act ing Group Execut ive Acquisi t ion 

and Supply Chain Management? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And how long have you been act ing  in 20 

that  posi t ion? 

MR MKWANAZI :    S ince 2015.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As Act ing Group Execut ive? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And . . . [ intervenes]   



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 107 of 213 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry,  act ing since 2015? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  around 2015/2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  that  is  a  long t ime of  act ing.   I  guess 

that  is not  your faul t .   [ laughing]  

MR MKWANAZI :    [ laughing]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what is  your  normal  current  job 

t i t le apart  f rom Act ing Group Execut ive?  In other words,  i f  

you leave out  the act ing posi t ion,  what is your  normal  

appointment t i t le? 10 

MR MKWANAZI :    I  am responsible for the Acquisi t ion 

Department and Supply Chain Management.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Which is composed of  a number of  

div is ions in  Acquisi t ion start ing f rom the landlord system 

r ight  up to the aeronaut ics as wel l  as the novel  system and 

the common systems.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  one second.   Where the wi tness is,  i t  

is a l i t t le darker.   I f  there is a way of  making i t  a l i t t le l ight .   

The relevant  people can t ry and do that .   Yes,  okay let  us 20 

cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can I  just  ask you Mr Mkwanazi?  

When you speak,  just  speak up clear ly.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And t ry and si t  fa i r ly c lose to the mic.   
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And may I  ask you to do someth ing which may be a bi t  

d i ff icul t  but  wi l l  help the Chair  a  great  deal  and also the 

recording.    

 And that  is,  a l though I  am going to  be asking you most  

of  the quest ions,  the Chair  may want to ask you his own 

quest ions at  t imes.    

 But  even when I  am asking you quest ions,  can you t ry to  

di rect  your face and your voice towards the Chai r?   

 So rather look at  the Chair  and t ry and speak into the 

microphone rather than looking sideways as you are at  the 10 

moment.   I f  you can t ry and remember that .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And another advice,  when you agree,  a  

nod is not  good because the recording machine wi l l  not  

record that .   So you need to say yes when you agree.   Okay 

let  us cont inue.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Thank you,  Chai r.   

Mr Mkwanazi ,  now in your aff idavi t  you have set  out  your 

own involvement related to matters that  are of  interest  to the 20 

Commission and you deal  f i rst  wi th a background and history 

re lat ing to the Hoefyster Contract .    

 I f  I  can take you to page 4.   I  am sorry,  to page 6.   And 

that  is your background sect ion,  deal ing wi th the Hoefyster 

Project .    



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 109 of 213 
 

 The Chair  has already heard some evidence about th is.   

So i t  w i l l  be fami l iar to him.  But  I  would l ike you to just  

conf i rm in relat ion to Armscor and SANDF, my understand – 

and please correct  me i f  I  am wrong – is that  Armscor is 

state-owned.  Is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  is. . .   Just  explain what i t  is?  

What role i t  p lays in relat ion to the Nat ional  Defence Force 

and the Republ ic as a nat ion? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Armscor is an acquisi t ion agent  for the 10 

Department of  Defence  We do acquisi t ion as wel l  as the 

procurement on behal f  of  the Department of  Defence on al l  

their  mi l i tary requi rements.   We do not  do acquis i t ion for 

common, you know,  i tems.  Only anything that  is  mi l i tary 

what we cal l  Category 1 Mi l i tary Equipment.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what is  the di fference between 

Armscor and Denel?   Because as I  understand i t ,  Denel ’s 

existence is largely connected wi th the South Afr ican 

Defence Force as wel l ,  the Nat ional  Defence Force.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Armscor is  an acquisi t ion agent.   Meaning,  20 

that  we do the procurement as wel l  as the acquisi t ion  Whi le  

Denel  is a state-owned company that  does manufactur ing.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Manufactur ing? 

MR MKWANAZI :    The manufactur ing,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  
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MR MKWANAZI :    So the relat ionship between us and then 

and they are our suppl ier.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  You work closely together? 

MR MKWANAZI :    We work closely together as far as them 

being our suppl ier  or service provider.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So most  of  the t imes when Armscor seek 

to acquire mi l i tary  equipment of  the South Afr ican Nat ional  

Defence Force,  most  of  the t imes,  Denel  would feature? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.   Denel  would feature in terms 

of  our order book . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI :    . . .Denel  is composed of  about  42$ of  my 

order book.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .   Thank you,  Mr  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Now,  Mr Mkwanazi .   You 

deal  in paragraph 4 wi th pre-cont ract ing processes and you 

deal  wi th a general  process that  has to be fol lowed.   Is that  

in terms of  Armscor own way of  procur ing.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Chai r,  under paragraph 4.   The f i rst  – the 20 

part  of  that  which is the requi red operat ional  capabi l i ty.   I t  is 

done by the SANDF.  That  is  when they state thei r  

requi rement.   Then 4.2 which is the sof t  target .   I t  is also the 

Department of  Defence.    

 The above requi rement is  the Department of  Defence but  
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then our involvement a lso starts in that  part icular one where 

we start  receiv ing the requirements f rom the Department of  

Defence.   And then we start  wi th our  process of  doing 

acquisi t ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you have focused in  what  fo l lows,  

part icular ly on page 9.   You have deal t  wi th the process that 

was fol lowed speci f ical ly between Armscor and Denel  Land 

Systems relat ing to the Hoefyster Project .    

 And you refer to the f i rst  phase,  Phase 1.   And there was 

to be a Phase 2 as wel l .   Can you tel l  the Chai r  p lease what  10 

your own role was in re lat ion to th is  procurement process for 

the Hoefyster Project? 

MR MKWANAZI :    For the f i rst  phase in terms of  t ime when 

the whole process took place,  r ight  up to the process of  

placing the order,  I  was not  part ic ipat ing.   I  was not  in the 

Department of  Acquisi t ion.   I  on ly came to Acquisi t ion around 

2006.  That  is when I  jo ined Acquisi t ion.   And then meaning 

that  I  then start  in  2006 when the project  al ready now was in  

the process of  being cont racted.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you then also deal  wi th the 20 

Tarot  Cont ract .   Were you involved in the procurement of  

Tarot  Equipment? 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  was not .   That  was before my t ime.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So i f  we can take you,  for  

example,  to page 11.   You deal  in paragraph 5 wi th the 
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request  for offer for the so-cal led RFO Process.   And what 

does that  relate to  speci f ica l ly? 

MR MKWANAZI :    A Request  for Offer is when a tender is  

being sent  out  where i t  effect ively says the Request  for 

Offer.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you said that  you were not  

involved unt i l  a certain stage at  Armscor.   When you deal  in  

th is Request  for Offer Process and here,  of  course,  we are 

deal ing wi th Armscor procuring f rom a suppl ier.   And we 

know, ul t imately,  i t  procured or  awarded a contract  for  the 10 

supply to Denel .   You refer to var ious opt ions being explored 

in 5.2.   Were you part  of  that  process? 

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  I  was not  par t  of  that  process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So when you deal  wi th th is sect ion,  are 

you just  deal ing wi th your knowledge that  you acqui red af ter 

you jo ined Armscor?  You were not  personal ly involved but  

you picked that  knowledge up f rom other sources.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  that  was mainly f rom the documents 

wi thin the organisat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you deal  in paragraph 5.3 20 

wi th the RFO having gone out  and then you had a bid – and 

then Armscor had a Bidders Conference.   Would this  be the 

sort  of  meet ing when potent ia l  b idders are inv i ted to come 

and at tend a session wi th the ent i ty,  in th is case Armscor,  

that  wants to put  out  the tender.  
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MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you ment ioned that  some of  the 

potent ia l  b idders raised concerns.   What d id that  rela te to? 

MR MKWANAZI :    According to  the documents,  some of  the 

suppl iers raised a concern Chai r  that  they could not  gain 

access to some of  the documents that  they are required to  

be able to submit  a tender.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what in part icu lar were they 

concerned that  they were not  having access to? 

MR MKWANAZI :    They complained that  when they required 10 

the informat ion that  is wi th in  Denel ,  Denel  refused to supply 

the informat ion to them.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now there is a reference in these 

pages to data packs.   Are you aware of  any concerns re lat ing 

to data packs? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.   The data packs wi l l  be the 

kind of  informat ion that  was produced dur ing the t ime when 

Denel  was doing the concept phase of  the tarot .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so some of  the potent ia l  b idders 

were expressing concern that  they were not  having access to 20 

data packs.   Is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.   Yes,  correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you understand f rom your  

invest igat ion or form what informat ion you had avai lable to  

you,  who was granted access to the data packs and who was 
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not? 

MR MKWANAZI :    What t ranspired was the fact  that  Denel  

was in an exclusive agreement wi th the EX company which is 

a foreign company.   So as a resul t  of  that ,  Denel  was not  in  

a posi t ion now to disclose that  informat ion to other potent ia l  

b idders.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So i t  was an intel lectual  property  

issue? 

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  was the informat ion that  they require to 

be in a posi t ion to  submit  a tender.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI :    Such as the data packs and some of  the 

technical  informat ion that  is requi red.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now Denel ,  we know ul t imately,  

go the contract  but  you ment ion in your aff idavi t  that  

ul t imately only one offer – i f  you look at  5.4,  notwi thstanding 

the open-bid process,  only one offer  was received f rom 

Denel .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now Denel  had the informat ion.   I f  we 20 

can go back to paragraph 5.4.   This is what i t  says.   I f  I  may 

read i t  br ief ly into the record.  

“During the Bidders Conference,  var ious potent ia l  

b idders raised a concern that  they did not  have 

access to the data packs and informat ion of  the 
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tar i ffs that  have been developed by Denel  dur ing the 

concept stages. ”  

 So Denel  had developed the actual  concept .   Is that  

r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Denel  was now one of  the 

potent ia l  b idders,  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you say:  

“The IP (The Inte l lectual  Property)  is jo int ly owned 10 

by Armscor and Denel .   The matter  was reported to  

the Board of  Di rectors of  Armscor who inst ructed 

that  a let ter be wri t ten to Denel ,  request ing them to 

avai l  the documents to potent ia l  b idders.   

Indicat ions at  that  stage were that  Denel  had 

entered into an exclusive agreement wi th European 

Ast ronaut ic Defence and Space Company,  EADS and 

Pat r ia which included the data packs. ”  

 And then you proceed to say:  

“Notwithstanding the Open B id Process,  only one 20 

offer was received form Denel . ”  

 Now your aff idavi t  does not  ind icate whether Denel  

carr ied out  the request  or inst ruct ion that  i t  should,  as you 

put  i t ,  avai l  the documents to the potent ia l  b idders.    

 You simply say that  there were indicat ions that  Denel  
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had an exclusive agreement relat ing to the data packs.   

What did you understand the outcome of  the Armscor 

requested Denel  to release the informat ion to be?   

 Did they release the informat ion to other potent ia l  

b idders? 

MR MKWANAZI :    From the look of  th ings,  i t  was not  

re leased Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was not . . .?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  was not  released.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was not  released? 10 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did you,  in fact ,  have informat ion 

to the effect  that  gave an explanat ion as to why they did not  

re lease i t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  could not  f ind the informat ion.   A l though, 

according to the informat ion there was a let ter that  was 

wri t ten From Armscor to Denel  request ing that  Denel  

re leases the informat ion but  I  couldn 't  f ind any let ter  

informat ion that  responded to that  speci f ic let ter.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In other words,  the response f rom the 20 

now back to Armscor?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So on what basis do you say there 

were indicat ions at  that  stage that  Denel  had entered into an 

exclusive agreement wi th EADS and Pat r ia which included 
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the data packs?  where did you get  that  informat ion f rom?  

MR MKWANAZI :    That  Informat ion was a submission that  

was prepared by the Acquis i t ion Department to the board 

informing the board that  i t  looks l ike there is going to be a 

single source in view of  the fact  that  Denel  is refusing to  

supply other potent ia l  b idders wi th the data packs and 

technical  informat ion.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MKWANAZI :    And the board took note of  that .   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did the board disagree wi th the 10 

at t i tude of  Denel  as far as you are aware?  

MR MKWANAZI :    The board d isagreed to an extent  that  the 

board instructed the CEO that  he wri tes a let ter that  Request  

to Denel  to release a l l  the informat ion that  is required by 

other potent ia l  b idders.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  but  i t  appears that  that  may not  

have happened and did the boat  not  fo l low up as far as you 

are able to  say f rom your knowledge off  the documents and 

the informat ion? 

MR MKWANAZI :    From the documents i t  was reported that  20 

the let ter was seen but  I  couldn 't  f ind any informat ion to the 

Effect  of  the fact  of  what was Denel ’s response to the let ter.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And then you proceed at  5.4 to 

say that  the Open Bid Process then went ahead At  anyone 

offer what received and that  is f rom Denel .    
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 Do you bel ieve that  there is a possibi l i ty is that  in fact  

the reason why Denel  was the only horse in th is race,  the 

only party that  submit ted an offer even though other  

potent ia l  b idders had shown an interest  was because they 

had not  been given informat ion that  they could meaningful ly  

tender on? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.   But  I  could f ind two reasons.   

the other reason was the fact  that  two local  suppl iers 

requested that  the closing date be extended but  that  was 

submit ted also to the Steer ing Commit tee.   and accord ing to  10 

the minutes of  that  Steer ing Commit tee,  that  request  was 

refused by the cl ient  which is the SANDF(?)  in view of  the 

fact  that  requi rement,  i t  was fel t  that  i t  is urgent ly requi red.    

 They cannot afford to extend the closing date for 

another year.   So those two companies also they couldn 't  

submit  the ir  tender plus the fact  that  that  the others had 

complained as a resul t  of  not  having the technical  

informat ion.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Then you refer to the 

evaluat ion at  paragraph 5.5 and you have at tached var ious 20 

documents or refer  to var ious documents.   and then you 

refer speci f ical ly to the tarot  speci f icat ions and the vehicle 

speci f icat ions and then speci f ic speci f icat ions having been 

send out ,  at  the foot  of  page 12.   Do you see that?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you set  out  in paragraph 

5.7.1 to 9 these speci f ic approved speci f icat ions that  was set  

out .   Again,  Were you involved personal ly in that?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Again be fore  your  t ime?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  you ab le  to  he lp  the  Commiss ion  

w i th  any comment  as  to  whether  you be l ieve  the  process 

tha t   was fo l lowed was proper  and  fa i r  as  fa r  as  you were  

ab le  to  p ick  up?  10 

MR MKWANAZI :   I  th ink  th is  was dur ing  the  ear l ie r  s tages 

o f  the  tender ing  p rocess when they  were  prepar ing  i n  te rms  

o f  the  spec i f i ca t i on .   So as  i t  was –  the  process was fa i r  in  

te rms o f  –  the  on ly  company tha t  was hav ing  tha t  capab i l i t y  

a t  the  t ime,  i t  deve loped a  concep t  o f  the  tu r re t  as  we l l  as  

the  p la t fo rm were  those two  compan ies  tha t  were  

cont rac ted  to  do  the  work .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   But  i s  there  no t  a  poss ib le  v iew 

to  be  fo rmed in  re la t ion  to  th is  tha t  i t  was unsat is fac tory,  

the  resu l t  tha t  came out  tha t  there  was e f fec t i ve l y  no  20 

compet i t ion  because Dene l  cou ld  on ly  be  the  – cou ld  be  

the  on ly  b idder  in  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  i t  had the  

in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  w i th  Armscor?   A rmscor,  in i t ia l l y,  as  

we know,  the  board  sa id  tha t  they shou ld  make the i r  da ta  

packs and the  in fo rmat ion  in  tha t  ava i lab le  to  the  o the r  
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compet i to rs .  

MR MK WANAZI :    I  th ink  a t  the  t ime when th is  was done,  

Cha i r,  i t  was not ,  you know,  env isaged tha t  there  is  go ing  

to  be  a  prob lem o f  Dene l  ge t t ing  in to  an  exc lus i ve  

agreement  w i th  the  company.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  the  t ime i t  may not  have been 

env isaged.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And in  fac t  you were  no t  invo lved a t  

the  t ime yourse l f  bu t  you then took up  a  sen ior  pos i t ion  10 

w i th in  Armscor  and have p icked up in fo rmat ion  and  

fo rmula ted  a  v iew.    You may no t  a t  the  –  you wou ld  no t  

have a t  the  t ime have env i saged there  m ight  be  a  prob lem 

but  look ing  backwards,  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  and w i th  

the  fac t  tha t  we  are  ask ing  you th is  quest ion  as  an  exper t  

in  the  f ie ld  o f  p rocurement  management ,  do  you have any  

v iew as to  whether  in  fac t  there  was any i r regu lar i t y?   

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  say  there  was any  

i r regu lar i t y  because the  reason be ing  tha t  when such has  

happened,  no rma l ly  then when we  go out  on  a  tender  you  20 

wou ld  make i t  a  po in t  tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  is  ava i l ab le  to  

po ten t ia l  b idders .   One way o f  do ing  tha t  wou ld  be  to  pu t  i t  

as  par t  o f  the  request  fo r  o f fe r  tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  w i l l  be  

customer  fu rn ished in fo rmat ion  mean ing  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  

supp l ied  to  whoever  requests  fo r  i t  bu t  tha t  was not  done.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  the  quest ion  i s ,  shou ld  –  I  beg  

your  pa rdon?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The quest ion  is ,  

shou ld  i t  no t  have been done? 

MR MKWANAZI :    I  wou ld  say i t  shou ld  have been done to  

avo id  th is  s i tua t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  p resumably  are  we l l -aware  as  

an  exper t  in  the  f ie ld  o f  supp ly  cha in  management   o f  

Sect ion  217 o f  the  const i tu t ion  and the  PFMA,  no t  so?    10 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And they,  o f  course ,  requ i re  tha t  

when there  is  p rocurement  o f  any goods and serv ices  in  

the  pub l i c  sec tor  tha t  en t i t y,  in  th is  case Armscor,  shou ld  

have in  p lace  a  sys tem which  i t  then g i ves  e f fec t  to  wh ich  

ensure  the  const i tu t iona l  ob jec t i ves  tha t  the  process be  

lawfu l  there ,  compet i t i ve ,  cost  e f fec t i ve  and equ i tab le .   I t  

jus t  seems,  Mr  Mkwanaz i ,  and I  am jus t  go ing  to  pu t  to  you 

a  poss ib le  v iew tha t  can be p laced on an outs ide  observer  

on  the  s i tua t ion  tha t  the  resu l t  o f  what  was be ing  done,  20 

deny ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  in  the  da ta  packs ac t ion  or  

omiss ion  on  the  par t  o f  those invo lved a t  A rmscor  be fore  

you were  invo l ved,  se r ious ly  p revent  o r  underm ined the  

poss ib i l i t y  o f  i t  ever  be ing  compet i t i ve ,  no t  so?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Le t  a lone t ransparent  and cost -

e f fec t i ve ,  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you  know based  on the  

documenta t ion  tha t  you have had access to  whethe r  Dene l  

fu rn ished Armscor  w i th  any grounds or  reasons fo r  them 

not  ava i l ing  the  packs to  the  o ther  po ten t ia l  b idders  and i f  

you are  aware  what  the  reasons were ,  a re  you ab le  to  say  

whethe r  they were  va l id  reasons fo r  them re fus ing?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  am not  aware ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  aware  what  the i r  reasons were?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  m ight  j us t  go  back to  the  po in t  

tha t  Mr  Kennedy was mak ing  to  you and I  th ink  you  agreed  

w i th  i t  bu t  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  ear l ie r  on  I  unders tood you to  have  

thought  tha t  –  to  have expressed  a  v iew tha t  the  process 

was fa i r.   I f  A rmscor  had taken the  v iew tha t  th is  was a  

case where  i f  a t  a l l  poss ib le  d i f fe ren t  po ten t ia l  b idders  

shou ld  have the  oppor tun i ty  to  b id  then i f  they  ended up  

w i th  one b idder,  namely  Dene l  because Dene l  re fused to  20 

ac t  in  acco rdance  w i th  the  request  o r  ins t ruc t ion  or  request  

f rom Armscor  then def in i te ly  f rom the  po in t  o f  v iew o f  

A rmscor  the  process must  have –  shou ld  have been seen 

as  un fa i r.   Wou ld  you agree w i th  tha t  o r  wou ld  you l i ke  me 

to  repeat  i t?  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 123 of 213 
 

MR MKWANAZI :    Repeat  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I f  A rmscor  had taken the  v iew tha t  

they wanted to  make a  dec is ion  on  th is  tender  w i th  the  

benef i t  o f  d i f fe ren t  leaders  hav ing  pu t  in  the i r  b ids  and 

they had ins t ruc ted  or  requested Dene l  to  make the  da ta  

packs ava i lab le  to  o ther  po ten t ia l  b idders  so  tha t  A rmscor  

cou ld  have the  benef i t  o f  d i f fe ren t  b idders  and Dene l  

re fused to  make  the  da ta  packs  ava i lab le  to  the  o the r  

po ten t ia l  b idders  then un less  Armscor  had been g i ven good 

reasons by  Dene l  then Armscor  shou ld  have v iewed the  10 

process as  un fa i r.  

MR MK WANAZI :    Cha i r,  re ly ing  on  the  document  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  was re l y ing  on ,  I  was not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

ge t  to  tha t  conc lus ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  there  were  no  reasons tha t  you  

found fu rn ished by  Dene l ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So my propos i t ion  is ,  assuming tha t  

Armscor  had not  been fu rn ished w i th  any va l id  reasons by  

Dene l  fo r  no t  mak ing  the  da ta  packs ava i lab le  to  the  o ther  20 

b idders ,  po ten t ia l  b idders ,  then Dene l  shou ld  be  expected 

to  have regarded  the  process as  un fa i r  because no va l id  

reasons had been prov ided.   Obv ious ly  i f  there  were  va l id  

reasons tha t  were  prov ided by  Dene l ,  the  p ic tu re  m ight  

change but  i f  A rmscor  has the  same in fo rmat ion  tha t  you 
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have had access  to  then one wou ld  expect  them to  a lso  

have fo rmed a  v iew tha t  th is  p rocess was unfa i r.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  ag ree w i th  tha t .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   You see,  i t  jus t  

s t r i kes  one as  an  outs ider  no t  invo lved in  the  process jus t  

as  you came in to  Armscor  no t  hav ing  yourse l f  been 

invo lved in  the  process,  i t  jus t  looks ra ther  s t range tha t  10 

Armscor  unders tands tha t  there  is  a  p rob lem in i t ia l l y,  i t  

unders tands qu i te  cor rec t l y  tha t  on ly  Dene l  has the  

in fo rmat ion  and but  i t  wou ld  l i ke  compet i t i ve  b ids  f rom a 

who le  lo t  o f  o ther  supp l ie rs .   They need the  in fo rmat ion  

and what  seems to  be  to  i t s  c red i t ,  A rmscor  says we l l ,  

Dene l  p rov ide  tha t  in fo rmat ion  bu t  then Dene l  does not  

seem to  prov ide  i t ,  you  are  no t  aware  o f  any reasons tha t  

were  ra ised by  Dene l  to  jus t i f y  tha t  bu t  most  impor tan t ly,  

tha t  no  reasons seemed to  have been ra ised w i th  Armscor  

fo r  i t  to  say  okay,  we accept  you  are  no t  go ing  to  supp ly  20 

the  in fo rmat ion  and what  seems to  be  s t range about  the  

who le  th ing  is  tha t  one b idder,  Dene l ,  tha t  cou ld  s tand to 

make mi l l ions o f  rands out  o f  th is  cont rac t  i s  ab le  to  

e f fec t i ve l y  s top  anybody e lse  even put t ing  in  a  tender  

because they lack  in fo rmat ion  tha t  they have to  ge t  f rom 
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Dene l ,  Dene l  i s  to ld  by  Armscor  p rov ide  the  in fo rmat ion  

and Dene l  do  no t  and they never  go  back to  Armscor  and  

jus t i f y  i t .   And Armscor,  in  the  process,  seem to  have  

a l lowed the  s i tua t ion  to  deve lop  where  one tenderer  i s  ab le  

to  e l im ina te  the  en t i re  range o f  compet i t ion .   Do you have 

any comment  on  what  I  have jus t  pu t  to  you,  whether  you  

th ink  i t  i s  a  fa i r  comment  o r  no t?   

MR MKWANAZI :    I  wou ld  say i t  i s  a  fa i r  comment ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  me,  have  you had access  to  the 10 

minutes  o f  the  Armscor  board?  I  am assuming i t  wou ld  

have been the  A rmscor  board  tha t  was to  make a  dec i s ion  

on  th is .   Have you had access  to  the  m inutes  o f  the  

meet ing  where  they made the  dec i s ion  to  g rant  th is  to  

Dene l  o r  access  to  the  m inutes  o f  some o f  the  meet ings 

tha t  happened a f te r  they wou ld  have expected Dene l  to  

have compl ied  w i th  the i r  request  o r  to  have fu rn i shed  

reasons fo r  no t  comply ing?  What  I  am look ing  fo r  i s  

whethe r  you have had access to  a  meet ing  where  the  

Armscor  board  wou ld  have d iscussed the  issue to  say what  20 

happened to  the  request  we sa id  shou ld  be  conveyed to  

Dene l  to  share  the  in fo rmat ion  w i th  o ther  po ten t ia l  

b idders?   What  has Dene l  sa id  -  i f  they  have not  done so ,  

what  i s  the  reason?  Have you had access to  those 

minutes?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  i t  be  somebody e lse  who  wou ld  

have easy access to  those minutes  and not  you or  you 

cou ld  a lso  have access i f  you  wanted to?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  then have to  go  back and 

check f rom the  a rch i ves a l l  the  m inutes  tha t  fo l lowed tha t  

par t i cu la r  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MK WANAZI :    And I  am not  sure  whether  I  w i l l  f ind 

anyth ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  wou ld  be  good to  look  a t  the  

m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  where  the  board ,  i f  i t  was the  

board ,  where  they made the  dec i s ion  tha t  Dene l  must  be  

requested to  ava i l  th is  in fo rmat ion  to  o the r  po ten t ia l  

b idders  and to  l ook  a t  the  m inu tes  tha t  fo l lowed  up to  

whatever  t ime made where  the  dec is ion  was taken to  g rant  

the  tender  to  Dene l  and see whether  a t  any s tage th i s  

i ssue was rev is i t ed  to  say why d id  Dene l  no t  comply  w i th  

our  request  because I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  a  b idder  wou ld  

want  to  comply  w i th  the  request  fo rm a  company where  20 

they seek to  ge t  bus iness f rom par t i cu la r ly  i f  they  do  not  

have va l id  reasons.   So,  in  o ther  words,  i t  wou ld  be  good  

to  know whethe r  was th is  i ssue eve r  fo l lowed  up by  

Armscor,  what  d id  they do  about  i t ,  what  d id  they  f ind  in  

te rms o f  in fo rmat ion  or  i s  i t  someth ing  tha t  was swept  
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under  the  carpet  because I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  even a t  the 

t ime o f  them tak ing  the  dec i s ion  whethe r  to  award  Dene l  

the  tender  I  wou ld  expect  tha t  the  board  w i l l  say  hang on,  

be fore  we can award  th is  tender,  why d id  you not  comply  

w i th  ou r  request?   Why d id  you not  comply  w i th  our  

request?   And,  I  mean,  I  do  no t  know but  I  can imag ine  tha t  

w i th  some boards they m ight  say  we l l ,  you  know,  we a re  

no t  go ing  to  award  i t  to  you because you are  p revent ing  

o ther  compet i to rs  and we want  compet i t ion ,  we are  no t  

go ing  to  award  i t  to  you un less  you g ive  us  va l id  reasons 10 

why you d id  no t  comply  and i f  you do not  have va l id  

reasons we are  no t  go ing  to  g ive  th is  award  to  you w i thout  

compet i t ion .   You  unders tand tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  do ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  and you say you can fo l low  up and  

check minutes?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja .   No,  tha t  wou ld  be  he lp fu l .   

Un less ,  Mr  Kennedy,  there  i s  ano ther  w i tness who  covers  

what  I  was ta lk ing  about .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you.   My a t ten t ion  is  

d rawn to  page 453.   I f  I  can  ask  the  w i tness to  tu rn  to  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    453.   Do you  have i t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    453,  yes .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now th i s  appears  to  be  a  submiss ion  

to  the  Armscor  board .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  you look a t  the  fo l low ing page  

454,  paragraph 5 ,  tha t  re fe r red  to  the  cur ren t  s ta tus  o f  the  

procu rement  p rocess a t  tha t  s tage.   

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The repor t  i s  in  fac t  headed:  

“Not i f i ca t ion  on  p ro jec t  s ta tus ”  

And near  the  bo t tom i t  says  –  sor ry,  in  fac t  the  second 10 

unnumbered paragraph in  pa ragraph 5  –  or  in  fac t  the  f i rs t ,  

the  f i rs t  th ree .  

“RFA be ing  issued 23 compan ies ,  no t  a l l  have  

responded.   Var ious peop le  such as  Braz i l ian  Army 

has shown in te res t . ”  

E tce tera .   In  the  next  paragraph:  

“A t  th is  s tage the  consor t ium cons is t ing  o f  Dene l ,  

EADS and LMT is  the  on ly  consor t ium tha t  has 

conf i rmed i t s  in ten t ion  to  par t i c i pa te . ”  

A re  you fami l ia r  w i th  th is  repor t?  20 

MR MK WANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  document  I  sa id  I  

looked a t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then on the  next  page,  

parag raph 7 ,  i t  says  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  head ing :  

“Act ion  taken by  Armscor.  
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A le t te r  was sent  by  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r  o f  

Dene l  request ing  Dene l  to  make  the  L IW tur re t  

ava i lab le  to  po ten t ia l  o f fe rors  who want  so  submi t  

o f fe rs  based on veh ic le  sys tems equ ipped w i th  the  

L IV  (s ic )  tu r re t .   See copy o f  le t te r  a t tached. ”  

We wi l l  look  a t  tha t  in  a  moment .   Does tha t  re la te  to  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  have been conta ined in  the  da ta  

packs?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  pa ragraph –  a t  page 456.   I t  10 

says:  

“Conc lus ion .   A rmscor  acqu is i t ion  depar tment  

w ishes the  Armscor  board  o f  d i rec tors  to  take  note  

o f  the  poss ib le  s ing le  o f fe r  s i tua t ion  tha t  may ar i se  

on  the  grounds o f  the  a forego ing  repor t . ”  

Was tha t  somebody who was in  the  depar tment  be fore  you  

jo ined i t  in  acqu is i t ions?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The genera l  manager.   Do you know 

the  name o f  tha t  person?  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you recogn ise  h is  o r  he r  

s ignature?  Who is  tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Mr  G ideon Smi th  was the  genera l  

manager  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Smi th?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Smi th ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And  then i f  I  can  take  you to  

page 462?  Do you have tha t?    

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now tha t  appears  t o  be  a  le t t e r  f rom 

Armscor  as  fa r  back as  Ju ly  2004.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    From i t s  genera l  manager   

acqu is i t ion ,  tha t  i s  the  ve ry  same Gideon Smi th  you  10 

re fer red  to ,  co r rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  i s  addressed to  the  CEO of  

Dene l .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  re fe rs  to  the  veh ic le  o f  

re levance.   I f  I  can  jus t  p ick  up  on –  on  page 462.   Yes,  the  

second paragraph:  

“A po tent ia l  contender  fo r  th i s  new veh ic le  p roduc t  

sys tem has wr i t ten  an  o f f i c ia l  le t te r  to  Armscor  t o  20 

in fo rm us tha t  i t  has  come to  the i r  a t ten t ion  tha t  the  

L IW two man tu r re t  wou ld ,  as  a  p r inc ip le ,  be  so le ly  

ded ica ted  to  EADS Pat r ia  ac t ing  as  the  Dene l  

par tner  in  the  Hoefys te r  p ro jec t . ”  

I t  appears  to  be  a  quote  f rom the  potent ia l  b idder  who has 
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ra ised th is  query  and then the  –  then Mr  Smi th  cont inues,  

the  th i rd  pa ragraph:  

“The potent ia l  contender  the re fo re  requested us ,  

A rmscor,  to  p rov ide  them wi th  the  in i t ia l  2  man  30  

mm tur re t  deve loped w i th  de fence  fund ing ,  i .e .  the  

tu r re t  wh ich  was  exh ib i ted  a t  the  September  2002  

Aero  A f r i ca  Defence Show in  o rde r  fo r  them to  

ver i f y  whether  th is  tu r re t  cou ld  f i t  in to  the i r  veh ic le  

p la t fo rms and cou ld  be  deve loped to  comply  w i th  

the  pro jec t  Hoe fys ter  requ is i t ions .   A rmscor  i s ,  10 

however,  s t rong ly  opposed to  the  idea tha t  any  

loca l l y  deve loped  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  wh ich  cou ld  

g ive  ou r  loca l  indust ry  and/or  South  A f r i can 

Nat iona l  Defence Force  a  w inn ing  edge is  

t ransfer red  to  a  fo re ign  en t i t y  w i thout  fu l l  p ro tec t ion  

o f  r igh ts . ”  

And then i t  quer ies  whether  the  po tent ia l  contender ’s  

s ta tement  i s  cor rec t ,  asks  fo r  c la r i t y  and then a t  the  foo t  o f  

the  page,  the  las t  paragraph:  

“Shou ld  any s ing le  o f fe r  s i tua t ion  ar i se  f rom our  20 

cur ren t  request  fo r  o f fe r  and i t  i s  no t  cons idered to  

be  the  op t imum so lu t ion ,  A rmscor  may we l l  cons ide r  

en ter ing  in to  ano ther  round o f  tender  inv i ta t ions  in  

o rder  to  se lec t  the  most  cos t  e f fec t i ve  sys tem.   I  

must  a l so  ment ion…”  
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Th is  i s  the  top  o f  page 463:  

“…that  Armscor  has p laced orde rs  fo r  m i l l i ons  o f  

rands in  c rea t ing  and main ta in ing  the  capab i l i t ies  a t  

L IW and recent ly  p laced orders  w i th  Dene l  (P ty )  L td  

t rad ing  as  L IW to  the  va lue  o f  R28 765 000 fo r  

p ro jec t  Hoefys ter  tu r re t  concept  deve lopment  and  

tu r re ts  demonst ra tors  as  we l l  as  orders  to  the  va lue  

o f  8 .6  m i l l ion fo r  med ium tur re t  techno logy.    

In te l lec tua l  p roper ty  tha t  was crea ted in  L IW  

through these investments  i s  ex tens ive ly  used in  a  10 

pro to t ype tu r re t  cur ren t ly  be ing  prepared by  L IW fo r  

phys i ca l  eva lua t ion  purposed in  te rms o f  ou r  

request  fo r  o f fe r.   A rmscor  a lso  prov ided 

author isa t ion  to  L IW for  the  bor rowing o f  cer ta in  

hardware  f rom Armscor  i n  o rder  to  ass is t  L IW in  the  

prepara t ion  o f  th is  p ro to type tu r re t .   In  v iew o f  the  

above,  Armscor  k ind ly  requests  tha t  Dene l  make the  

L IW pro to type  tu r re t  ava i lab le  to  po ten t ia l  

contenders  who w ish  to  inc lude th is  tu r re t  in  an  

o f fe r  fo r  the  new genera t ion  indust ry  combat  veh ic le  20 

product  sys tem to  Armscor. ”  

I t  says :  

“P lease note  the  request  i s  d i rec ted  to  you w i thout  

p re jud ice  to  any o f  A rmscor ’s  r igh ts . ”  

So is  i t  based on th is  tha t  you have sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t  
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tha t  you are  aware  tha t  a  le t te r  was sent  be fore  you t ime  

by  Armscor  to  the  Dene l  CEO spec i f i ca l l y  ask ing  h im to 

make ava i lab le  th is  in fo rmat ion?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  pu rpose o f  tha t  in fo rmat ion  

to  be  supp l ied  wou ld  be  to  enab le  o ther  po ten t ia l  b idders  

to  see can we manufac ture  th is?   Now we know tha t  i t  

invo l ves,  can we manufac ture  i t  and put  in  a  tender?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  wou ld  have then have  10 

ensured a  compet i t i ve  process.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  the  upshot  o f  whatever  happened 

or  d id  no t  happen here  is  tha t  i t  seems the  marketp lace  

were  no t  g iven in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  have enab led  them 

to  take  par t  in  th is  compet i t ion  and tha t  Dene l  a lone then  

submi t ted  an  o f fe r.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And tha t  was  a f te r  Dene l ,  i t  appears ,  

dec ided not  to  accede to  the  request  made by  Armscor  20 

i t se l f  tha t  i t  shou ld  make tha t  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  jus t  seems to  poss ib ly  suggest  an  

in te rpre ta t ion  and tha t  i s  tha t  was th is  no t  a  p redetermine  

process?  Was th is  no t  jus t  a  sham or  a  façade a imed a t  
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ensur ing  tha t  Dene l  wou ld  ge t  the  bus iness a t  leas t  f rom 

Dene l ’s  s ide  in  no t  mak ing  ava i lab le  the  in fo rmat ion  and  

then pe rhaps ass is ted  by  Armscor  in  no t  fo l low ing up to  

see whethe r  they had made ava i lab le  the  in fo rmat ion? 

MR MKWANAZI :    I  wou ld  no t  say  tha t ,  Cha i r,  in  v iew o f  

the  fac t  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  f ind  in fo rmat ion  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  

they d id  no t  respond to  th is  par t i cu la r  le t te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  there  i s  someth ing  I  f ind  s t range  

here .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  you a lso  f ind  i t  s t range,  10 

namely  tha t  the  l e t te r  to  Dene l ,  to  wh ich  Mr  Kennedy has 

drawn our  a t ten t i on ,  f rom Armscor  wh ich  requested  Dene l  

to  make the  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le  to  po ten t ia l  –  o the r  

po ten t ia l  b idders ,  i s  da ted  20 Ju ly  2004 and the  

submiss ion  to  the  board  o f  A rmscor  wh ich  sought  to  a le r t  

the  board  tha t  a l though the  board  wanted a  mul t i -source  o f  

a  p rocess,  i t  cou ld  end up w i th  a  s ing le  source  o f fe r  wh ich  

is  –  tha t  i s  the  submiss ion  a t  page 453  tha t  Mr  Kennedy  

re fer red  us  to  ear l ie r,  453.   Whoever  p repared th is  

submiss ion ,  i t  i s  s t range tha t  a f te r  s ta t ing  in  paragraph a t  20 

page 455 the  fac t  tha t  Dene l  was asked to  make ava i lab le  

to  –  the  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le  to  po ten t ia l  –  o the r  po ten t ia l  

b idders ,  i t  does  not  te l l  the  Armscor  board  what  has 

happened,  has Dene l  compl ied  w i th  tha t  request?   I f  Dene l  

has no t  compl ied ,  what  exp lanat ion  or  reasons they have  
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g iven,  i t  jus t  moves or  he  or  she ,  I  do  no t  know,  moves 

qu ick l y  a f te r  s ta t ing  tha t  very  impor tan t  fac t  to  say ing  –  to  

the  conc lus ion  and the  conc lus ion  is  Armscor  acqu is i t ion  

depar tment  w ishes the  Armscor  board  o f  d i rec tors  to  take  

not  o f  the  poss ib le  s ing le  o f fe r  s i tua t ion  tha t  may ar ise  on  

the  grounds o f  the  a forego ing  wh ich  is  –  what  he  leaves 

out ,  what  he  om i ts  seems to  me  to  be  someth ing  very  

impor tan t  because the  board  –  he  shou ld  have expected 

tha t  the  board  wou ld  want  to  know was the  le t te r  sent  ou t  

to  Dene l ,  have they responded,  what  d id  they say?   And i f  10 

they do  not  comply  w i th  ou r  request ,  what  reasons have  

they g i ven?  Tha t  i s  no t  done in  th is  memo.   Do you see  

tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you f ind  tha t  a lso  s t range  or  no t  

rea l l y?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  f ind  i t  s t range  as  we l l  bu t ,  l i ke  I  sa id ,  

when I  checked the  in fo rmat ion  in  te rms o f  the  response,  I  

cou ld  no t  f ind  any in fo rmat ion ,  you know,  tha t  they 

responded to  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes because the  purpose  o f  th is  

submiss ion ,  i t  says  r igh t  a t  the  top ,  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the 

submiss ion :  

“The a im o f  the  submiss ion  to  no t i f y  the  Armscor  

board  o f  d i rec tors  o f  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  the  cu r ren t  
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mu l t i -source  o f fe r  p rocess may mater ia l i se  in  a  

s ing le  source  o f fe r. ”  

So the  most  impor tan t  th ing  tha t  they wou ld  want  to  know 

is  we know tha t  i f  Dene l  re fused to  make in fo rmat ion  

ava i lab le  to  o ther  po ten t ia l  b idders  we wou ld  end up  in  th is  

s i tua t ion ,  tha t  i s  why we requested tha t  Dene l  shou ld  make 

the  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le .   I f  we are  now go ing  to  –  i f  there  

i s  a  poss ib i l i t y  we are  go ing  to  end up w i th  a  s ing le  o f fe r  

s i tua t ion ,  a  s ing le  source  o f fe r,  the  board  su re l y  wou ld  

want  to  know why has the  board  –  has Dene l  no t  compl ied  10 

w i th  our  request?   I f  so ,  why?   

And whoever  was wr i t ing  the  submiss ion  shou ld  

have checked because tha t  mus t  be  the  most  impor tan t  

in fo rmat ion  they wou ld  have wanted to  know so tha t  i f  they  

were  no t  conv inced o f  the  soundness o f  Dene l ’s  reasons 

fo r  no t  mak ing  the  in fo rmat ion  ava i lab le ,  they cou ld  dec ide  

what  ac t ion  to  take .   Indeed,  in  the  le t te r  tha t  was sent  to  

Dene l  wh ich  –  to  wh ich  Mr  Kennedy has drawn our  

a t ten t ion ,  they make i t  c lear  to  Dene l  tha t  i f  we  have a  

s ing le  source  o f fe r  we cou ld  re run  the  tender.   That  i s  how 20 

impor tan t  i t  was to  the  board  tha t  there  be  a  mul t i -source  

process o f  a  p rocess.   You unders tand where  I  am coming 

f rom? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i t  jus t  seems very  s t range to  me 
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tha t  the  person who is  te l l ing  them about  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  

them end ing  up w i th  a  s ing le  source  o f fe r  does no t  say  –  

does not  dea l  w i th  th is  very  impor tan t  aspect .   Okay,  Mr  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  jus t  to  –  i f  we can  

jus t  p ick  up  on tha t  l ine  o f  quest ion ing .   I f  I  can  ask  you  

p lease to  tu rn  to  page 229?  229  is  the  s ta r t  o f  a  se t  o f  

m inutes  tha t  you have re fer red  to  i n  your  a f f idav i t .   Do you  

have 229?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    These a re  m inutes ,  i t  seems,  o f  a  

meet ing  o f  the  pro jec t  Hoefys ter  s teer ing  commi t tee  

meet ing ,  number  17 ,  he ld  on  the  9  September  2004 and  

there  are  var ious  genera ls  and rear-admi ra l  and co lone ls  

and so  fo r th  and var ious o f f i c ia ls  o f  A rmscor.   I f  I  can  take  

you to  page 231,  parag raph 2 .5 .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Page 221?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    231,  s t i l l  i n  the  same minutes ,  

parag raph 2 .5 ,  do  you have i t?   Mr  Mkwanaz i?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Parag raph 2 .5?   Yes I  do  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  says  no t ice  to  Armscor  Board  o f  

D i rec tors ,  I  w i l l  read out  i f  I  may the  re levant  po r t ions .  

“A rmscor  Acqu is i t ion  Depar tment  made a  

submiss ion  to  the  Board  regard ing  a  poss ib i l i t y  o f  a  

s ing le  source  o f fe r  be ing  submi t ted  by  the  24 t h  o f  
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February  2005,  the  fo l low ing were  ment ioned or  

d iscussed.   The CEO of  Armscor,  Mr  H S  Thomo,  

d iscussed the  tu r re t  i ssue w i th  Mr  V  Moche f rom 

Dene l ,  Mr  Moche conf i rmed the  agreement  w i th  

EADS as we l l  as  the  invo lvement  o f  loca l  compan ies  

l i ke  A lphus OMC and LMT as par t  o f  the  Dene l  o f fe r.    

The va lue  sys tem does not  p rov ide  fo r  a  s ing le  o f fe r  

s ince  p r ice  cannot  be  assessed in  a  compara t ive  

manner.   Cost  cou ld  be  a  prob lem but  can be  

addressed th rough compar ison w i th  h is to r i ca l  da ta  10 

as  we l l  as  th rough negot ia t ions  w i th  the  cont rac tor.    

Mr  Goosen s t ressed tha t  i t  was never  ind i ca ted  to  

any fo re ign  contenders  tha t  L IW Tur re t  wou ld  be  

supp l ied  CFI . ”  

And then Co lone l  Kotze  re fer red  to  the  in f luence o f  

s l ippage in  t ime sca les  e tce te ra ,  bu t  what  some peop le  

seem to  have been a l i ve  to  i s  a  ser ious concern  tha t  i f  you  

on ly  have,  i f  i t  tu rns  ou t  to  be  on ly  one supp l ie r  o r  

po ten t ia l  supp l ie r  tha t  pu ts  in  a  tender  i t  i s  obv ious l y  

imposs ib le  to  compare  pr i ces  i f  there  i s  no  compar i son,  20 

there  i s  nobody,  on ly  A submi ts  a  tender,  B ,  C  and  D  

haven ’ t  submi t ted  a  tender  so  you can ’ t  compare  A’s  p r ice  

w i th  anyth ing .   Would  you agree w i th  me Mr  Mkwanaz i  tha t  

compet i t i veness,  i f  in  fac t  the  market  p lace  i s  such tha t  

o ther  peop le  can make a  par t i cu la r  i tem is  very  impor tan t .  
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MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then there ’s  the  concern  ra i sed 

tha t  fo re ign  b idders  were  no t  inv i ted .   Can I  ask  you,  we  

are  ask ing  these  quest ions because you a re  the  cur ren t  

ac t ing  head a t  A rmscor  and we apprec ia te  i t  i s  d i f f icu l t  fo r  

you because you  have inher i ted  a  s i tua t ion  tha t  has been  

created by  o the rs  and we s imply  ask  you to  comment  on  

what  you have found s ince  you go t  there ,  bu t  on  tha t  score  

cou ld  I  ask  you what  wou ld  you say wou ld  be  the  cor rec t  

approach fo r  Armscor  p rocurement  peop le  such as  yourse l f  10 

in  a  pos i t ion  tha t  you now occupy,  i f  you  had occup ied  i t  a t  

the  t ime and you  had been adv is ing  sen ior  o f f i ce rs  w i th in  

Armscor  as  to  the  co r rec t  p rocess ,  what  shou ld  have been 

done here  do  you be l ieve  in  re la t ion  to  t he  tu r re t  

p rocu rement?  

MR MK WANAZI :    In  v iew o f  the  fac t  tha t  Dene l  was 

invo lved in  te rms o f  deve lopment  the  tu r re t  and the  

deve lopment  was  pa id  by  Armscor,  mean ing  tha t  Dene l  and 

Armscor  were  shar ing  the  IP.   What  I  wou ld  have done was  

to  make i t  a  po in t  tha t  as  par t  o f  the  RFO they inc lude the  20 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  was requ i red  by  the  o ther  supp l ie rs ,  even  

i f  we don ’ t  inc lude i t  in  the  documents  bu t  we re fer  in  tha t  

documents  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  customer  fu rn i shed in fo rmat ion  

mean ing  tha t  as  and when reques ted we w i l l  supp ly  i t  to  

them.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Could  i t  be  poss ib le  tha t  Dene l  may  

have had a  leg i t imate  reason not  to  because i t  was the  par t  

owner  o f  the  IP?    

MR MKWANAZI :    That  was the  background IP tha t  Dene l  

had and then the  fo reground IP i t  i s  owned by  Armscor  i n  

te rms o f  hav ing  pa id  fo r  i t ,  so  I  wou ld  have s t rong ly  

negot ia ted  tha t  w i th  the  par t  tha t  we have pa id  fo r  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  shou ld  be  made ava i lab le  to  o ther  po ten t ia l  

b idders .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  now I  have jus t  read out  a  10 

por t ion  tha t  i s  in  fac t  re fe r red ,  cos ts ,  cos ts  cou ld  be  a  

prob lem,  wou ld  you unders tand a  comment  such as  tha t  to  

mean i f  we on ly  have one b idder  pu t t ing  in  i t s  tender  there  

w i l l  be  no  compet i t ion  and they may o f  cou rse  charge qu i te  

a  h igh  pr ice  because they w i l l  know nobody e lse  or  

po ten t ia l l y  know tha t  nobody is  ab le  to  compete  and th is  

m ight  exceed budgets .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You have re fer red  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you back i f  I  may,  to  pa rag raph  20 

4 .8 .1  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  I  w i l l  g ive  you the  page in  a  

moment ,  i t  i s  page 9 .   You see in  4 .8  your  a f f idav i t  says  

deve lopment  p lan ,  the  DP was approved by  the  AAC what  

does tha t  s tand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  what  page  is  tha t  Mr  Kennedy?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    009,  i t  i s  number  9 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    79?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No 09.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh page 9 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Simply  page 9  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  jus t  fo r  cons i s tency no t  

ment ion  the  zero  o therwise  somet imes who read the  

t ranscr ip t  w i l l  th ink  they must  look  fo r  a  zero  whereas i f  we 

say –  we don ’ t  say  the  zero .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Apolog ies  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Page 9  pa rag raph 4 .8 .    

“The deve lopment  p lan  was approved the  AAC . . . ”  

What  does tha t  s tand fo r?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  A rmaments  Acqu is i t ion  Counc i l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  o f  the  Defence Force  or  o f  

A rmscor?  

MR MKWANAZI :    No tha t  one is  fo r  the  Depar tment  o f  

Defence,  i t  i s  a  Counc i l  tha t  i s  cha i red  by  the  Min is te r  o f  

Defence.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  they o f  course  wou ld  be  the  c l ien t  

in  th is  who le  pro jec t ,  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  beg your  pa rdon?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    They wou ld  be  the  c l ien t  fo r  th is  

p ro jec t?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The deve lopment  p lan  approved by  

the  AAC on the  27 t h  o f  October  2006 autho r is ing  the  

fo l low ing,  and then i t  g ives  fund ing ,  fund ing  fo r  the  

deve lopment  o f  de l i verab les ,  wou ld  be  w i th in  a  ce i l ing  

amount  o f  R1.2b i l l i on  a t  2006 Rand  va lue ,  the  deve lopment  

be  comple ted  by  November  2011 and fund ing  fo r  

indust r ia l i sa t ion  and product ion  o f  the  leve l  5  p roduct  

sys tem to  a  ce i l ing  amount  o f  R7 .288b i l l i on ,  I  rounded o f f  

the  f igure ,  and tha t  wou ld  aga in  be  a  2006 Rand va lue .   So 10 

wou ld  Armscor ’s  o f f i c ia ls ,  inc lud ing  the  peop le  who  took – 

who he ld  your  pos i t ion  be fo re  you  jo ined them wou ld  they  

have had to  work  w i th in  those max imum amounts  tha t  were  

budgeted fo r  by  the  de fence fo rce ,  the  depar tment  o f  

de fence?  

MR MK WANAZI :    Yes Cha i r  by  tak ing  i t  in to account  tha t  

i s  now a t  the  t ime,  mean ing  tha t  i t  i s  exc lud ing  esca la t ion  

and the  ra te  o f  exchange.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  indeed.   Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn 

i f  I  may p lease  to  tu r re t  spec i f i ca t ions   There  were  20 

spec i f i c  techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions fo r  the  tu r re t  fo r  the  i tems 

o f  a rmoured veh ic les  to  be  supp l i ed  by  Dene l  to  Armscor  

wh ich  in  tu rn  wou ld  supp ly  those to  the  de fence fo rce ,  

cor rec t .    Sor ry  Mr  Mkwanaz i?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Would  you p lease repeat  the  ques t ion ,  i s  
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i t  no t  based on my a f f idav i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We are  go ing  to  look  a t  your  a f f idav i t  

aga in  in  a  moment ,  jus t  bear  w i th  me.  

MR MKWANAZI :    May you p lease then repeat  the  

quest ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am jus t  g iv ing  you an in t roduct ion .   

There  were  cer ta in  techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions fo r  the  tu r re ts  

tha t  had to  be  pu t  in to  the  RFO,  the  Request  fo r  Offe rs  no t  

so?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Whoever  was to  pu t  in  a  tender  

wou ld  have to  know what  the  spec i f i ca t ions were  so  tha t  i t  

cou ld  mean ing fu l l y  [a ]  dec ide  whether  i t  cou ld  make i t  a t  

a l l  and [b ]  i f  i t  wanted to ,  i f  i t  was ab le  to  make i t  and 

wanted to  tender  i t  a t  what  cos t  wou ld  i t  be  ab le  to  do  so ,  

cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  da ta  packs wou ld  they have  

enab led  a  prospect ive  tenderer  to  know what  the  tu r re t  

spec i f i ca t ions were?  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  tha t  the  prob lem tha t  

re la tes  to  the  da ta  packs we have dea l t  w i th  I  be l ieve  fu l l y,  

what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  move onto  now is  were  you invo lved a t  

any s tage in  the  ac tua l  s ign ing  o f f  o f  tu r re t  spec i f i ca t ions?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    No Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  aga in  your  comments  in  your  

a f f idav i t ,  a re  they based on what  you have p i cked up f rom 

your  pos i t ion  as  Head o f  Acqu is i t ion  tha t  you have  

ment ioned to  the  learned Cha i r,  and you are  se l f -

acqua in ted  w i th  the  re levant  documents .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you have dea l t  w i th  some very  

he lp fu l  de ta i l  in  re la t ion  to  the  tu r re t  spec i f ica t ions and  

par t i cu la r l y  phases and base l ines and the  Cha i r  has  10 

a l ready heard  ev idence f rom some o f  your  co l leagues f rom 

Armscor  wh ich  have expressed  –  who have expressed 

some d i f fe ren t  v iews i t  seems to  yours  in  re la t ion  to  

base l ines fo r  purposes o f  the  spec i f i ca t ions.   Can you very  

br ie f l y  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  what  your  v iew is  in  re la t ion  to  

whethe r  o r  no t  the  spec i f i ca t ions  tha t  were  approved fo r  

the  pa r t i cu la r  cont rac t  tha t  was u l t imate ly  awarded were  

cor rec t  regu lar  o r  no t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    They were  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    From a  techn ica l  po in t  o f  v iew.  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    From the  techn ica l  po in t  o f  v iew in  v iew 

o f  the  fac t  tha t  they come f rom the  use r  requ i rement  o f  the 

c l ien t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  were  you made –  sor ry  was a  

copy made ava i lab le  to  you o f  the  a f f idav i t s  o f  Mr  Malepa 
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and Mr  Nkoz i ,  your  co l leagues f rom Armscor?   

MR MKWANAZI :    No Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you a le r ted  though to  the  fac t  

tha t  they had a  cer ta in  v iew? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes how were  you a le r ted  fo r  tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  was a le r ted  when I  looked a t  –  f i rs t l y  I  

was a le r ted  when  I  was to ld  tha t  they have submi t ted  the i r  

s ta tement  and then a l so  when they were  present ing  in  tha t  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  you were  ab le  to  hear  the i r  

ev idence,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you p lease  i f  you 

wou ld  Mr  Mkwanaz i  jus t  in  ve ry  br i e f  te rms bear ing  in  m ind 

tha t  we have a l l  the  de ta i l  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  bea r ing  in  m ind  

a lso  tha t  there  i s  a  lo t  o f  techn ica l i t y  here  tha t  you are  

go ing  to  need to  exp la in  bu t  we wou ld  l i ke  to  keep  i t  a t  a  

very  broad leve l .   What  i s  the  cruc ia l  po in t  on  wh ich  you 

d isagree,  i f  you  d isagree a t  a l l ,  w i th  the i r  ev idence  on the 20 

spec i f i ca t ions?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Where  I  d i f fe r  is  on  the  bas is  o f  the  fac t  

tha t  the  product  base l ine ,  wh ich  was sp l i t  in to  two  was not  

in  accordance w i th  the  document  wh ich  they are  re fer r ing  

to  as  Mi l l  S tandard  3 ,  because Mi l l  S tandard  3  ind ica tes  
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tha t  the  d i f fe ren t  base l ine  can be ta i lo red  to  the  

programme,  depend ing  on how complex  the  prog ramme is  

o r  how s imple  the  prog ramme is ,  and in  th is  case what  

happened i t  looks  l i ke  they have  taken the  product ,  the  

East l ine ,  wh ich  is  a  base l ine  jus t  wh ich  ind ica te  the  

comple t ion  o f  the  deve lopment  phase.   However  they sp l i t  

i t  in to  two,  to  a  base l ine  ca l led  PBLA and tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]     

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Okay,  my apo log ies  fo r  in te r rup t ing  

you,  may I  jus t  ask  you to  s top  fo r  a  moment ,  jus t  so  tha t  10 

we get  the  comple te  p ic tu re  in  re la t ion  to  what  a  base l ine  

is .   Can I  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  to  page 18.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Wi l l  you  p lease repeat ,  page?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    18 ,  one e igh t .   Do you have tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now in  paragraph 7 .6  th is  i s  

what  your  a f f idav i t  says  the  product  base l ine  and the  

manufac tur ing  base l ine  o r  de f i n ing  p ro jec t  Hoefys ter  

cont rac t  1161 ’s  suppor t ing  annexures,  these suppor t ing  

annexures cover  i n te r  a l ia  t he  de l i ve rab les ,  work  20 

breakdown and s ta tement  o f  work  and pr ices .  

“7 .7  The p roduct  base l ine  is  a  m i les tone where  

a l l  requ i rements  have been funct iona l l y  ver i f ied .   T 

h is  base l ine  i s  used to  de f ine  the  s ta r t  o f  the  

indust r ia l i sa t ion  phase.   P ro jec t  Hoefys ter  p roduc t  
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base l ine  is  b roken down in to  a  produce base l ine ,  a  

BPLA and a  f ina l  p roduct  base l ine  1 ,  BPL1,  fo r  each 

var ian t . ”  

R igh t ,  so  le t ’s  jus t  s top  there ,  so  tha t  i s  a  he lp fu l  de f in i t ion 

o f  what  a  p roduct  base l ine  is  so  tha t  de f ines the  s tandards 

tha t  have to  be  met  be fore  one can  move out  o f  the  des ign  

phase in to  the  indust r ia l i sa t ion  phase,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you have re fer red  to  two product  

base l ines,  i t  was  broken down in to  these two,  the  one is  10 

PBLA and a  f ina l  p roduct  base l ine  PBL1,  fo r  each var ian t .   

Now you w i l l  reca l l  here in  the  ev idence presented  to  the 

Commiss ion  prev ious l y  jus t  ove r  a  week ago to  the  e f fec t  

tha t  PBL1 in  fac t  cor responds w i th  the  s tandard  base l ine  

tha t  the  SANDF has adopted,  wou ld  you ag ree w i th  tha t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   But  then there  was  

d isagreement  as  to  what  –  as  to  whether  i t  was appropr ia te  

to  de termine PBLA as a  var ia t ion  o f  PBL1 fo r  purposes o f  

th is  cont rac t .    Now you have ind i ca ted  you d isagree w i th  20 

the  ev idence,  in  what  respect?  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  d isagree in  the  sense tha t  i f  you  look  

a t  PBLA and PBL1 they fo rm PBL wh ich  is  a  p roduct  

base l ine ,  so  wha t  happened was they took the  PBL and  

sp l i t  i t  in to  two,  mean ing  tha t  you take  a l l  the  ac t iv i t ies  
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tha t  a re  supposed to  be  ach ieved  by  PBL,  then what  they  

d id  as  shown on my a f f idav i t  on  page 19 they took  a  PBLA 

and have those  ac t iv i t ies ,  amongst  those ac t iv i t i es ,  the  

ac t i v i t ies  tha t  a re  s ta ted  there  and then have PBL1 wh ich  

are  those ac t iv i t ies  tha t  –  some o f  the  ac t iv i t ies  tha t  a re 

l i s ted .  

 Now i f  you take  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i t  fo rms PBL i t  

fo rms base l ine  ach ieved.   So what  they then d id  was to  

sp l i t  these two as  accord ing  to  the  s tandard ,  because the  

s tandard  ind ica tes  tha t  i t  can  be day l igh t  to  the  complex i t y  10 

o f  the  p ro jec t  and  i f  I  look  a t  the  document  here  i t  

ind ica tes  tha t  the  reason why they  wanted to  sp l i t  i t  was to  

be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  have a  t r igger ing  po in t  o f  the 

indust r ia l i sa t ion  phase so  tha t  there  is  a  seamless 

t rans i t ion  o f  a  deve lopment  phase to  the  manufac tur ing  

and to  the  indus t r ia l i sa t ion  and manufac tur ing  phase,  so  

tha t  you don ’ t  have a  gap because i f  you had to  comple te  

PBL comple te l y  then you w i l l  have to  s top  and then now 

you s tar t  an  indust r ia l i sa t ion .  

 So they wanted to  have a  po in t  a t  wh ich  the  r i sk  20 

have been reduced su f f i c ien t ly  to  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  s ta r t  

an  indust r ia l i sa t ion  so  they sp l i t  i t  then in to  two,  PBLA and 

then PBL1 and i f  I  look  a t  cur ren t  documents  you even see 

–  i t  i s  even in  the  cur ren t  document  in  te rms  o f  the  

improvement  o f  the  base l ine  management .   They re fer  to  
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tha t  PBLA as the  in i t ia l  PBL,  they ca l l  i t  PBL i  and then they 

ca l l  PBLA1 a  ve r i f ied  PBL,  so  cur ren t ly  i f  you  look  a t  the 

s tandards now i t  i s  d iv ided in to  two,  so  wh ich  they d id  i t  a t  

tha t  t ime fo r  the  s im i la r  purpose.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was the  reason why they  d id  a  

leg i t imate  reason  in  your  v iew? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Cha i r  in  my v iew I  th ink  i t  was  

leg i t imate ,  look ing  a t  the  complex i t y  o f  the  pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You d isagree  w i th  the i r  v iew tha t  the  10 

d i f fe rence between the  two  base l ines and the  

compl ica t ions tha t  th is  has brought  about  has resu l ted  in  

par t  o f  the  d i f f i cu l t ies  tha t  the  Hoefys te r  Pro jec t  i s  fac ing?  

MR MK WANAZI :    Cha i r  I  wou ld  d isag ree tha t  i t  has  

resu l ted  because  a t  the  po in t  in  t ime when i t  was done i t  

was a  means o f  manag ing  the  r i sk .   The fac t  tha t  we have 

rea l i sed some o f  the  r i sk  i s  no t  due to  the  fac t  tha t  i t  was  

sp l i t  i t  in to  two.   I t  i s  –  fo r  a  number  o f  reasons tha t  Dene l  

i s  exper ienc ing .  

 I f  you  look a t  PBLA fo r  ins tance I  th ink  they  20 

ach ieved i t  a round 2011,  and i f  you look a t  what  i s  now 

outs tand ing  in  te rms o f  them to  ach ieve PBL1  i t  i s  a  

number  o f  th ings  tha t  a re  fa in t  in  te rms o f  the  sys tem tha t  

has been des igned,  wh ich  they need to  go  back,  cor rec t ,  

and re tes t  aga in .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  I  can  ask  you to  look  aga in  a t  

page 19,  so  7 .8  se ts  ou t  par t i cu la r  de l i verab les ,  7 .8 .1  to  

7 .8 .10  is  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then 7 .9  f rom 7 .9 .1  to  7 .9 .19  on 

the  top  o f  the  fo l low ing page g ives a  d i f fe ren t  l i s t  o f  

de l i verab les  and in  fac t  tha t  PBL1 l i s t  i s  no t  exhaust ive ,  in  

o ther  words i t  i s  on ly  i n te r  a l ia  the  fo l low ing.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  fac t  under  7 .8  i t  i s  a lso  i n te r  a l ia  10 

those tha t  a re  l i s ted  the re ,  so  there  are  some marked 

d i f fe rences between the  two lo t s  o f  requ i rements ,  no t  so?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And in  your  7 .10  you say the  

indust r ia l i sa t ion  phase es tab l i shes the  manu fac tur ing  

process,  i t  i s  f i xed  a t  the  manufac tur ing  base l ine  thereaf te r  

the  manufac tur ing  and product ion  commences.    

 So I  unders tand  f rom your  a f f idav i t  you ear l ie r  

d is t ingu ished between a  des ign  deve lopment  phase,  wh ich  

is  d is t ingu ished  f rom the  indust r ia l i sa t ion  phase,  ve ry  20 

br ie f l y  and I  hope I  don ’ t  ove r -s imp l i f y  i t ,  the  des ign  

deve lopment  phase is  rea l l y  a  s tage o f  p repara t ion  be fore  

you as  a  supp l i e r  can ac tua l l y  s ta r t  manufac tur ing ,  you 

have to  ge t  the  des ign  pe r fec t l y  co r rec t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And par t  o f  tha t  means tha t  you have 

to  meet  cer ta in  th resho lds  in  th is  contex t  one o f  those 

th resho lds  be ing  the  PBL,  cor rec t ,  the  product  base l ine?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Whethe r  i t  be  PBLA or  PBL1 you  

have to  meet  e i ther  o r  bo th  o f  those,  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Bo th  o f  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bo th  o f  those.   And before  you can  

them move on to  the  indust r i a l i sa t ion  phase you must  

sa t is fy  Armscor  as  a  supp l ie r  tha t  you have met  a l l  o f  the  10 

requ i rements  o f  bo th  PBLA and then PBL1.  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Together  o f  course  w i th  a  who le  lo t  

o f  o ther  base l ines and o the r  requ i rements ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now i f  we can jus t  re tu rn  to  7 .1 

on  page 20,  apparent ly  the  PBL1,  o r  a t  leas t  a t  the  s tage  

tha t  you s igned  th is  a f f idav i t  the  PBL1 and MBL a re  

cur ren t ly  de layed .  

MR MKWANAZI :   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  s t i l l  the  pos i t ion  today,  i t  

hasn ’ t  improved  or  been so l ved s ince  you s igned the  

a f f idav i t  in  –  jus t  a  few weeks back? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease why  
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these PBL1 and MBL leve ls  a re  de layed.  

MR MKWANAZI :    I  w i l l  focus on  the  PBL1 Cha i r  because i t  

i s  the  one tha t  needs to  be  comple ted  befo re  one gets  to  

the  PBL,  sor ry  the  MBL.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI :    PBL has been de layed fo r  a  number  o f  –  

PBL1 has been de layed fo r  a  number  o f  reasons.   I t  was 

the  prob lems,  the  techn ica l  p rob lems . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    How long was the  de lay,  jus t  s ta r t  there ,  

be fore  we go to  the  reasons?  10 

MR MK WANAZI :    Cha i r  the  comp le t ion  shou ld  have been 

around 2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  i s  e igh t  yea rs  de lay?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Correc t  Cha i r.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Perhaps i f  I  may Cha i r,  may I  take  

the  w i tness to  page 22 where  there ’s  some usefu l  de ta i l s  

he  g ives  in  re la t ion  to  da tes .    N ine  dea ls  w i th  the  pro jec t  

s ta tus  and you say in  9 .1 :  

“DLS is  la te  on  many o f  the  de l i verab les  on  pro jec t  

Hoefys ter.   Th i s  has had a  snowbal l ing  e f fec t .  To  20 

th is  end f inanc ia l  l i qu id i t y  cha l lenges a re  no t  

a l low ing DLS to  acqu i re  c r i t i ca l  components  and 

pay supp l ie rs  and sub-cont rac tors  fo r  supp l ies  and  

serv i ces . ”  

I s  tha t  because o f  DLS ’s  own f inanc ia l  p rob lems or  i s  i t  
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because Armscor  i s  caus ing  DLS f inanc ia l  p rob lems? 

MR MKWANAZI :    I t  i s  because o f  DLS own f inanc ia l  

p rob lems cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  may I  jus t  ask  be fore  I  

p roceed,  I  shou ld  have asked you th is  be fore ,  i s  pa r t  o f  our  

ro le  in  your  capac i ty  as  the  Act ing  Head o f  P rocurement  a t  

the  moment ,  i s  pa r t  o f  our  ro le  to  mon i to r  the 

imp lementa t ion  o f  cont rac t s  tha t  have a l ready been  

awarded to  supp l ie rs  l i ke  DLS? 

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  and then in  9 .2  you say  Phase  

1  deve lopment ,  9 .2 .1  and I  th ink  th is  may g ive  – conf i rm 

the  answer  tha t  you have g iven  to  the  learned Cha i r  a  

moment  ago,  the  or ig ina l  da te  fo r  comple t ion  o f  Phase 1  

deve lopment  o f  a l l  var ian ts  was May 2012.   Var iance be ing  

d i f fe ren t  mode ls  no t  so  o f  the  same armoured veh ic le?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  Phase 1  wou ld  have been 

comple ted  once the  supp l ie r  sa t is f ied  what  the  PBLA and  

he PBL1,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And when  wou ld  MBL have to  be  

sa t is f ied ,  du r ing  the  Phase 1  deve lopment  o r  Phase 2  

indust r ia l i sa t ion?  

MR MKWANAZI :    MBL is  Phase 2 .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Phase 2 .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Post - indust r i a l i sa t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t ’s  manufac tu r ing  base l ine .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Manufac tur ing  base l ine  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  then you have under  9 .3  

Phase 2  indust r ia l i sa t ion ,  the  de l i very  o f  the  f i rs t  sec t ion  

var ian t  p re -product ion  mode l  i s  cur ren t ly  approx imate l y  

s ix ty  months  beh ind  schedu le  and cont inues to  s l ip .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The cont rac ted  de l i ve ry  da te  o f  the  10 

f i rs t  SVPPN was August  2015?  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  i t  i s  now 60 months ,  tha t  i s  

f i ve  years  beh ind .  

MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  South  A f r ica  was –  God fo rb id  –  a t  

war  p resumably  th is  wou ld  have  mater ia l  impact  on  i t s  

capac i ty  to  de fend the  na t ion ,  the  Defence Force ,  cor rec t?  

MR MKWANAZI :    In  the  sense tha t  they requ i re  th is  

capab i l i t y  I  wou ld  say co r rec t ,  a l though they have got  20 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  these k inds o f  de lays  re f lec ts  

no th ing  e lse  bu t  s imp ly  a  d isas ter  i sn ’ t  i t?   I t  i s  a  d isas ter  

to  have these k inds o f  de lays ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  
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MR MKWANAZI :    Cor rec t  Cha i r,  in  the  sense tha t  the  

capab i l i t y  tha t  i s  supposed to  be  de l i vered is  no t  de l i vered.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  comple te ly  unacceptab le .    That  

i s  comple te ly  unacceptab le .    How can someth ing  tha t  was 

requ i red  in  2012 and i t  had been promised to  be  de l i vered  

in  2012 e igh t  years  l a te r  i t  has  no t  been de l i vered.   And  

you may o r  may not   be  the  r igh t  person to  te l l  me what  

has been done over  the  years ,  why –  what  has happened 

why is  th is  s i tua t ion  a l lowed to  cont inue.   Has anybody  

been f i red  fo r  no t  do ing  the i r  job ,  has anyth ing  happened,  10 

i t  i s  jus t  un th inkab le .  

 I  mean you might  no t  be  ab le  to  say anyth ing  bu t  i t  

i s  jus t  unbe l ievab le  how someth ing  l i ke  th is  can be a l lowed  

to  cont inue fo r  so  long.   I  mean I  was say ing ,  I  don ’ t  know 

i f  i t  was las t  week or  the  o ther  week,  i t  must  be  the  o ther  

week when we were ,  when I  was hear ing  ev idence  re la t ing  

to  Dene l ,  when I  was say ing  tha t  –  when I  sa id  there  is  

another  p ro jec t  re la t ing  to  SABC and te lecommunica t ion ,  I  

th ink  they ca l l  i t  d ig i ta l  m igra t ion ,  tha t  has been de layed 

maybe worse  than th is ,  maybe more  or  less  the  same th ing ,  20 

and qu i te  f rank l y  I  th ink  I  keep myse l f  reasonab ly  in fo rmed,  

I  have not  heard  o f  any heads tha t  have ro l led ,  eve ry th ing  

jus t  has moved  on,  i t  i s  l i ke  there  is  nobody who  

superv i ses  tha t  Min is te rs  do  the i r  jobs ,  DG’s  do  the i r  job ,  

Heads o f  SOE’s  do  the i r  job ,  peop le  under  CEO’s  do  the i r  
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job ,  Boards o f  SOE’s  do  the i r  job .  

 How can th is  k ind  o f  s i tua t ion  be  a l lowed to  

happen?  Wel l  you might  know  how –  s ince  you got  

invo l ved in  the  pos i t ion  have  you come across any  

in fo rmat ion  o f  any heads tha t  have  ro l led .  

MR MK WANAZI :    Cha i r  when the  mechan ism tha t  we have  

on ou r  s ide  as  an  acqu is i t ion  agent  fo r  such a  supp l ie r  a l l  

we do is  to  levy  pena l t ies ,  we put  p ressure  on  them,  bu t  i t  

i s  Dene l  i t se l f  you know tha t  shou ld  improve the  s i tua t ion  

in  te rms o f  ensur ing  tha t  the  de lays  are  no t  as  bad as  they  10 

are  r igh t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  Dene l  i s  an  SOE.    Dene l  i s  an  

SOE.    The execut ive  must  be  ab le  to  do  what  they can i f  

tha t  th ing  is  in  an  SOE tha t  don ’ t  seem to  be  work ing  the  

Board  shou ld  be  ab le  to  do  someth ing  i f  the  Board  cannot  

do  i t s  job  someth ing  shou ld  be  done about  tha t  Board  and  

there  must  be  a  CEO.   I  mean you just  cannot have a 

si tuat ion where something that  was supposed to happen so 

long ago has not  happened and f rom what you say in your 

aff idavi t  i t  looks l ike these del iver ies that  should have 20 

happened in 20 – May 2012 not  only have they not  happened 

in 2020 there is no certainty as to when they wi l l  happen.   

Denel  has suggested 2023 I  do not  know how long 

ago they made that  suggest ion and I  do not  know what the 

basis was for choosing 2023 as opposed to 2021 or 2022 or 
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why is  not  20 – wi l l  i t  ever happen?  And why is i t  a l lowed to 

just  cont inue l ike that?   

The Chairperson of  the board of  Denel  was here 

giving evidence that  other week.   I f  I  am not  mistaken she 

said I  am paraphrasing now.  This is one of  thei r  – I  mean 

this Hoefyster Project  is one of  thei r  n ightmares you know.  

I t  is  something that  is real ly causing huge d i ff icul t ies and 

problems.  

But  maybe other wi tnesses who wi l l  come wi l l  te l l  me 

something that  wi l l  g ive me comfort  that  there is  a c lear  10 

di rect ion as to how to so lve the problem.   

Because leaders are put  in leadership posi t ions,  

managers are put  in management posi t ions so that  they can 

make decisions.   They can lead.  

Ja okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What appears to be part icular ly 

t roubl ing is that  these problems can ar ise and get  so ser ious 

that  i t  is only when the judiciary in a jud icia l  commission. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Deals wi th i t  that  only then … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The publ ic can and government seem to 

become aware of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is just  – i t  is l ike – i t  is l ike the story of  

the SOE’s.   So many of  them appear to be in ser ious t rouble 
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and you ask yoursel f  the quest ion;  did somebody not  see 

f rom a long t ime ago that  there was t rouble coming and took 

steps to make sure that  we did not  – these SOE’s did not  get  

to where they are now.   

 Were there not  – no people – were there no 

pol i t ic ians who were responsible?  Were there no Ministers;  

was there no President?  Were there no Presidents who were 

supposed to make sure that  their  Ministers did the job that  

they were supposed to do?  Were there no Ministers who 

were supposed to see to i t  that  the CEO’s or the boards did 10 

their  job?   

I f  they d id not  do their  job they got  f i red and proper – 

and members of  boards who knew what they were doing were 

brought in.   And boards of  these SOE’s what did they do i f  

the CEO’s the CFO’s seemed not  to be doing the ir  job?  

These things do not  just  happen overnight .    

There is a process – there is a t ime that  happens and 

i f  you know what  you are doing and you act  in the best  

interest  of  the SOE’s you can see that  there is go ing to be a 

problem in the fu ture unless we arrest  th is si tuat ion.   And 20 

you ei ther know how to arrest  i t  or i f  you do not  know you 

should get  out  of  the way.    

Let  somebody e lse who knows how to do the job get  

and arrest  the si tuat ion.   These SOE’s are – they are tax 

payers SOE’s.   So when you see a problem l ike this just  
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going on and on and on for years you cannot understand why 

there is no leadership to say whether at  pol i t ical  level  or  

management level  to say,  th is cannot be al lowed to go on.   

Serious decisions must  be taken one way or another and 

then those decisions are taken.   Or you do not  know whether  

people are af ra id to make wrong decisions.    

But  i f  you are a leader or you a manager you must  be 

able to  take decisions whether you are wrong or  not  wrong 

you – you must  take a decision.   You know.  The worst  th ing 

is for you not  to make a decision because you are scared of 10 

making a wrong decision.   You must make a decision.   I  

mean eight  years and f ive years.   Just  seems real ly 

intolerable.   Yes Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   I  am not  sure that  the 

next  bi t  of  evidence is going to give you any comfort .   I  need 

to complete the pictures to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Complet ion dates.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So wel l  the one thing we should get  

is to get  the t rue picture.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The facts.   Absolute ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the si tuat ion ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  – i f  I  may then take you Mr 

Mkwanazi  to page 23?  We see that  there is a tab le in which 

as I  understand the DOS has – has given proposed dates for  
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complet ion of  certain mi lestones,  is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   These are not  dates proposed by 

Armscor,  your company?  They are proposed by DLS the 

suppl ier.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes i t  is the suppl ier Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now we know f rom your ear l ier 

evidence that  the development  stage – the phase 1 

development should have been completed by May 2012 that  

is eight  years ago – more than eight  years ago.   I f  we look at  10 

this table we see the fourth i tem complet ion of  development  

in – under the heading 2018.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Kennedy I  d id not  hear the 

page number? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry Chai r  i t  is page 23.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We at  the tab le Chai r  and the wi tness 

has indicated th is sets out  the – the proposed dates for 

complet ion.   Mr Mkwanazi  before we look at  the detai l  as I  

understand the descr ipt ion column just  deals wi th the 20 

var ious stages to be achieved – the mi lestones as i t  were,  is  

that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So SVPBL1 turret  – SVPBL1 p lat form 

and SVL5PBL1 those al l  re late to the product ion basel ine 1 
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for di fferent  var iat ions,  is that  r ight?  Or the d i fferent  

elements so the turret  on the one hand the plat form on the 

other,  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No Chai r  i t  is not  product ion i t  is 

development.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No not  product ion development i t  is 

achievement of  the PBL, correct .  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes achievement of  PBL1.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   PBL yes.   And that  has st i l l  not  been 

approved? 10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  correct?  And the second column 

2018 proposed dates.   Am I  r ight  in understanding that  those 

were dates proposed in 2018 as to  when i t  was expected in 

2018 i t  would st i l l  be completed? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So for example i f  we look at  the f i rst  

i tem the SVPBL1 turret  in – we know that  al l  of  that  should 

have been completed before May 2012 but  when there was a 

delay al ready apparent ly in 2018 i t  had not  been achieved.   20 

In 2018 i t  was proposed and planned that  i t  would be 

completed by May 2019, is that  correct? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In other words seven years af ter the 

or ig inal  intended complet ion date.   Now your last  column 
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Current  Proposed Dates is  to  be determined.   Is that  what 

DLS have indicated?  At  the moment they do not  have a 

proposed date that  they can give wi th any measure of  

conf idence.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And the same appl ies to the next  i tems.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then the complet ion of  

development  the fourth i tem can only take place af ter  the 

f i rst  three i tems are completed,  is that  r ight? 10 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In 2018 i t  was proposed that  the 

complet ion – the development  would be by June 2021 that  is 

not  far to go – that  is just  about  six/seven months – eight  

months maybe to go.   Now what DLS is  saying is  that  the ir  

current  proposed dates – date for  the complet ion of  the 

development is December 2023.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   E leven years late af ter the intended 

complet ion date of  May 2012 20 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  can we – can you at  Armscor have 

any conf idence in December 2023 as being the complet ion of  

the development  where they st i l l  have to determine what  

they propose as a date for complet ion of  the f i rst  three i tems 
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which have to be completed before development is  

completed – development stage is completed? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  is very di ff icul t  to say that  one has got  a 

good level  of  conf idence in v iew of  the fact  that  when they 

submit  such a revised complet ion dates i t  is al l  subject  to 

Denel  get t ing a bai lout .   So i f  they do not  get  a bai lout  they 

are not  in a posi t ion to – to buy cr i t ical  parts;  they are not  in  

a posi t ion to pay suppl iers so l i tera l ly there is minimal that  is 

taking place in Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  Denel  does not  get  any bai lout  th is – 10 

these – this wi l l  remain where i t  is? 

MR MKWANAZI:   The probabi l i ty of  achieving i t  is  minimal  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in terms of  f inancial  loss to Armscor 

up to now i f  th is  was not  to be achieved for  whatever reason 

do you have an idea how much f inancia l  loss that  would 

mean more or less in terms of  whatever i t  may have spent  

al ready t ry ing to  get  these i f  then we were to be in a 

si tuat ion where Denel  is not  bai led out  and therefore i t  

cannot cont inue wi th – i t  cannot actual ly do this? 20 

MR MKWANAZI:   In terms of  what  has been spent Chair  I  

th ink somewhere I  touch on i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is i t  at  page 21? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Page 21.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am not  sure i f  th is is what you 
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referr ing to.   Just  have a look at  page 21 wi l l  that  help you? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Table 1.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Page 21.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  explain to the Chai r  p lease what 

that  – what that  sets out? 

MR MKWANAZI:   What sets out  there Chair  is that  what has 

al ready been paid i t  is for phase 1 we have paid R1.5 bi l l ion.   

And i f  you look at  phase 2 what we have paid i f  about  R5 

bi l l ion.   And then i f  you look at  … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Should you not  be looking at  the total  at  

the bot tom of  the… 

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja maybe let  us look at  the total  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MKWANAZI:   I t  is about  7.6.   But  the reason why I  

wanted to  just  look at  the breakdown is that  some of  the 

things that  have been paid for i t  is th ings that  have been 

del ivered.   L ike the radios.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And – and the ammunit ion has been 20 

del ivered.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MKWANAZI:   So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No you can – have gone through… 

MR MKWANAZI:   That  is why I  just  wanted to explain i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You can go through l ike that  i f  that  is a  

legi t imate reason to do i t  that  way.  

MR MKWANAZI:   For instance i f  you look at  the radial  

s igni f icant  amount  of  i t  has been achieved.   You can see that  

the total  order is  about  R353 mi l l ion we have paid about 

R348 mi l l ion.    

I f  you look at  the other  order as wel l  for radial  that  

has also been R225 mi l l ion has been paid.   You look at  the 

Ingwe there is not  much that  was – that  we have paid there 

is the Ingwe missi le.    10 

And then i f  you look at  the development  of  Ingwe also 

we have paid about  R7 bi l l ion.   So what I  am trying to show 

Chair  is that  i f  you look at  also the other part  which is the 

parts closed order those are orders where – that  we have 

achieved on them.    

So the area that  is of  – the area that  is of  r isk Chai r  I  

would say i t  is  the area of  R1.5 bi l l ion which is  the 

development.   In  the event  that  is not  completed then we 

would not  be able to show any design.   We wi l l  not  be able 

to show any data pack for  i t .   So I  would say that  is the area 20 

that  is at  h igh r isk.   And then i f  you look at… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  is the – that  is R1 b i l l ion – that  is 

R1.  What bi l l ion? 

MR MKWANAZI:   R1.5 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Right  at  the top? 
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MR MKWANAZI:   At  the top phase 1.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is R1.5 bi l l ion.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.   I f  you look at  the composi t ion of  

phase 2 Chai r.   Under phase 2 Chair  we have got  about  

advanced payment that  has been paid of  about  – I  th ink i t  is 

about  R2 mi l l ion – R2 bi l l ion.   So i f  one deducts that  we wi l l  

be lef t  wi th about  – I  beg your pardon? 

CHAIRPERSON:   R12 b i l l ion or R2 bi l l ion? 

MR MKWANAZI:   R2 bi l l ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am try ing to see where that  is.   I  can 10 

see… 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  am saying i t  is included in there Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja I  am just  – I  just  want to sort  o f  g ive a 

bi t  of  an explanat ion there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And then – so what you would f ind Chair  –  

what is at  r isk in terms of  the phase 2 i t  wi l l  be the work in  

progress that  we have paid for.   Those vehicles and the 

parts and the systems – sub-systems that  have been bought.   20 

But  the other R2 bi l l ion that  I  referred to is covered by the – 

about R1.5 bi l l ion or  so is covered by a bank guarantee 

meaning that  we can cal l  i t  up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MKWANAZI:   And receive i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MKWANAZI:   So hence I  was saying that  that  wi l l  be the 

amount that  wi l l  be [00:14:40] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   About R1.5 bi l l ion.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja R1.5 bi l l ion and then part  of  that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  would be at  r isk.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   And of  course the – a quest ion 

that  would be bound to ar ise would be whether th is si tuat ion 

could have been avoided or may wel l  have been avoided i f  10 

there had been a compet i t ive process because maybe Denel  

would not  have been given the tender.   Because f rom what  

you have said i t  looks l ike i t  is Denel ’s f inancial  s i tuat ion 

that  is largely responsible for these delays.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes Chai r  the current  s i tuat ion.  Al though i t  

– Denel  had a problem – technical  problem delays which is  

normal in a project  of  th is nature which is very complex.   So 

even i f  you look at  internat ional  standards in terms the 

delays one would f ind that  they do have delays of  about  

three to four years in terms of  the complexi ty of  the project .  20 

But  what has worsened the si tuat ion now is that  having a l l  

those technical  problems that  Denel  experienced now i t  was 

exacerbated by the problem of  the cash f low.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The f inancia l  s i tuat ion.  

MR MKWANAZI:   The f inancia l  s i tuat ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Which is even get t ing worse in the sense 

that  because of  the f inancial  s i tuat ion not  being able to pay 

salar ies they are even losing now their  resources which wi l l  

make i t  even more di ff icul t  to achieve.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which could br ing back the technical  

problems.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .   Thank you Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   On page 24 in your  10 

concluding paragraph you say just  above 981.  

“The fol lowing are signi f icant  issues for 

considerat ion.   

981  Financial  l iquidi ty chal lenges are not  

al lowing i t  to acqui re cr i t ical  components and 

pay suppl iers and sub-contractors.”  

You referr ing there to Denel ,  is that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you say:  

“The r isk of  not  complet ing Project  Hoefyster  20 

is very high and cannot be mit igated wi thout  

external  f inancial  assistance. ”  

So are you tel l ing the Chai r  that  unless there is f inancial  

assistance by that  you mean – do you mean a so cal led 

bai lout  f rom government? 
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MR MKWANAZI:   For Denel  correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes for Denel .   Without  that  there is a 

very high r isk that  Project  Hoefyster may completely  

col lapse? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You may not  have an answer for th is but  i f  

you do that  would be helpful .   Do you have an idea about  

how big a bai lout  Denel  needs in order to be able to cont inue 

wi th th is project? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  would not  be able to give the exact  10 

f igure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes 

MR MKWANAZI:   Except  what I  have heard f rom the 

employees in Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ys.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Where they are indicat ing that  they owe 

about R700 mi l l ion to R600 mi l l ion to the suppl iers in terms 

of  the suppl iers being able to supply them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Otherwise r ight  now they are not  prepared 20 

to supply them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Whi le they are owed by Denel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Now i f  you look at  that  and a lso i f  you look 
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at  the si tuat ion in terms of  where they are in terms of  the 

normal cash f low to be able to pay salar ies talk ing about – 

about R130 or so mi l l ion per month in terms of  the salar ies.   

So I  would say what I  heard f rom the media and everywhere 

else i t  was R1.8 bi l l ion that  they were looking at .   To get  a  

bai lout  to be in a posi t ion to be you know out  of  the s i tuat ion 

so that  i t  unlocks al l  those problems.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MKWANAZI:   That  they are having and then they wi l l  be 

in a posi t ion to start  over.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Mkwanazi  are you aware that  Denel  

entered into contracts wi th VR Laser to procure var ious 

i tems – 217 plat form hul ls and then subsequent ly two lots of  

sole suppl ier contracts the one for DLS and the other for 

DVS.  Are you aware of  that? 

MR MKWANAZI:   No Chai r  we do not  manage the sub-

contractors of  Denel .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MKWANAZI:   The only informat ion I  have is based on the 20 

l ist  of  sub-cont ractors that  was given to us by Denel  and 

also in terms of  the latest  l ist  that  we have.   Yes we saw a 

shi f t  in terms of  the amount of  – of  sub-cont ract ing work in 

terms of  the value.   When we contracted Denel  the value was 

less and then as soon as they start  manufactur ing we saw 
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the value increasing of  VR Laser.   But  as to how they were 

contracted and things l ike that  we do not  get  involved at  the 

lower level  of  sub-cont ract ing and suppl iers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess the delays that  have happened 

would be pushing the pr ices up as wel l  of  whatever was 

supposed to have done in 2010/2011/2012 has not  been 

done over the past  eight  years pr ices must  be going up? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chair  there is a cost  of  escalat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MKWANAZI:   As wel l  as the rate of  exchange.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  of  course as the customer 

Armscor would be ser iously prejudiced by those escalat ions,  

is i t  not?  Or is the fact  that  the delays are caused on the – 

by Denel ,  Denel  would have to  bear  the escalat ion costs,  is  

that  r ight? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course that  just  serves to make thei r  

f inancial  s i tuat ion worse.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So on top of  the R700 and whatever  mi l l ion 20 

that  they may be owing suppl iers they may be owing a lot  of  

money that  they need in order to take care of  the escalat ion 

costs in regard to th is project? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MKWANAZI:   P lus penal t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lus penal t ies.  

MR MKWANAZI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  th is  stage do you have an idea about  

what the penal t ies – what…? 

MR MKWANAZI:   Chair  I  wi l l  off  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   What amounts we may be talk ing about? 

MR MKWANAZI:   I  wi l l  g ive an off  the cuff  f igure of  about  

R200 mi l l ion but  i t  might  not  be correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay al r ight .   Thank you.   Mr 10 

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   I f  I  may just  conclude 

wi th taking the wi tness back to  page 9.   Mr Mkwanazi  I  drew 

your at tent ion previously on page 9 to paragraph 4.8 of  your 

aff idavi t  and you wi l l  recal l  conf i rming in your evidence a 

l i t t le ear l ier th is af ternoon that  the Defence Force’s AAC as 

far back as October 2006 author ised funding wi thin a cei l ing 

amount of  R1.2 bi l l ion and then funding for the 

industr ia l isat ion and – sorry that  is  for the development and 

then the funding for industr ia l isat ion would involve R7.2 odd 20 

bi l l ion.   Now clear ly that  is not  be ing kept  to.    

Can you tel l  the Chair  p lease what measures may 

have been put  in  place at  Armscor not  Denel  – at  Armscor 

what measures were put  in place to ensure that  these l imi ts 

were not  exceeded? 
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MR MKWANAZI:   Chai r  as I  indicated ear l ier on that  these 

f igures are excluding VAT, excluding escalat ion,  excluding 

rate of  exchange so the measures we have as Armscor when 

we cont ract  we have got  a formula that  we use for – to cater 

for escalat ion.   And then we also contracted that  we wi l l  be 

paying the rate of  exchange because i t  f luctuates and is not  

as a resul t  of  the faul t  of  the suppl ier.   And then VAT 

obviously we paid in accordance to what is – what wi l l  be the 

VAT at  that  point  in t ime.  I f  i t  is 14% - 14 or 15%.   

So i f  you look at  in terms of  that  you would real ise 10 

that  because of  the escalat ion cost ,  rate of  exchange i t  is  

higher than i t  is  stated there which is understood by the 

cl ient  as wel l  and this is how they plan.   And then also on 

phase 2 i t  is the same.   

But  l ike I  was indicat ing that  when i t  comes to – 

meaning that  the formula wi l l  apply up to that  complet ion of  

the pro ject .   Beyond that  then the suppl ier then wi l l  have to 

pay the escalat ion because they are delayed as a resul t  of  

their  [00:24:26] .   So in terms of  dur ing the project  th is is how 

we cont rol l ing Chai r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  we have no further  quest ions for  

th is wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Thank you very much Mr 

Mkwanazi  for making yoursel f  avai lable to  test i fy.   I f  we need 

you again we wi l l  ask you to come back but  we appreciate 
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the fact  that  you – you made yoursel f  avai lable.   Thank you 

very much.   You are now excused.    We are at  one minute 

past  four.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We can st i l l  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes happy to cont inue thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   With the next  wi tness.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What is your contemplat ion of  how long 

would be – you wi l l  be wi th him? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  would think probably two hours.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About two hours.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Something in that  order yes Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we might  go up to six o’c lock or  so.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I  am not  sure that  we wi l l  

necessari ly f in ish in two hours but  that  is my rough est imate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Wel l  we – and tomorrow how 

many witnesses have you got? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We have only one current ly  and the 

reason for that  is  not  necessari ly that  the wi tness wi l l  take 20 

al l  day.   But  in fact  the next  wi tness wi l l  be Mr Ntshepe who 

wi l l  take some t ime.  You wi l l  recal l  he was – he replaced Mr 

Saloojee as Group CEO. So he wi l l  take some t ime.  We had 

or ig inal ly scheduled Mr Mantsha the Chai rperson but  he was 

not  avai lab le or h is legal  team were not  avai lable tomorrow 
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so they have had to be accommodated later in the week.   

And because other people have been – have been arranged 

for other dates i t  has not  been possible at  short  not ice to 

shi f t  somebody in .   So I  have explained to Mr Mhlont lo who 

is present .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  we may – might  not  get  to his 

evidence at  al l  today or he might  only be cal led at  a fa i r ly  

late stage as is  now happening and that  he must  be – 

al though he is obviously inconvenienced i f  he has to spi l l  10 

over  to  unt i l  tomorrow.  We have indicated that  that  wi l l  be 

requi red i f  we cannot f in ish today i f  we start .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay wel l  I  just  want to make an 

assessment about  tomorrow.  With Mr Ntshepe you say you 

contemplate he might  not  take the whole day.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On h is own.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What is your assessment of  – i f  we start  at  

ten tomorrow as we plan to what is  your est imate of  by when 20 

he might  be done or you might  be done? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  would th ink probably three hours 

Chai r.   Yes probably three hours we th ink,  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh because i f  that  is so there might  not  be 

a need for us to si t  too late today.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because Mr Mhlont lo  I  guess can come 

back in the morning and we f in ish wi th him.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So maybe what  we should do is  take a 

break now and then – f i f teen minutes break,  come back and 

then we – I  hear h is ev idence and then maybe – maybe up to  

f ive or quarter  past  f ive for – oh ja quarter  past  f ive or  latest  

hal f  past  f ive.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  wi l l  g ive us about what one and a hal f  

hours or so and then we cont inue wi th him tomorrow before 

Mr Ntshepe.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Certainly Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   So you proposing to  

adjourn unt i l  – and resume what at  twenty past  –  twenty 

past… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is f ive past  now I  th ink let  us adjourn 

unt i l  twenty past .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Twenty past  thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Four.   Ja   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :     

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay are we ready Mr Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r,  wi th your leave,  may 

we now cal l  our next  wi tness,  Mr Fiki le Mhlont lo? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you.   Please administer the 

oath or a ff i rmat ion.   

REGISTRAR :    P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 

WITNESS :    F ik i le Mhlont lo or known, for short ,  as Fiki le 

Mhlont lo.  10 

REGISTRAR :    Do you have any object ion in taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

WITNESS :    No.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you consider the oath to  be binding on 

your conscience? 

WITNESS :    Yes,  I  do.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive,  

i t  w i l l  be the t ruth,  the whole t ruth and nothing e lse but  the 

t ruth?  I f  so,  please raise your r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  20 

WITNESS :    So help me God.  

FIKILE MHLONTLO :   (d.s.s. )  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Yes,  you may proceed 

Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Mhlont lo,  Has 
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provided the Commission 's teams two statements/aff idavi ts 

Chai r.   They are both to be found in the same Denel  bundle,  

Bundle 07 which we were using ear l ier wi th the last  wi tness 

and they form par t  of  Exhibi t  W20.  I f  I  may take the wi tness 

to the 1st  aff idavi t  to ident i fy i t  and then l ikewise the second, 

and then we wi l l  ask for them to be formal ly admit ted.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

EXAMINATION BY ADVOCATE KENNEDY SC :    Good 

af ternoon, Mr Mhlont lo.  

MR MHLONTLO :    Good af ternoon Chai r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mhlont lo,  I f  I  could ask you in the 

bundle in f ront  of  you,  when I  g ive page numbers I 'm going 

to give you page numbers according to the top lef t ,  not  the 

top r ight  and i t  is  black pr int  and not  the one in red,  and I  

wi l l  miss out  the f i rst  let ters,  the Denel  07 and just  give you 

the last  three digi ts,  okay? 

MR MHLONTLO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So the f i rst  aff idavi t ,  the statement I  

would l ike to take you to is at  page 6.   Sorry,  568.    

MR MHLONTLO :    Ja.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  your f i rst  statement?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes,  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I  can ask you please to go to  

page 575? 

MR MHLONTLO :    575.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  your signature Above the date 

of  19 July 2019? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Indeed i t  is.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   This was not  s igned before a 

commissioner of  oaths.   Is that  r ight?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  one was . . . [ ind ist inct ]  [speaker not  

c lear]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So this  is not  an aff idavi t .   We wi l l  cal l  

i t  by i ts correct  name which is statement.   The next . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    At  least  be closer to the microphone 10 

Mr Mhlont lo.  

MR MHLONTLO :    Ja.   Thank you,  Chai r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The next  document is f rom page 576.  

MR MHLONTLO :    576. . .   Yes,  Chai r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is th is your second statement?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes,  i t  is.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  runs to page 596 and 7,  

excluding the annexures.   At  596,  is that  your signature 

above the date 7 October 2020?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes i t  is my s ignature.   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  pick up p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Raise your voice Mr Mhlont lo  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes i t  is my s ignature.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry?  

MR MHLONTLO :    I t  is my signature.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is your signature.   And this t ime you 

did in fact  s igned i t  before commissioner of  oaths Where you 

took the oath.   

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes I  d id.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As we see at  page 597.   Now 

Mr Mhlont lo,  you told me a moment ear l ier dur ing the tea 

adjournment that  you have picked up a couple of  errors 

re lat ing to date that  has been mistyped whatever subject  to  

those correct ions that  we are going to ask you to  take us 

through in a moment.    10 

 The f i rst  statement which you didn 't  swear under oath to 

in f ront  of  a commissioner of  oath before.   you have 

obviously just  taken an oath now to tel l  the t ruth and nothing 

but  the t ruth,  et  cetera.   Have you been through the f i rst  

statement f rom page 569?  568,  I  am sorry,  to 575.   Have 

you been through them?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Those pages? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes I  have been.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    and subject  to the errors that  you are 20 

going to draw to our at tent ion,  do you in terms of  the oath 

that  you have now taken before the Chai rperson,  Do you 

conf i rm that  the contents of  the statement in fact  ref lect  the 

t ruth and the whole t ruth and noth ing but  the t ruth? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes I  do.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Thank you.   And then you 

conf i rmed again under oath the correctness of  the contents 

off  your aff idavi t  f rom page 576 to 596.  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes,  I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Chairperson,  may we then 

before we proceed to deal  wi th the typing errors.   Maybe ask 

your leave to formal ly admit  the statement f rom page 568 

and the aff idavi t  f rom page 576 and the annexures that  

fo l low and that  they should be admit ted as in Denel  Bundle 

07 as Exhibi t  W20? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the f i rst  one must  have i ts own 

exhibi t  number and then the second one,  i ts  own exhibi t  

number as wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Shal l  we do i t  that  way? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  have happy to do that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  so the f i rst  one wi l l  be Exhibi t  W20.  Is 

that  r ight?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    The statement of  Mr Fiki le Mhlont lo 20 

start ing at  page 568 is admit ted as Exhibi t  W20.  

STATEMENT OF MR FIKILE MHLONTLO STARTING AT 

PAGE 568 IS SUBMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT W20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then of  course the next  one,  can I  –  

would probably need to be made W20.1.   Have not  had 20.1 
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in another bundle? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  do not  bel ieve so.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   So you ask that  th is one to be 

admit ted as Exhib i t  W20.1? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    The statement of  Fiki le Mhlont lo  start ing 10 

at  page 576 is admit ted as Exhibi t  W20.1.   Thank you.  

STATEMENT OF MR FIKILE MHLONTLO STARTING AT 

PAGE 576 IS ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT W20.1 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As you please Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mhlont lo,  The typing or other 

errors.   are there any errors in the f i rst  statement that  starts 

at  page 568,  that  is Exhibi t  W20? 

MR MHLONTLO :    There is one on page 571,  paragraph 3.4.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So i t  is page 571,  paragraph 3.4.   what 20 

does the correct ion?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Where i t  refers to a meet ing in Apri l  2009.   

I t  should be Apri l  2010.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is Apri l  2010? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And nothing e lse in th is 

statement?  

MR MHLONTLO :    And nothing else on this statement.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

MR MHLONTLO :    And then the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So then the aff idavi t  f rom page 576.   

Anything in that?  

MR MHLONTLO :    And then i f  you go to page 576. . .   I  am 

going to get  to page. . .   Page 587,  paragraph 5.3.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is page 573?    10 

MR MHLONTLO :    No . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry.   A t  587 you said.   

CHAIRPERSON :    587,  Paragraph 5.3.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  so Mr Mhlont lo? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

MR MHLONTLO :    The paragraph that  says dur ing the 

or ientat ion and he refers to 24 July 2020.  I t  should be 

24 July 2015.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Any other changes in the 

aff idavi t?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Then at  page 18. . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry what page?  

MR MHLONTLO :    No,  no,  no.   I  am just  . . . [ indist inct ]  
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[Speaker not  c lear]   page 588  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    588.   Yes? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Paragraph 5.6  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes? 

MR MHLONTLO :    the l ine just  before the last  l ine wi thin that  

paragraph,  i t  ta lks of  14 September 015.   I t  should be 

14 September 2015.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Anything else?  

MR MHLONTLO :    And then the two last  ones.   I t  is  5.7 and 

5.8.   there 's a l ine that  refers to the 10th of  September.   I t  10 

says 2020.  I t  should be saying 2015.  And within the same 

paragraph,  there i t  is also referr ing to September 2020.  i t  

should be 2015.  Those are the typos that  I  wanted to point  

you to.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Now Chai r,  d id you get  

both of  those last  two paragraphs? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    They can just  do a short  supplementary 

aff idavi t  later on and send i t  to. . .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   That  wi l l  be done.   

Right .   What I  propose to do is.   Is to deal  wi th your f i rst  

statement as i t  comes f i rst  in the f i le.   That  is a fa i r ly short  

statement and i t  just  deals wi th a few issues.   Before we get  

to the meat of  that ,  may you just  conf i rm.  You used to be 
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employed by the Denel .   Is that  correct?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you were the f inancial  d i rector.   i f  

I  may take the wi tness through the,  what I  be l ieve is  

uncont roversial  evidence? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In leading him Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   You ready f inancial  

d i rector at  the t ime that  you -  f rom 2008, October unt i l  you 10 

lef t  in September 2015.  Is that  correct?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you were p laced 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  see f rom paragraph one 

Mr Kennedy.   I  see an answer to a quest ion I  ra ised ear l ier 

on about Af r ica,  that  i t  is a lady.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  i t  is Ms Afr ica.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was the company secretary,  is that  20 

r ight  Mr Mhlont lo? 

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    and you say that  you wi thin  placed on 

paid specia l  leave together wi th Mr Salugi ,  the then Group 

CEO.  Is that  r ight?  
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MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Ms Afr ica who was then the 

company secretary.   There were a l legat ions,  you say,  who 

were unsubstant ia ted level led by a new board.   I t  was never 

put ,  u l t imate ly,  to a discipl inary process.   Is that  correct?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you then received a f inancia l  

set t lement 11 months later and you then -  that  al lowed you 2 

then resign wi th effect  f rom August  2016.   Is that  correct?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So f rom September 2015 when you 

were placed on special  leave,  that  is s imi lar to a suspension.   

Is that  r ight?  

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You were not  working dur ing the next  

year.   Is that  r ight?  Unt i l  you actual ly res igned.   

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    but  you were being paid a fu l l  salary 

dur ing that  per iod.    

MR MHLONTLO :    I t  is indeed so.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You agree.    Now Chai r,  I f  you would 

l ike,  perhaps what is not  being deal t  wi th in the aff idavi t  is 

the issue off  the set t lement that  was reached with the 

wi tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  just  t raverse that? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  please.   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mhlont lo,  You have reached a 

f inancial  set t lement which then resul ted in  a discipl inary 

process not  being pursued but  you then you resigned.   is 

that  correct?  

MR MHLONTLO :    A f inancial  set t lement was always offered 

in the process that  eventual ly culminated in af ter  11 months 

into a set t lement that  was,  on my side fel t  i t  was reasonable.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  i t  was what? 10 

MR MHLONTLO :    And I  fe l t  on my side i t  was worth 

explor ing which eventual ly I  accepted.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You accepted i t?  

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was there a wri t ten set t lement  

agreement? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Indeed, yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you able to provide a copy? 

Otherwise,  we wi l l  get  a copy f rom Denel .  

MR MHLONTLO :    I  wi l l  provide.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry? 

MR MHLONTLO :    I  wi l l  provide one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You wi l l  prov ide one.   Thank you very 

much.  Chai r,  i f  we may f i le that  in due course? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  would you l ike me to t raverse 

the bot tom l ine of  that  set t lement? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  would l ike to.   I . . .    There is a thought  

whether I  should say do not  ment ion the amount but  i t  is 

taxpayers money and I  am think ing why should i t  not  be 

ment ioned.   Do you have any d iscomfort? 

MR MHLONTLO :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wi l l  te l l  you why.   I  do not  know i f  you 

were here when I  spoke about i t  ear l ier today.   You see,  I  

have heard evidence relat ing to Eskom to the suspension of  10 

execut ives at  Eskom.   

 And mi l l ions of  rands were offered to each member,  each 

of  the execut ives who were ul t imately  – who ul t imately  

res igned.   They bel ieve that  they were pushed out  of  Eskom 

because otherwise they st i l l  wanted to cont inue at  Eskom.   

 So they bel ieved that  they were being pushed out .   Now 

they were g iven large amounts of  money as set t lements.   

And one of  the quest ions that  I  asked those members of  the 

Eskom Board,  who were board members of  i t  at  the t ime is,  

why they offered money or those large amounts of  money to  20 

those execut ives.    

 Because they said to me here giving ev idence that  they 

were not  the ones who wanted these execut ives to leave 

Eskom.  They sa id i t  is these execut ives who wanted to 

leave.    
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 But  those execut ives have come here and said:   Ei ther,  

we d id not  want to leave.   We said we wanted to go back to 

our work af ter – dur ing suspensions.   Or,  one of  them said:   I  

have been wri t ing let ters to  the board and the CEO in regard 

to my suspensions and want ing to be al lowed to play a role 

in terms of  the inquiry that  was happening  but  I  was being 

ignored and I  fe l t  unwanted.    

 Therefore,  I  said let  us talk about  my exi t  but  I  st i l l  

wanted to work.   The other two said they wanted to go back 

and – but  that  was not  being entertained by the board.    10 

 And af ter they had lef t  or even before they lef t ,  there 

was a secondment of  Mr Br ian Molefe f rom Transnet to  

Eskom to take the posi t ion of  CEO which had been occupied 

by a CEO who had been suspended and later on he became 

– he was appointed permanent ly.    

 And one of  the execut ives who had been suspended was 

the f inancial  d i rector,  just  l ike you were the f inancial  d i rector 

at  Denel .   She had been suspended and she wanted to come 

back,  according to her evidence.    

 But  according to her,  the board or those members of  the 20 

board who were g iven the task of  ta lk ing to her,  d id not  want 

her to come back.   They encouraged her to look at  a  

f inancial  set t lement.    

 Ul t imately,  she was offered qui te a large amount to 

leave.   And then Mr Anoj  Singh who was seconded f rom 
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Transnet to Eskom.  This was in March/Apri l  2015.   That  is 

the same year  when your own suspensions at  Denel  

happened.  Your suspension.   The suspension of  Mr Salugi  

and the suspension of  Ms Afr ica.    

 And when one l istens to how you – al l  of  you got  

suspended, i t  is  qui te – i t  ra ises a number of  quest ions.   One 

would st i l l  hear more evidence f rom people who made those 

decisions.    

 But  you were suspended for qui te a long t ime.  From 

what I  have heard f rom Mr Salugi  and I  see f rom your own 10 

aff idavi t .   You were keen i f  the company thought there were 

grounds to discipl ine you.   You were keen to take part  in a 

discipl inary hearing and be charged and answer for yoursel f .    

 But  u l t imately,  i t  looks l ike you were ei ther given – you 

were ei ther offered and offer that  you fel t  that  you could not  

refuse [ laughing]  in terms of  the f inancial  set t lement.    

 Or the three of  you,  maybe because of  how long the 

suspension had taken and the fact  that  nothing seemed to be 

happening in terms of  the d iscip l inary process.   You might  

have – some of  you might  have reached the point  o f :   Look,  20 

let  me just  take the money and leave.    

 Now that  may or may not  have been a way of  get t ing r id 

of  certain execut ives in order to  br ing other people as 

execut ives.   As I  say,  I  wi l l  hear ev idence f rom other  people 

and see whether  that  is actual ly what happened, whether  
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that  was the reason.    

 But  when one looks at  the Eskom suspension of  the 

execut ives,  one remains wi th certa in quest ions along those 

l ines.   And i t  may wel l  be that  in regard to your own 

suspensions,  i t  may wel l  be that  there are simi lar e lements.    

 I  do know, based on Mr Salugi ’s ev idence that  Mr Sal im 

Essa seems to have been qui te involved as the new board.   

Wel l ,  the board or star ing,  actual ly even before the new 

board was start ing was qui te – had some interest  in Denel .    

 And in regard to the suspensions at  Eskom, he has been 10 

ment ioned by certain wi tnesses as somebody who seems to 

have known the names of  execut ives who were going to be 

suspended even before some of  the board members knew.  

You see?   

 So i t  then becomes necessary to say:   Is the Denel  

s i tuat ion wi th regard to suspensions and ul t imately the 

departure of  yoursel f  and Mr Salugi  and Ms Af r ica,  does i t  

fa l l  into a category of  removals of  execut ives who might  not  

have been prepared to get  involved in wrongdoings so that  

others who may have been taught ,  would not  mind get t ing 20 

involved in wrongdoings or might  not  – who have been 

taught  to be prepared to assist  certain people outside of  

Denel  to achieve certain object ives.    

 So i t  makes i t  necessary to look at  these suspensions 

and the ul t imate departure of  these execut ives to say:   Wel l ,  
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was this legi t imate?  Was the paying of  th is money just i f ied 

the taxpayers money to achieve thei r  removal  just i f ied?   

 Because one would get  fact  of  that  may be the board 

would take the view that :    Look,  i f  there is proper evidence 

of  wrongdoing or misconduct  on the part  of  the execut ives,  

let  them be subjected to a discipl inary hearing.   I f  they are 

found not  gui l ty,  let  them cont inue.   I f  they are found gui l ty,  

then they can be dismissed i f  the wrongdoing just i f ies 

dismissal .  

 Rather than say:   Wel l ,  maybe even i f  there is  no 10 

suff ic ient  evidence to f ind them gui l ty,  let  us offer  them 

money.    

 So I  do not  know what the si tuat ion is  and I  am keen to 

establ ish what the facts are so that  these quest ions that  I  

may have on my mind ar is ing out  of  Mr Salugi ’s evidence 

and your own aff idavi t  maybe wi l l  be answered.    

 So I  wanted you to get  that  background.  Have you – do 

you feel  comfor table to share the informat ion or not  

comfortable? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you do not  feel  comfortab le – i f  i t  – 

obviously – wel l ,  I  assume i t  is in the set t lement agreement.   

We would have i t  in the set t lement agreement.   But  I  cannot 

promise you that  when we get  i t ,  we wi l l  not  ta lk about  i t  

publ ic ly.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  before the wi tness answers,  

may I  just  assist?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  I  was not  ab le to  assist  ear l ier.   

My at tent ion has been drawn . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . to one of  the annexures r ight  at  the 

end of  the aff idavi t  where,  in fact ,  the set t lement agreement 

is at tached and i t  provides the f igure.   And perhaps I  can just  

take the wi tness to i t?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What page is i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The set t lement agreement.   

Mr Mhlont lo,  i t  starts at  page 724.   I t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I  am sorry.   Did you say I  must  

go to the second aff idavi t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  that  is at tached to the second 

aff idavi t ,  not  the f i rst .   Right  at  the end of  the f i le Chai r.   I  

th ink i t  is the very last  annexure and i t  is at  page 724.   I t  

was not  at tached to the f i rst  aff idavi t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  see i t .   Yes.   Ja,  you may take the 

wi tness there.   Wel l ,  i f  i t  is here,  i t  is  al ready a publ ic 

document.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Indeed.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  proceed Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you may proceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Is th is the set t lement 

agreement that  we have been discussing Mr Mhlont lo? 

MR MHLONTLO :    I  conf i rm, yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is  cal led Determinat ion of  

Employment Agreement.   I t  provides on page 727 for a  

determinat ion date being the 31s t  of  August  2016.   Is that  

correct? 10 

MR MHLONTLO :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can take you to r ight  to the end,  

page 741? 

MR MHLONTLO :    I  am on 741.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  appears f rom that ,  that  the 

agreement was signed on the 25t h of  July 2016.   Is that  your 

signature at  the foot  of  the page? 

MR MHLONTLO :    I t  is indeed my signature.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And above that ,  on behal f  of  Denel  

Stock Limited i t  is  s igned by Mr Zulake(?) and Tshepe.   20 

MR MHLONTLO :    Yes,  i t  is.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Who happens to be the next  wi tness 

that  we intend to  cal l .   Now i f  I  can take you back to page 

720.   Sorry,  731.    

MR MHLONTLO :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    At  Clause 7 reads:  

“The employer shal l  cont inue to  pay the employee 

his normal remunerat ion unt i l  terminat ion date.”  

 So at  the t ime that  you were signing this agreement at  

the end of  July  2015,  you were st i l l  in employment. . .   Sorry,  

2016.    

 You were st i l l  in employment and you were st i l l  receiv ing 

salary and you would cont inue to do so unt i l  the terminat ion 

date which was one month later.   Is  that  r ight? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then in addi t ion to that ,  you wi l l  

received a set t lement payment in  Clause 6.   Oh, sorry 

Clause 8,  of  R6 625 844,  sorry,  644 rand.   So i t  is 

R 6 625 644,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What clause is that? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    E ight  point  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    E ight  point  one.   Okay a lr ight .   Yes.   Do 

you conf i rm that  Mr Mhlont lo?  

MR MHLONTLO :    I  conf i rm Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you conf i rm what is set  out  in the 

rest  of  that  c lause that  that  amount of  R 6 625 644 was an 

amount equivalent  to your remunerat ion for 24-months? 

MR MHLONTLO :    Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Shu!   Wel l ,  i t  is much more in terms of  

months than what the Eskom execut ives got  in terms of  

months.   But  the amount and round f igure is more or less the 

same as some – as one or more of  those execut ives.    

 But  they were – I  th ink thei rs were about 12-months 

except  for one of  them whose amount was equivalent  to 18-

months.   I  th ink.   Is that  so?   

 Oh, you would not  know that  Mr Kennedy.   That  is  

another evidence leader who would know that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The Eskom ones.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Fortunately,  I  do not  have to deal  wi th  

everything.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   Unfor tunately,  I  have to .   Wel l ,  

i t  is qui te interest ing.   I t  is qui te interest ing that  the 

company thought  you had misconducted yoursel f .   And I  

th ink based on your  aff idavi t ,  they thought that  you had been 

dishonest .   Is i t  not?   

 That  was one of  the al legat ions that  subject ing you to a 

discipl inary hearing.   They give you an amount equal  to 24-20 

months salary.   That  is very st range.   Ja.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   And that  would be 

24-months in addi t ion to the more than the 12-months that  

you were paid dur ing the per iod of  – or specia l  leave wi th  

your suspension? 
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MR MHLONTLO :    Correct  Chai r.   And I  would l ike also to  

draw you to Clause 11.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MHLONTLO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes?  Is that  incent ive bonus? 

MR MHLONTLO:    Par t  o f  the  se t t lement  were  c lause 8 .1  

and 11.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  the  amount  –  and incent ive  

bonus fo r  the  year  end ing  2015/2016 amount ing  to  

R1 656 411.   D id  you rece ive  tha t  bonus?  10 

MR MHLONTLO:    I  con f i rm,  Cha i r,  yes  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So a l l  in  a l l  you  –  i f  you  take  tha t  

amount  in to  account ,  shor t  te rm incent ive  bonus and the  ex  

gra t ia  payment  you are  look ing  a t  about  8  m i l l ion ,  9  

m i l l ion?  

MR MHLONTLO:    About  8 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  8 .2  m i l l i on .   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  ask ,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  was  tha t  an  

add i t iona l  se t t lement  amount  o r  was tha t  someth ing  you 

wou ld  have been  ent i t led  to  as  an  incent ive  bonus i f  you  20 

had been normal ly  employed?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Th is  i s  a  –  c lause 11,  Cha i r,  i s  an  

amount  I  wou ld  have been ent i t led  to  fo r  the  end o f  the 

2015/2016 year.   Now 2015/2016 year  c losed wh i le  I  was  

on suspens ion  and as  the  employees were  pa id  incent ives ,  
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I  a lso  qua l i f ied  fo r  tha t ,  as  an  employee.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now the  incen t ive  bonus,  in  o rder  to  

qua l i f y  to  be  pa id  an  incent ive  bonus in  the  company,  were  

you not  requ i red  to  have done your  job  qu i te  we l l?  

MR MHLONTLO:    I  con f i rm,  Cha i r,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  a  requ i rement .   So they had no  

compla in t s  about  you r  per fo rmance,  they cannot  say  they 

had any compla in t  i f  they  gave  you th is  bonus .   I t  i s  

cont rad i c to ry  –  i t  wou ld  be  cont rad ic to ry?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  the  s tandard  way o f  in te rpre t ing  10 

anyone qua l i f y ing  fo r  a  bonus is  the  recogn i t ion  tha t  you  

have done your  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you have done your  job  we l l ,  to  say  

the  least .  

MR MHLONTLO:    Done your  job  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe you have  done i t  exce l len t ly  o r  a t  

leas t  the  employer  cannot  g i ve  you th is  k ind  o f  bonus and  

compla in t  now tha t  you are  gu i l t y  o f  poor  pe r fo rmance in  

te rms o f  your  job .  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  no t  –  ja .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  the  second  

a f f idav i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  maybe,  Mr  Kennedy,  be fore  we 

proceed.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le ,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  to  te l l  me 

what  the  p rev ious o f fe rs  had been?  You sa id  tha t  th is  one  

was substant ia l l y  be t te r  than a  prev ious one or  p rev ious 

ones.   A re  you ab le  to  te l l  me what  k ind  o f  range the  

prev ious ones had been?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  when we  were  suspended,  on  the  

n igh t  we were  suspended,  we were  o f fe red  th ree  months  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Three months  pay?  10 

MR MHLONTLO:    Three months  pay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i f  you  agreed to  res ign?  

MR MHLONTLO:    I f  we agreed to  res ign  on  the  spo t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MHLONTLO:    Then we went  in to  med ia t ion  in  2016,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  about  8  February.   In  tha t  p rocess the  se t t lement  

was on the  tab le ,  i t  was not  spec i f i c  in  te rms o f  what  

months  we were  to  be  o f fe red  o ther  than to  say there  i s  a  

se t t lement  ava i lab le  and wh ich  we ins is ted  a t  tha t  po in t  

tha t  we wou ld  want  to  have ou r  jobs ,  we wou ld  want  to  20 

engage w i th  the  board  and c la r i f y  and exp la in  any  

quest ions tha t  they may be s i t t ing  w i th .   Then the  process 

then went  on  to  cor respondence tha t  came to  our  

a t to rneys,  separa te ly  th is  t ime.   Wi th  regards  to  Mr  

Sa loo jee ,  obv ious ly  was dea l ing  w i th  h is  cont rac t  o f  
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employment .   Wi th  regards to  myse l f ,  i t  was a lso  dea l ing  

w i th  my cont rac t  o f  employment  and want ing  to  engage on 

i t  and to  quest ion  and tes t  the  va l id i t y  because the  board  

ho lds  a  v iew tha t  my cont rac t  m ight  have exp i red  i n  2013.   

Then when my a t to rney then po in ted  out  to  the  board  to  

say the  mandate  or  the  exper t i se  o f  va l id  cont rac t  does not  

s i t  w i th  the  Cha i r  o f  a  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing ,  ra the r  i t  s i ts  

w i th  cour t s  o f  the  count ry  and then the  board  seemed to  

have changed i t s  approach because then i t  ca l led  us  on to  

a  –  ca l led  me,  i nd iv idua l l y,  in to  a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  on  10 

the  22  Apr i l  o f  2016.    

I f  you  count  f rom September  to  tha t  t ime,  number  o f  

months ,  and then even tha t  d i sc ip l inary,  i t  was never  a  

d isc ip l ina ry,  i t  was more  procedura l ,  i t  was more  look ing  a t  

the  po l i cy,  look ing  a t  who shou ld  ga ther  ev idence in  o rder  

to  seek to  ge t  –  to  ho ld  me to  account  to  cer ta in  

a l legat ions tha t  were  leve l led  aga ins t  me,  bu t  there  was 

noth ing  on  the  tab le .    

 And then in  tha t  bund le  tha t  they prov ided,  there  

was a  co r respondence tha t  suggested tha t  there  had been  20 

some invest iga t ion  on  us  and tha t  invest iga t ion  d id  no t  

rea l l y  f ind  anyth ing  o f  substance and tha t  cor respondence 

got  to  our  f i l e  I  th ink  by  m is take and tha t  go t  tab led ,  no t  

necessar i l y  on  the  22  Apr i l ,  bu t  in  the  fo l low-up supposed ly  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  wh ich  was the  18  Ju ly.  
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 In  the  18  Ju l y  then we p roduced th is  le t te r  and sa id  

bu t  in  the  bund le  you handed to  us  there  is  th is  le t te r  tha t  

suggests  tha t  the  who le  invest iga t ion  cou ld  –  i t  cou ld  

appear  i t  was be ing  s teered in  a  cer ta in  d i rec t ion  and what  

does th i s  cor respondence rea l l y  mean?  And the  Cha i r  o f  

the  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  ru led  tha t  look ,  even i f  there  i s  th is  

cor respondence,  the  charges do not  seem to  be  drawn f rom 

whatever  i s  beh ind  the  cor respondence because the 

cor respondence was between the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  and  

the  in te rna l  lega l  adv iser.  10 

 Shor t l y  thereaf te r,  a f te r  tha t ,  aga in  was not  a  

p roper  hear ing ,  was more  another  p repara tory  because  

there  was no bund le ,  there  was no ev idence tha t  they are  

po in t  to  wrongdo ing  wh ich  is  now ten  months  down the  

l ine .    

 And then shor t l y  a f te r  tha t ,  then an o f fe r  fo r  –  I  was 

ca l led  in  and I  was –  an  o f fe r  was made to  say  look,  in  

te rms o f  your  cont rac t ,  you got  about  30  months  le f t ,  look ,  

i f  we cu t  i t  a t  24  are  you comfor tab le?  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  but  dur ing  the  en t i re  11  month  20 

per iod ,  i f  i t  was 11 months  o f  suspens ion ,  were  there  eve r  

any documents  tha t  re f lec ted  fac ts  tha t  were  p laced  before  

you by  the  board  wh ich  suppor ted  the  a l legat ions they  

were  mak ing  aga ins t  you?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p lace  on record ,  I  
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was never  sub jec ted  to  a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And noth ing  substant ia t ing  the  

a l legat ions was ever  g iven to  you?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Of  cou rse ,  Mr  

Kennedy,  I  d id  say tha t  even w i th  regard  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  

and Ms A f r i ka ,  we shou ld  t ry  and get  the  se t t lement  

agreements  and i f  Ms A f r i ka  has no t  g iven us  an  a f f idav i t  

we shou ld  t ry  and  get  her  a f f idav i t  as  we l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We wi l l  ce r ta in ly  a t tend to  tha t ,  to  

the  ex ten t  i t  i s  no t  a l ready dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Mr  Mhlont lo ,  you seem l i ke  you 

want  to  say someth ing?  Yes?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  i s  un fo r tunate  because a  lo t  o f  

in fo rmat ion  ended up in  pub l i c  tha t  make damaging  

remarks  about  us .   Unfor tunate ly,  a t  our  fa i r l y  young ish  

age i t  cur ta i l s  ou r  oppor tun i t ies  to  p rac t ice  ou r  sk i l l s  and  

pro fess ion  on  mat te rs  tha t  were  never  sub jec ted  to  20 

processes even though we ava i led  ourse l ves so  much to  

say whatever  leve l ,  we are  happy to  s tand befo re  the  board  

or  be fo re  whatever  d isc ip l inary  commi t tee  they cou ld  pu t  

in to  p lace  and i t  is  a  p i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  guess tha t  par t  o f  the  impor tance  
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o f  you appear ing  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  as  we l l  as  Mr  

Sa loo jee  and Ms A f r i ka  in  due course ,  in  te rms o f  Ms A f r i ka  

and te l l ing  your  s to ry  how you were  suspended and how 

you ended up leav ing  Dene l  and s ta t ing  tha t  you were  

never  found gu i l t y  o f  anyth ing  and ac tua l l y  you wanted to  

go  th rough a  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  bu t  i t  was the  employer  

who was de lay ing  w i th  the  d i sc ip l inary  hear ing  and  

u l t imate ly  i t  was the  employer  who o f fe red  you money tha t  

you fe l t  was reasonab le  fo r  you to  leave.   That  i s  impor tan t  

so  tha t  the  pub l i c  and potent ia l  employers  tha t  you might  10 

approach might  ge t  to  know tha t  the  c i rcumstances  o f  your  

depar tu re  do  not  seem to  re f lec t  anyth ing  negat ive  tha t  you 

might  have been accused o f .   

 But ,  o f  course ,  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  board ,  Mr  

Mantsha,  w i l l  come here  and w i l l  g ive  ev idence.   We wi l l  

hea r  the i r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  

i f  they  were  prepared to  pay you 24 months ’ sa la ry  fo r  you  

to  go ,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  reconc i le  tha t  w i th  any v iew on the i r  

par t  tha t  they had a  s t rong case aga ins t  you in  terms o f  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  process because then they shou ld  have  20 

sub jec ted  you to  a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  and they  shou ld  

have ab ided by  the  ou tcome but  he  w i l l  come and  he w i l l  

pu t  h is  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Your  second 

a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  the  p rocess o f  negot ia t ion  wh ich  
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u l t imate ly  led  to  the  se t t lement  agreement  tha t  was be ing  

conc luded.   I f  I  can  take  you to  page 593,  you have made 

re ference a  number  o f  t imes in  your  a f f idav i t  to  your  des i re  

to  c lear  you name in  a  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  and your  des i re 

tha t  i t  shou ld  con t inue or  p roceed to  ac tua l l y  be  heard  bu t  

a t  one s tage you re fer  to  management  say ing  tha t  they 

ins is ted  tha t  i f  the  mat te r  i s  to  be  reso lved i t  wou ld  have to  

be  on  the  bas i s  tha t  you shou ld  leave the  company and 

agree on a  f inanc ia l  se t t lement .   In  fac t ,  may I  take  you 

back to  page 591?  You re fer  to  the  med ia t ion  p rocess and 10 

your  a t to rney Ms H loh le la  send ing  cor respondence and 

there  were  med ia t ion  proceed ings  he ld  on  the  8  February  

2016 and then you say:  

“Our  s tance was  tha t  there  was no bas i s  fo r  our  

suspens ion  and tha t  we shou ld  re turn  to  work  in  

c i rcumstances where  Dene l  cou ld  no t  i l l us t ra te  any 

impropr ie ty.   Dene l  s t i l l  i ns is ted  as  a  nonnegot iab le  

tha t  we depar t  f rom the  company and ag reement  on  

a  f inanc ia l  se t t lement . ”  

Was tha t  the i r  a t t i tude r igh t  t i l l  you  f ina l l y  agreed  to  s ign  20 

the  se t t lement  ag reement?  

MR MHLONTLO:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  in  fac t  i t  was the  cent re  o f  

what  was the i r  submiss ion  or  the i r  s ide  o f  the  –  or  

submiss ions in  the  med ia t ion  p rocess tha t   they  be l ieve  

what  had happened up unt i l  tha t  t ime had leads t rus t  
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i ssues and they  wou ld  then put  fo rward  tha t  we shou ld  

exp lore  a  f inanc ia l  se t t lement .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  can  take  you to  the  fo l low ing 

page,  593,  you re fer  to  a  d isc ip l i nary  hear ing  sess ion  he ld  

on  the  18  Ju ly  2016 a t  CDH of f i ces .   That  i s  the  f i rm o f  

a t to rneys were  represent ing  the  employer,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MHLONTLO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  re fer red  to  tha t :  

“On ly  d iscuss ing  pre l im ina ry  i ssues,  the  fa i lu re  by  

Dene l  to  p roduce  documents  and there  were  a  few 10 

documents  tha t  had been rece ived not  be ing  

sa t is fac tory.   My  lega l  representa t i ve  a lso  tab led  

the  le t te r  a t  page  74 and 75 o f  the  Dene l ,  requested  

the  Cha i r  o f  the  hear ing  to  read the  le t te r  and 

employer  to  exp la in  what  the  le t te r  in  rea l i t y  means  

fu r the r,  cha l leng ing  the  pos i t ion  o f  the  employer  

tha t  the  Dentons ’ repor t  i s  no t  a  document  they are  

re ly ing  on  fo r  th is  case.   The Cha i r  ru led  tha t  he  

cont inued to  cons ide r  the  Dentons ’ repor t  as  no t  

key  to  the  case,  as  argued by  the  employer.   Dene l  20 

was s t i l l  no t  ready to  p rosecute  me on the  charges  

tab led  and no f i le  l i s t ing  charges and p lac ing  

documents  prov id ing  gu i l t  even ten  months  a f te r  we  

were  suspended.   D isc ip l inary  hear ing  was then  

postponed to  the  3  August . ”  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 206 of 213 
 

So  you had been  suspended,  ten  months  la te r  when there  

were  va r ious meet ings in  re la t ion  to  a d isc ip l inary  process 

you s t i l l  had not  rece ived even a  charge sheet?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  I  had rece ived a  charge sheet  bu t  

what  I  had not  rece ived is  a  bund le  prov ing  each po in t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MHLONTLO:    As to  why the  board  ho lds  a  v iew tha t  I  

am gu i l t y  o f  anyth ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  the re  was  no bund le  o f  documents  

tha t  the  employer  had produced to  you fo r  purposes o f  the 10 

d isc ip l ina ry  enqu i ry  tha t  wou ld  substant ia te  i f  there  was  

substant ia t ion  the  charges tha t  you had a l ready  been 

not i f ied  o f ,  r igh t?    And then you say in  7 t ion  the  charges 

tha t  you had a l ready been not i f ied  o f ,  r igh t?    And then you 

say in  parag raph 533:  

“A f te r  ten  months  on  pa id  leave on ly  th ree  fo rmal  

meet ings were  he ld ,  March 16,  fa i led  med ia t ion ,  

Apr i l  26 ,  p re l im inary  admin is t ra t i ve  d iscuss ing  tha t  

the  employer  p resent  a  f i le  w i th  appropr ia te  

ev idence and Ju l y  2016,  another  p re l im inary  20 

admin is t ra t i ve  w i th  s im i la r  emphas is . ”  

I f  I  m igh t  jus t  s top  there ,  in  Apr i l  2016 the re  had been a  

d iscuss ion  tha t  the  employer  wou ld  produce a  bund le  o f  

documents  to  pursue the  charges a t  the  next  occas ion .    

 And then in  Ju ly,  some many months  la te r,  you were  
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s t i l l  d iscuss ing  the  need fo r  them to  prov ide  you w i th  such 

documents .  

MR MHLONTLO:    Cha i r,  f rom Apr i l  wh ich  was  rea l l y  a  

p re l im inary  meet ing  drawing  re ference to  po l i cy,  

emphas is ing  the  par t y  respons ib le  to  p roduce the  ev idence 

necessary  to  p roof  our  gu i l t ,  i t  led  to  – f rom tha t  t ime led  

to  the  meet ing  o f  the  18  Ju ly.   My expecta t ion ,  because 

tha t  sess ion  was  aga ins t  me myse l f  on ly,  was the  bund le  

wh ich  charges w i th  ev idence tha t  we wou ld  scru t in ise  w i th  

my a t to rney to  p lan  our  de fence.    When i t  go t  to  the  18  10 

Ju l y  there  had been a  ream and ream of  documents  tha t  

had been photocop ied  but  they were  no t  a t  a l l  in  a  fo rmat  

tha t  wou ld  be  usab le  and p rove gu i l t .   In  fac t ,  the  

d iscuss ion  on  the  18 t h  was s t i l l  emphas is ing  tha t  the  

employer  needed  to  p roduce a  p roper  f i l e  substant ia t ing  

the i r  i ssue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  cont inue in  5 .34 :  

“A few days la te r,  wh i l s t  awa i t ing  documents  f rom 

Dene l ,  I  was su rpr ised to  rece ive  a  phone ca l l  f rom 

the  Act ing  GCFO,  Mr  Odwa Mhlwana…” 20 

That  i s  the  person who was ac t ing  in  your  s tead ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MHLONTLO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Whi le  you were  on  suspens ion .  

“He s ta ted  tha t  he  has a  mandate…” 
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D id  he  say who tha t  was f rom? 

MR MHLONTLO:    I f  my reco l lec t i on  is  cor rec t  i t  wou ld  be  

f rom the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  a t  the  t ime.  

“ . . .and tha t  we shou ld  meet  w i thout  the  a t to rneys to  

cons ider  a  way fo rward .   My w i fe  and I  met  Mr  

Mhlwana a t  the  Baron Woodmead fo r  lunch.   He  

tab led  an  amicab le  se t t lement  w i th  a  f inanc ia l  

package in  exchange fo r  my res ignat ion  whereas I  

cont inued to  be  keen th rough the  p rocess. ”  

What  do  you mean by  tha t?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    To  go  th rough the  process.  

MR MHLONTLO:    To  go  th rough  the  process,  whereas I  

cont inued to  be  keen to  go  th rough the  process,  I  

cons idered tha t  f inanc ia l  se t t lement  was substant ia l l y  

be t te r  tha t  the  prev ious one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MHLONTLO:    And there fore  i t  was c lear ing  the  way fo r  

me to  accept .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  was ask ing  you to  exp la in  th rough  

the  process,  mean ing  what?   The d isc ip l inary  process.  20 

MR MHLONTLO:    The d isc ip l ina ry  process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  you were  s t i l l  keen to  go  

th rough tha t  p rocess a t  tha t  s tage.   Why was tha t?  

MR MHLONTLO:    Very  much so .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Why was tha t?  
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MR MHLONTLO:    I  am say ing  the  o f fe r  came 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    No,  why were  you s t i l l  –  I  am sor ry  to  

in te r rup t ,  why were  you s t i l l  keen to  go  th rough the  

process i f  there  was no se t t lemen t?   Were  you s t i l l  keen to 

c lea r  your  name? 

MR MHLONTLO:   P rec ise ly.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Was tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MHLONTLO:    And one o f  the  requests  tha t  I  pu t  

fo rward  to  Mr  Mhlwana was tha t  there  has go t  to  be  way in  10 

wh ich  my name wou ld  be  c lea red .   I f  Dene l  i s  w i t hdrawing 

the  charges and g iv ing  me a  f inanc ia l  se t t lement  I  wou ld  

want  my name c leared because my name was in  the  pub l i c  

domain ,  a  CA who is  pu rpor ted  to  have done cer ta in  th ings 

and I  was concerned about  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  m igh t  have a  moment ,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  your  s ta tements  

do  not  seem to  say anyth ing ,  as  f a r  as  I  cou ld  reca l l ,  about  

your  qua l i f i ca t ions.   D id  you say CA jus t  now? 

MR MHLONTLO:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  a  CA? 

MR MHLONTLO:    I  am a  CA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  so  you were  concerned about  

the  fac t  tha t  you  are  a  CA and your  name in  the  pub l i c  

domain  had been  ta in ted  because o f  what  Dene l  had sa id .   
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Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  was the  o f fe r  tha t  was 

presented to  you  accompanied by  your  w i fe  by  Mr  Odwa 

Mhlwana,  was tha t  the  o f fe r  tha t  was then ag reed to  as  

captured in  the  se t t lement  ag reement  we have looked a t?  

MR MHLONTLO:    On tha t  da te  he  gave a  broad ind ica t ion  

o f ,  you know,  in  te rms o f  my cont rac t  you are  le f t  w i th  x  

number  o f  months ,  i f  you  are  in  agreement ,  I  w i l l  speak to  

my pr inc ipa l  o f  where  we can potent ia l l y  se t t le ,  bu t  we 

acknowledge the  overa l l  number  o f  months  le f t  in  your  10 

cont rac t .   I t  was c lea r  the  d i rec t ion  in  wh ich  i t  was  go ing .   

We were  then to  meet  a  coup le  o f  days la te r,  wh ich  we  

then met  in  Midrand where  we then conc luded the  dea l  bu t  

the  in i t ia l  par t  o f  i t  was a t  the  Baron in  Woodmead.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  how much t ime was le f t?   Were  

you on a  f i xed  te rm cont rac t  appo in tment?  

MR MHLONTLO:    I  was i n i t ia l l y  appo in ted  in  October  2008 

as  a  pe rmanent  employee.   When  Mr  Sa loo jee  j o ined the  

company in  2012,  he  sa id  look,  in  an  execut ive  pos i t ion  as  

yours ,  i t  i s  no t  idea l  to  be  on  a  pe rmanent  appo in tment  o r  20 

permanent  employment .   H is  mandate  is  tha t  he  must  

exp lore  p lac ing  a l l  o f  us  on  a  temp cont rac t ,  wh ich  was a  

f i ve  years  f rom tha t  t ime.   So when th is  un fo lded,  i t  was  

w i th in  the  contex t  tha t  my or ig ina l  employment  cont rac t  

had an addendum a l ready tha t  spec i f ied  as  to  when I  wou ld  
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ex i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And was i t  24  months  tha t  was le f t?  

MR MHLONTLO:    I t  was about  30  months  tha t  was le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About?  

MR MHLONTLO:    About  30  months  tha t  were  le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MHLONTLO:    And the  se t t lement  was ove r  24  months .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  may  I  now re fer  the  w i tness,  

p lease,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  to  your  pa ragraph 535 on page 593 10 

where  you re fe r  to  the  fac t  tha t  even a f te r  the  se t t lement  

there  were  damaging med ia  s ta tements .   What  a re  you  

re fer r i ng  to  he re?  

MR MHLONTLO:    There  is  a  spec i f i c  s ta tement  wh ich  was 

made tha t  we,  w i thout  fo l low ing  appropr ia te  governance 

processes,  we have changed the  bor rowing ar rangements  

w i th  a  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ion  and whereas tha t   -  in  fac t ,  how 

tha t  happened,  un fo lded d i f fe ren t ly  the  way as  pu t  ou t  

there ,  as  cast ing  aspers ion  on  us ,  say ing  we  are  bad,  we  

are  th i s  and tha t  and I  was concerned about  i t ,  bu t  we w i l l  20 

dea l  –  I  suppose we w i l l  cover  i t  a t  some po in t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you make re fe rence a t  the  

foo t  o f  the  page to  your  remova l  be ing  seen la rge ly  in  the 

same way as  tha t  o f  ex i ted  sen ior  execut ives  a t  Eskom in  

2014.   Seen by  whom and in  what  way?  



09 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 302 
 

Page 212 of 213 
 

MR MHLONTLO:    There  was a  lo t  o f  med ia  coverage tha t  

was a t t r ibu t ing  our  ex i t  to  the  same c i r cumstances tha t  

were  p reva i l ing  e lsewhere .   I  take  a  v iew tha t  I  am not  

necessar i l y  go ing  to  jo in  the  specu la t ion ,  bu t  I  am jus t  

po in t ing  ou t  fac tua l l y  what  I  was  see ing  covered  in  the  

press .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  the  suspens ions o f  

execut ives  a t  Eskom was 2015 ra ther  than 2014,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken.   But  i t  i s  okay,  i t  i s  no t  necessar i l y  mater ia l .   10 

Yes,  okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   We have dea l t  

w i th  the  issue now o f  the  package.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  came in  the  very  in t roductory  

sect ions tha t  I  was jus t  tak ing  h im th rough h is  employment  

h is to ry  and so  fo r th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We wi l l  need  to  p roceed to  dea l  w i th  

the  meat  o f  h is  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  and in  the  second and the  20 

second w i l l  inc lude cons idera t ion  in  some deta i l  o f  the  

c i rcumstances o f  h is  and h is  co l leagues ’ suspens ion .   May  

I  suggest ,  un less  you wou ld  l i ke  me to  cont inue,  tha t  we 

can dea l  w i th  tha t  tomorrow? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  we can do tha t  tomorrow.   
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Okay,  le t  us  ad journ  and then we w i l l  resume tomorrow.   

So,  Mr  Mhlont lo ,  we w i l l  con t inue w i th  your  ev idence 

tomorrow morn ing  a t  ten .   Okay,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 10 NOVEMBER 2020  


